
Pensions and Investment Committee 
 

Meeting Venue 
Committee Room A - County Hall, 
Llandrindod Wells, Powys 

 

 
 

County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Meeting date 
Friday, 4 October 2019 

 
Meeting time 
10.00 am 

 
For further information please contact 
Carol Johnson 
01597 826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 27 September, 2019 
 

 

Mae croeso i chi siarad yn Gymraeg neu yn Saesneg yn y cyfarfod.  
Rhowch wybod pa iaith rydych am ei defnyddio erbyn hanner dydd, ddau ddiwrnod 
gwaith cyn y cyfarfod.  
You are welcome to speak Welsh or English in the meeting.  
Please inform us of which language you wish to use by noon, two working days 
before the meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  APOLOGIES  

 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to items to be 
considered on the Agenda. 
 
 

3.  MINUTES  

 
To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the last meeting held on 1 July, 2019 as 
a correct record. 
(Pages 5 - 8) 
 

4.  PENSIONS BOARD MINUTES  

 
To receive a report from the Pension Board Chair [to follow] and to receive for 
information the minutes of the Powys Pensions Board meeting held on 10 July, 2019 
and the draft minutes of the meeting held on 11 September, 2019. 
(Pages 9 - 20) 

Public Document Pack



 

5.  NEW ADMISSION BODY -SHAW HEALTHCARE (GROUP) LTD  

 
To note the report of the Head of Finance. 
(Pages 21 - 22) 
 

6.  GLOBAL EQUITY TRANSITION  

 
To note the report of the Head of Finance. 
(Pages 23 - 24) 
 

7.  PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19  

 
To consider and approve the 2018-19 Pension Fund Annual Report. 
(Pages 25 - 138) 
 

8.  ADMINISTRATION AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME 
[LGPS] UPDATE  

 
To note the report from the Head of Finance. 
(Pages 139 - 142) 
 

9.  GOVERNANCE UPDATE  

 
To consider the report of the Head of Finance. 
(Pages 143 - 152) 
 

10.  TRAINING - VALUATION - PENSION BOARD CHAIR  

 
To receive a presentation from the Pension Board Chair. 
 
 

11.  WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP UPDATE  

 
To note the report of the Head of Finance. 
(Pages 153 - 154) 
 

12.  WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP - LINK AND RUSSELL INVESTMENTS 
UPDATE  

 
To receive a presentation. 
 
 

13.  DECISION REVIEW  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 155 - 156) 
 



14.  FORWARD LOOKING BUSINESS PLAN  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 157 - 158) 
 

15.  EXEMPT ITEM  

 
The Monitoring Officer has determined that category 3 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules applies to the following items. His view on the public interest test 
(having taken account of the provisions of Rule 14.8 of the Council's Access to 
Information Rules) was that to make this information public would disclose 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information).  These factors in his view outweigh 
the public interest in disclosing this information. 
Members are asked to consider these factors when determining the public interest 
test, which they must decide when considering excluding the public from this part of 
the meeting. 
 
 

16.  RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 159 - 198) 
 

17.  EQUITY RISK MANAGEMENT  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 199 - 228) 
 

18.  COMPETITION & MARKETS AUTHORITY ORDER  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 229 - 234) 
 

19.  INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 235 - 244) 
 

20.  MEDIUM TERM ASSET ALLOCATION (MTAA) – UPDATE TO 30 JUNE 
2019  

 
To consider the report from Aon. 
(Pages 245 - 258) 
 

21.  QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT  

 
To consider a report from Aon. 
(Pages 259 - 298) 



 
 
 



2019-07-01 Pensions & Investment Committee 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PENSIONS AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 
HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS, 

POWYS ON MONDAY, 1 JULY 2019 
 

PRESENT 
County Councillor P E Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors E A Jones, JG Morris, T J Van-Rees, D H Williams and  
A W Davies 
Mr G Moore, Chair Powys Pension Board 
 
In attendance: Head of Finance, Pension Fund Manager and Financial Reporting & 
Policy Accountant 
Aon representatives – Rachel Pinder and Richard Antrobus 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr M Weale, co-opted member. 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members of the Committee declared interests as members of the Local 
Government Pensions Scheme. These are personal interests, not prejudicial 
interests in accordance with Paragraph 12(b) (iv) of the Members Code of 
Conduct 2016. 
 
County Councillor J Morris declared a personal interest in Item 5 (a) as a Local 
Education Authority school governor at Crickhowell High School and Crickhowell 
Primary School. 

 

3.  MINUTES  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign the minutes of the Pensions & Investment 
Committee meetings held on 8 March, 16 May and 21 June, 2019 as correct 
records.  
 
The Chair changed the order of the Agenda due to the later arrival of the Pension 
Board Chair. 
  

4.  NEW ADMISSION BODY -  

 
4.1. Adapt Business Services Limited  

 
The Committee was advised that Adapt Business Services Limited had become 
a Pension Fund employer following the transfer of the former employees of 
Powys County Council, responsible for the cleaning services at Crickhowell High 
School and Crickhowell Primary School.  
 

RESOLVED  Reason for Decision: 

To note the admittance of Adapt 
Business Services Limited to the 
Powys Pension Fund. 

As per report. 

 

Page 5

3



2019-07-01 Pensions & Investment Committee 

 
4.2. Just Perfect Catering Limited  

 
The Committee was advised that Just Perfect Catering Limited had become a 
Pension Fund employer following the transfer of former employees of Aramark, 
who were operating the catering services on behalf of Brecon Beacons National 
Park. 
 

RESOLVED  Reason for Decision: 

To note the admittance of Just Perfect 
Catering Limited to the Powys 
Pension Fund. 

As per report. 

 

5.  BREACHES REPORT  

 
The Committee received the report regarding the two recordable breaches.  The 
Committee noted that where Funds have been unable to pay a refund to a 
scheme member within the 5 years of them leaving employment, as required 
under the Local Government Pension Scheme 2013 regulations, they should be 
reported as recordable breaches.  It was noted that officers were to undertake an 
address tracing exercise six months prior to the five year anniversary date.  
Officers advised that currently the sums involved were small and the amount of 
administrative time and costs outweighed this.  The Pension Fund Manager 
advised that the LGPS Technical Group had asked the Scheme Advisory Board 
to consider changing the regualtions. 
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

To note the two breaches that 
have occurred within the Powys 
Pension Fund. 

In accordance with the Powys Pension 
Fund Breaches Policy. 

The Chair, on behalf of the 
Committee, writes to the Scheme 
Advisory Board in support of the 
LGPS Technical Group 
recommendation that the 
regulations regarding the 
payment of refunds within a five 
year timescale be amended.  

To demonstrate the increased 
administration required to facilitate 
these payments, monitor and record 
the breaches then presnet to 
Committee and Board. 

 
Mr G Moore, Chair Powys Pension Board arrived. 

 

6.  DRAFT PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2018/19  

 
The Committee received the draft Annual Report.  The Committee noted as a 
result of new Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy [CIPFA] 
guidance the draft report contained more information about the pooling of 
pension funds and also the benchmarking of the fund against other funds and the 
administration of the fund.     
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That the Committee notes the 
content of the report. 

For information. 

 

Page 6



2019-07-01 Pensions & Investment Committee 

The Committee considered the following item next. 
 

7.  POWYS PENSION BOARD FEEDBACK FROM ITS MEETING 3 APRIL, 2019  

 
The Committee received the feedback report and minutes from the Board 
meeting on 3 April, 2019.  The Board Chair advised that nationally, Pensions & 
Investment Committees usually spend the majority of their time considering 
investments.  However, the new CIPFA guidance has raised the profile of 
administration and together with the increasing focus of the Pension Regulator, it 
is important that administration should have the appropriate amount of time 
dedicated to it in Committee meetings, where required.  He advised the Scheme 
Advisory Board required that Boards should review the draft annual accounts.  It 
was noted that the Board would consider its training documentation at its next 
meeting.     

 

8.  WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP [WPP] UPDATE  

 
The Committee received a number of documents from the Wales Pension 
Partnership [WPP] Joint Governance Committee.  It was noted that the Chair had 
been elected as Chair of the Wales Pension Partnership Joint Governance 
Committee at the meeting on 28 June, 2019 for the ensuing year.   
 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that the majority of WPP’s recent work had 
been on the Fixed Income Sub-funds.  The Committee noted the draft 
Responsible Investment Policy and the Pension Fund Manager advised that 
more work was needed on this to ensure that it was flexible enough for local 
decisions to be made. 
 
In response to a question, the Pension Fund Manager advised that WPP’s 
workplan would be monitored by the host authority and Joint Governance 
Committee meetings.  He agreed to send the most up to date version of the plan 
to the Committee. 
  

9.  EXEMPT ITEM  

 
RESOLVED to exclude the public for the following items of business on the 
grounds that there would be disclosure to them of exempt information 
under category 3 of The Local Authorities (Access to Information) 
(Variation) (Wales) Order 2007). 

 

10.  WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP [WPP] UPDATE  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that it was likely that the Fixed Income Sub-
funds would be launched before the end of 2019 and assets transitioned as soon 
as possible thereafter.  The Committee noted that the WPP operator [Link Fund 
Solutions] was to visit all Authority funds and would visit Powys in October.  

 

11.  MEDIUM TERM ASSET ALLOCATION [MTAA] UPDATE  

 
The Committee noted the Medium Term Asset Allocation [MTAA] 
report to 31 March, 2019.  Performance is ahead of the benchmark for the 
quarter but behind since conception.  The value added since March 2011 is 
£1.0m. 

Page 7



2019-07-01 Pensions & Investment Committee 

 

12.  SUSPENSION OF MTAA MANDATE PROPOSAL  

 
The Committee considered the proposal that the MTAA mandate be suspended 
from 30 June 2019.  It noted that over time the Portfolio complexity had 
increased and that the fund was now covered by the equity protection overlay.  In 
addition, the Committee was undertaking an investment strategy review.  The 
Committee noted that performance would still be reviewed on a quarterly rather 
than daily basis. 
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That MTAA mandate is suspended 
from 30 June 2019. 

To better facilitate the equity protection 
strategy and to consider it again as 
part of a further investment strategy 
review. 

 

13.  QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT  

 
The Committee received the Q1 Quarterly Monitoring report.  It noted the asset 
value had increased by £37m over the quarter.  The Committee was advised that 
the Fund had underperformed relative to the benchmark, but it was difficult to 
identify what had affected performance.  Markets had been flat from March - May 
but improvements had occurred during June and it was agreed that a new report 
up to the end of June would be circulated to the Committee. 

 

14.  FORWARD LOOKING BUSINESS PLAN  

 
The Committee noted the Forward Looking business plan.  The Committee noted 
that cyber crime was identified as future training with additional work due to be 
undertaken around the topic.  The Pension Board Chair advised that the Pension 
Regulator was highlighting cyber crime as an important issue to address.  
Officers agreed to check whether all Councillor Members of the Committee were 
up to date with their cyber security training. 
 
  

 
 
 

County Councillor P E Lewis (Chair) 

Page 8



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 10 July 2019 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE POWYS PENSIONS BOARD HELD AT CH 216 
ON WEDNESDAY, 10 JULY 2019 

 
PRESENT 
Gerard Moore, Chair 
Nigel Brinn (Employers Representative) 
Wayne Thomas (Employers Representative) 
Mick Hutchison (Member Representative) 
 
Chris Hurst (Pension Fund Manager, Secretary to the Board) 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were received from John Byrne, Member representative. 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
The Chair advised he was an Associate in The Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy [CIPFA] and declared an interest if reference was 
made to CIPFA when discussing the Board’s training.  The Board accepted that 
this did not constitute a conflict of interests. 

 

3.  MINUTES OF THE BOARD  

 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 3 April, 2019 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

 

4.  MATTERS ARISING  

 
There were no matters arising. 

 

5.  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
The Chair reported the following: 

 Scheme Advisory Board [SAB] – the SAB was to issue a survey and it 
was noted that this would seek views on the number of members on 
Boards.  The SAB would consider the responses received. 

 Dual interests of Administering Authority – good practice in other 
authorities was noted and it was agreed that this issue would be added to 
a future agenda. 

 The summary of The Pension Regulator’s [TPR] talk at a recent 
Conference would be shared with the Board. 

 Checklist regarding cybercrime – the checklist would be shared with the 
Board and the Pension Fund Manager would consider whether to utilise 
this. 

 
Draft Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19 
The SAB expected that Pension Boards review Fund’s Annual Reports prior to 
publication.  The Pension Fund Manager advised that the document was work in 
progress and would be formally approved by the Pensions & Investment 
Committee in October and published in December.   
 

Page 9

4



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 10 July 2019 
 

The Board noted the performance information and that the Pension Fund 
Manager would raise issues if performance was deteriorating or if the 
performance of other service areas or third parties impacted on the Pension 
Teams’ work.    In response to questions about the best way of demonstrating 
competency of Committee Members, the Pension Fund Manager advised that 
the Training Needs Analysis matrix could be used in a desensitised way. 
 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that work has commenced towards 
producing a draft Socially Responsible Investment Policy, using the responses of 
the Pensions and Investment Committee Members to a recent survey on this 
issue.  The Board noted that it would have the opportunity to comment on the 
draft policy.  The Chair advised that the Board’s role was to seek assurances that 
the Committee had complied with the relevant regulations and guidance rather 
than influencing the Committee’s policy on any issue.  
 
The Board agreed to discuss the draft Annual Report at the next meeting. 
 
The Board agreed to recommend that good practice regarding managing 
the dual role of County Councillors and as Pensions and Investment 
Committee Members should be adopted, following further discussion at the 
next meeting. 

 

6.  MINUTES OF PENSIONS AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE  

 
The Board received and noted the Pensions and Investment Committee’s 
minutes for 8 March 2019 and 21 June 2019.    

 

7.  REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE WITH TPR CODE 14  

 
The Board reviewed the following sections and made the following comments 
[numbers refer to the Compliance indicator]: 
 
Reporting breaches [244 - 270] 
The Board noted that a “Fast Track” reporting process had been adopted to deal 
with any breaches between meetings.  The breach would be communicated to 
officers, the S151 Officer and the Pensions & Investment Committee Chair and 
Powys Pension Board Chair would be advised.  It was noted that this process 
had been utilised in respect of the recent recordable breaches.   
 
Administration [124 - 146] 
140 - Migration of data to the new system had been completed and that a data 
cleanse had been undertaken.  It was agreed to keep the risk as amber until the 
process had been fully completed.  The date would now change to July 2019. 
 
Resolving issues [216 - 240] 
222 - The two-stage complaints resolution process was noted. 

 

8.  BREACHES LOG  

 
The Board received the report regarding the two breaches. 
 

Page 10



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 10 July 2019 
 

The Board agreed that the two breaches were correctly deemed as 
recordable only. 
  

9.  GOOD GOVERNANCE PROJECT  

 
The Chair advised that most respondents considered that the governance 
arrangements within the LGPS generally were good and that the report by the 
consultants to the Scheme Advisory Board might indicate a majority response 
indicating that only minor tweaks were required. 
 
The Board noted the content of the report. 

 

10.  CYBER SECURITY UPDATE  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that the Powys ICT Department had now 
confirmed that the internal procedures that they have in place demonstrated a 
high level of online security.  Since the report had been written the Committee 
had completed some cyber security training, which had raised some valid issues 
in respect of the procedures required to manage any breach. 
 
The Board agreed that training for the Board would be undertaken on cyber 
security following one of its meetings. 
 
The Board noted the content of the report. 

 

11.  DATA QUALITY TESTING UPDATE  

 
The Board received the report and noted the improvements.    The Board was 
advised that SAB was looking at introducing a common “scheme specific” set of 
data items from next year.  The Pension Fund Manager advised that the testing 
process highlighted those areas where further work was required. 
 
The Board noted the report and noted the progress. 

 

12.  REVIEW OF RISK REGISTER [STANDING ITEMS]  

 
The Board noted that there were no changes since the last report. 
 
The Board raised the following comments [the numbers shown are the Risk 
Reference numbers]:  
Risk Owner – it was agreed that the post rather than post holder would be 
recorded. 
PEN030 – the proposed further actions/controls were noted 
PEN033 – the Pension Fund Manager updated the Board on the progress on the 
Transfer of Workflow and Imaging Systems. 
 
The Board agreed to recommend that with the assurances received, the 
Risk rating for PEN033 should be changed from red to amber. 
 
The Pension Fund Manager agreed to re-publish the Register after updating it 
and amending target dates. 
 

Page 11



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 10 July 2019 
 

 

13.  NEW LEGISLATION AND GUIDANCE [STANDING ITEM]  

 
There was no new legislation or guidance to note. 

 

14.  WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP - INVESTMENT POOLING UPDATE 
[STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Chair reported that the meeting between WPP and Board Chairs had been 
extremely helpful and previous anxieties had been acknowledged and 
addressed.    
 
The Board confirmed that it was happy for the Pension Fund Manager to provide 
a summary report of WPP meetings with links to agendas and minutes.    
 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that the majority of WPP’s recent work had 
been on the Fixed Income Sub-funds.  It is hoped that the funds would be 
launched before the end of 2019.  The Board noted that a Responsible 
Investment Policy was being developed, which would be flexible enough for local 
decisions to be made.  WPP had reviewed its communication and this would be 
developed.  The Board noted that a budget and work programme had been 
published. 

 

15.  ADMINISTRATION ACTIVITY REPORT [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board noted the report which showed a snapshot of fund activity. 

 

16.  CESSATION OF CONTRACTING OUT - UPDATE [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised the Board that revised timescales from third 
parties were expected soon. 

 

17.  BOARD MEMBER TRAINING [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board noted a CIPFA event in Cardiff in October, 2019. 
 
The Board noted the Chair’s document on responsible investments, written in 
2018 and that a progress report on this issue would be made to the Board.  
Training on cyber security would be undertaken.  

 

18.  INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE [IDRP] UPDATE 
[STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board noted that there were no on-going or new disputes. 

 

19.  CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS  

 
RESOLVED that the public be excluded for the following items of business 
otherwise there would be disclosure to them of information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person or organisation. 
 

 

Page 12



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 10 July 2019 
 

 

20.  DRAFT PENSION FUND BUSINESS PLAN  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that the Fund did not currently have a 
published business plan and this was the initial draft for discussion and 
comment. 
 
The Board agreed to forward comments on the draft Business Plan to the 
Pension Fund Manager by email and to discuss the final draft at the next 
meeting. 

 

21.  AUDIT REPORTS [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board received the Audit report published in May 2017. 
 
The Board considered the Control Areas, which Audit had been found to have 
Moderate Control: 

 Bandings – it was noted that the pension banding was the responsibility of 
the employer.  The Chair suggested that it would be useful to share the 
Auditors findings at the annual Employers meeting. 

 Refunds – the Pension Fund Manager advised that although not all 
refunds are double-checked by an independent authoriser (in addition to 
the self-checking of the processor), spot checks for accuracy are regularly 
undertaken.  

 System reconciliation – the Board noted that since the report, monthly 
reconciliations with several employers are now run. 

 Voucher payments – the Pension Fund Manager advised that at the time 
of the Audit a new system was in operation.  This had now been in 
operation for two years and no issues had been raised. 

 
The Board noted the report and the assurances provided by the Pension 
Fund Manager.    

 

22.  REVIEW OF RISKS  

 
The Board did not identify any new risks. 

 

23.  FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS  

 
The Board noted the following meeting dates: 
11 September, 2019 [rather than 5 September] 
8 November, 2019 
 

 
 
 

Gerard Moore 
Chair 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE POWYS PENSIONS BOARD HELD AT 
COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS, POWYS ON 

WEDNESDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

PRESENT 
Gerard Moore, Independent Chair 
Nigel Brinn (Employers Representative) 
Wayne Thomas (Employers Representative) 
Nick Hutchnson (Member Representative)   
 
Chris Hurst (Pension Fund Manager, Secretary to the Board) 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were received from John Byrne [Member Representative].  It was 
noted that Nigel Brinn [Employers Representative] would be arriving late, due to 
other Council business. 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
The Chair advised he was an Associate in The Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy [CIPFA] and declared an interest if reference was 
made to CIPFA when discussing the Board’s training.  The Board accepted that 
this did not constitute a conflict of interests. 

 

3.  MINUTES OF THE BOARD  

 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 10 July, 2019 were agreed as a correct 
record.  The Chair advised that an Executive Summary, for this meeting, would 
be included in the next Pensions & Investment Committee agenda.   

 

4.  MATTERS ARISING  

 
There were no matters arising. 

 

5.  CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
a) SAB [Scheme Advisory Board] survey - the Chair advised that the survey 

was due for circulation soon.   
 
The Board agreed that it would submit a collective response to the 
survey.  A response would be drafted by the Chair and Pension Fund 
Manager and circulated to the Board for comment.   
 
The Chair advised that the SAB may be considering the number of scheme 
member and employer representatives on Boards.  Rather than the minimum 
membership requirement of two plus two, consideration was being given to 
three plus three, which would make the Boards more resilient.  It was noted 
that appointment dates could be staggered to ensure continuity of knowledge 
and experience. 
 

Page 15



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 

The Board agreed to recommend to the Administering Authority that 
the membership of the Board should  
i) be increased from two scheme members plus two employer 

representatives to three plus three of each to ensure the resilience of 
the Board and   

ii) that the appointments of each should be staggered to ensure the 
continuity of knowledge and experience.   

 
b) The Chair advised that at the July SAB meeting it had been reported to the 

latter that the Pension Regulator [TPR] had recently fined a Local Authority 
Pension Fund for not advising the relevant scheme members its employer 
had not paid over its contributions.  It transpired that no fine had been levied.  
SAB had met with TPR and advised that such course of action was not 
required, as Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS] pensions funds are 
guaranteed in the event of the demise of an employer. 

 

6.  MINUTES OF PENSIONS AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE  

 
The Board noted the minutes of the Pensions & Investment Committee held on 
21 June, 2019 and the draft minutes of the meeting held on 1 July, 2019. 

 

7.  REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE WITH TPR CODE 14  

 
Following a red, amber and green analysis, the Board noted that there were no 
red indicators.  The Board reviewed the following sections and made the 
following comments [numbers refer to the Compliance indicator]: 
 
Conflicts of interest and representation [62 - 91] 
70 & 73 – the Board noted the procedures and documentation in place to comply 
with these.  The Board was therefore assured that the Authority complied 
with the Code and agreed that these should change to green.   
76 & 77 – The Board noted the potential conflict of interest of Pension & 
Investment Committee Members, where they had to act in the interest of the 
Pension Fund and also their roles as Councillors who need to manage the 
Council’s budget.  The Pension Fund Manager advised that further work would 
be done for the next Board meeting.  
84 & 91 - the Pension Fund Manager advised that these were to be reviewed. 
 
The Board noted that 81 had changed up to amber and 82 and 83 were now 
green.  
 
Managing Risks 
114 – the Board noted that an exercise on strength of employer’s covenants 
would be undertaken as part of the current valuation. 
115 -  the Board considered that this should change up to amber as the 
Investment Strategy Statement was currently under review and the MIFID II [The 
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II] needed to be taken into account. 
 
Nigel Brinn arrived at the meeting. 
 

Page 16



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 

116 – the Board noted that an Audit would be undertaken in October 2019. The 
Board recommended that a date for the receipt of the Audit report should be 
requested due to the delay in receipt of the previous report. 
 
Maintaining contributions 
147 to 171 – the Board noted the procedures and documentation in place to 
comply with these.  The Board was therefore assured that the Authority 
complied with the Code and agreed that these were now green.   

 

8.  BREACHES REGISTER  

 
The Board received the report regarding the two breaches and that there were 
no new breaches, since the last meeting. 
 
The Board agreed that the two breaches were correctly deemed as 
recordable only. 
  

9.  REVIEW OF RISK REGISTER AND CONSIDERATION OF ANY NEW RISKS 
[STANDING ITEMS]  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that the Register had been updated taking 
into account the comments at the last meeting.  He indicated that no new risks 
had been added.   
 
The following was considered [the numbers shown are the Risk Reference 
numbers]:  
PEN 003 – the Pension Fund Manager advised that as the valuation was 
currently underway it would be an appropriate time to review the cash flow after 
this was completed. 
PEN 007/008/009/010 – it was noted that these were related to the covenant 
review and conflicts of interest, with further work planned. 
PEN014 – the Chair advised that he was discussing this with the Pension Fund 
Manager. 
PEN030 – the Pension Fund Manager advised that he would establish the 
procedure for appointment of asset managers at the Wales Pension Partnership 
level, to ascertain whether there was evidence to justify reducing the inherent 
risk [red] to a residual risk of amber [medium].  
PEN033 – the Pension Fund Manager updated the Board on the progress on the 
Transfer of Workflow and Imaging Systems and advised that an update report 
would be made to the next meeting. 
 
The Board agreed to recommend that a risk should be added in respect of 
ongoing compliance with MIFID. 
 

 

10.  TRIENNIAL VALUATION  

 
The Chair updated the Board on the Triennial valuation process, explaining the 
role of the Board in this exercise. 
 
 
 

Page 17



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 

 

11.  RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT  

 
The Board noted the report regarding Responsible Investment for the Powys 
Pension Fund. 
 
The Board considered the issues of responsible investment and the fiduciary 
responsibilities placed on the Pension and Investment Committee.  It was noted 
that officers would look at how to keep Councillors informed of the progress 
being made on this issue. 
 
The Board agreed that it should seek assurances that the Pension and 
Investment Committee has considered all issues including climate change 
when developing both its Responsible Investment Policy and its 
Investment Strategy Statement.   
 
Nigel Brinn left the meeting for other Council business. 

 

12.  WALES PENSION PARTNERSHIP - INVESTMENT POOLING UPDATE 
[STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board noted the report regarding the Wales Pension Partnership [WPP].  
The Pension Fund Manager advised that investment performance work was 
ongoing.  It is hoped that the WPP website would go “live” as soon as possible 
after the Joint Governance Committee meeting on 20 September, 2019.  The 
Board noted that the WPP’s communications had improved. 
  

13.  2019 ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENT EXERCISE  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that the Annual Benefits Statements had 
been completed within the required timescales.  The Board thanked the officers 
involved, for their work and for maintaining their 100% achievement in this area 
of work.   

 

14.  ADMINISTRATION ACTIVITY REPORT [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board noted the report which showed a snapshot of fund activity.  The Board 
noted that the number of scheme members had increased.  The Board was 
mindful that the Fund was cash flow negative on a month by month basis, with 
the benefits paid out exceeding the inflows from scheme member and scheme 
employer contributions and investment income. 

 

15.  CESSATION OF CONTRACTING OUT - UPDATE [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Pension Fund Manager advised the Board that revised timescales had been 
received from third parties and that the project would be completed by May/June 
2020.  Although this was a delay to the original timescale, it was important that 
the work is completed correctly.  The testing of “live” data would take place 
toward the end of 2019.  It was noted that several funds that had appointed third 
parties to complete this project, causing delays when working towards similar 
timescales. 

 

Page 18



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 

 

16.  NEW LEGISLATION AND GUIDANCE (STANDING ITEM)  

 
Officers apologised for not adding this document to the agenda.  The report 
would be circulated to the Board.   
 
Post meeting note –  
The report was circulated to the Board on 12 September, 2019.  The Board 
noted and understood these changes and gained assurance that they will be 
implemented appropriately. 

 

17.  BOARD COMMUNICATIONS LOG (STANDING ITEM)  

 
The Board noted the list of communications issued to it between meetings.  As 
part of its obligations for appropriate knowledge and skills, the Board studies 
such information. 

 

18.  AUDIT REPORTS [STANDING ITEM]  

 
As previously advised the internal Audit would take place in mid-October. 

 

19.  INTERNAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE [IDRP] UPDATE 
[STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board noted that there were no on-going or new disputes. 

 
 

20.  BOARD MEMBER TRAINING [STANDING ITEM]  

 
The Board would undertake training on cyber security. 

 

21.  CONFIDENTIAL ITEM  

 
RESOLVED that the public be excluded for the following items of business 
otherwise there would be disclosure to them of information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person or organisation. 

 

22.  CYBER SECURITY TRAINING  

 
The Board was taken through Cyber security training. 
 
The Pension Fund Manager advised that as a result of the training, he was 
drafting a Fund Incident response procedure, which would complement the 
Council’s ICT procedures, already in place. 
 
The Board moved back into public session.   

 

23.  FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS  

 
The Board noted the meeting dates: 
8 November, 2019 
 

Page 19



Powys Pensions Board Wednesday, 11 September 2019 
 

2020 
13 February 
22 May 
14 September 
9 November 

 
 

Gerard Moore 
Chair 

Page 20



2019.  
 

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Pensions and Investment Committee 
4th October 2019 

 
REPORT BY: Head of Finance 
  
SUBJECT: New Admission Body – Shaw healthcare (Group) 

Limited 
  
 

REPORT FOR: Information 

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 Committee are asked to note that Shaw healthcare (Group) Limited has 

become a Pension Fund employer following the transfer of the BUPA 
Care Homes staff, who were formally employees of Powys County 
Council.  

 
2 Legislation 
 
2.1 Paragraph 1(d)(i) of Part 3 of Schedule 2 to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 [SI. 2013 No. 2356] provides that a 
Pension Fund may enter into an admission agreement with a body who 
provides a service that was formerly provided by a Scheme employer, 
as a consequence of a transfer of undertakings. In addition, the 
requirements of the Welsh Authorities Staff Transfers (Pensions) 
Direction 2012 applies in this case. The admission agreement 
discharges these requirements.  

 
3 Actuarial Assessment 
 
3.1 The Pension Fund’s Actuary has advised that Shaw healthcare (Group) 

Limited should pay an employer’s contribution rate of 27.4% of 
pensionable payroll for the main care homes and 32.2% for the 
Brynhyfryd Care home contract. 24 employees are covered by the 
admission agreement, which is closed. 

 
4 Recommendation 
 
4.1 To note the contents of this report. 
 

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 

 To note the admittance of Shaw 
healthcare (Group) Limited to the 
Powys Pension Fund. 

As per report 

Person(s) To Action 
Decision: 

Pension Fund Manager 

Page 21

5



Date By When Decision To Be Actioned: Immediately 

Relevant Policy 
(ies): 

N/A 

Within Policy: N/A Within 
Budget: 

N/A 

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email: 

Chris Hurst 01597 827640 01597 826290 churst@powys.gov.uk 

 

Relevant Portfolio Member(s): Cllr Aled Davies 

Relevant Local Member(s): N/A 

 

Page 22



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Pension and Investment Committee 
4th October 2019 

 
REPORT AUTHOR:  Head of Finance 
 
SUBJECT:    Global Equity Transition 
 

 
REPORT FOR:   Information 
 

 

1.1 On 6th September 2018 the Committee made the decision to invest the Funds 
active global equity allocation into the Wales PP Global Growth Fund.  
  

1.2 On 14th January 2019, shares were redeemed in MFS (£44.9m) and Carnegie 
(£27.6m) and the proceeds, £72.5m, were invested into the Wales PP Global 
Growth Fund.   

 

1.3 The transition management allocating Funds from Hosking to the Wales PP Global 
Growth Fund was undertaken by Northern Trust. The subscription (£37.4m) 
settlement date was 15th August 2019.  

 

1.4 The Fund’s active global equity allocation is now fully subscribed to the Wales PP 
Global Growth Fund. 

 

  Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 
 

Pension and Investment Committee 
note the content of this report 
 

For information 

 

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Email: 

Daniel Paley 01597 826042 daniel.paley@powys.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 23

6



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Pension and Investment Committee 
4th October 2019 

 
REPORT AUTHOR:  Head of Finance 
 
SUBJECT:    Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19 
 

 
REPORT FOR:   Decision 
 

 

1.1 In accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, 
Powys County Council as the Administering Authority of the Powys Pension Fund 
must prepare a Pension Fund Annual Report for the year beginning the 1st April. 
The report must be published on or before 1st December. 
  

1.2 The Wales Audit Office have audited the report which includes the accounts of the 
Pension Fund which were approved by Audit Committee on 6th September 2019.   

 

1.3 In addition to the Fund accounts, the Pension Fund Annual Report includes key 
current statements relating to the scheme, a Chairman’s Statement, a Pension 
Board report alongside additional performance measurement and statistical 
information. 

 

 

  Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 
 

That Pension and Investment 
Committee considers and approves 
the 2018-19 Pension Fund Annual 
Report. 
 
The Annual Report be published by 
the 1st December 2019. 
 
 

To ensure compliance with the 
Statutory Requirements. 

 

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Email: 

Daniel Paley 01597 826042 daniel.paley@powys.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 25

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  

Pension Fund 

Annual Report 

2018/19 

Page 27



 

2 

  

Contents 
Chairman’s Statement ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Pension Fund Accounts.................................................................. 5 

Pension Board Report ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

Scheme Management and Advisors ............................................................................................................ 11 

Risk Management .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

Financial Performance .................................................................................................................................. 12 

Fund Administration Report ......................................................................................................................... 13 

Scheme Statistics and Performance ........................................................................................................... 17 

Investment Policy and Performance Report ............................................................................................... 23 

Post pool reporting ........................................................................................................................................ 27 

Net Assets Statement .................................................................................................................................... 28 

Pension Fund Account .................................................................................................................................. 28 

Notes to the Pension Accounts ................................................................................................................... 29 

The independent auditor’s statement of the Auditor General for Wales to the members of Powys 

Pension Fund on the Annual Report ........................................................................................................... 48 

Statement of the Actuary for the Year Ended 31 March ............................................................................ 49 

Appendix 1: Pensions and Investment Committee .................................................................................... 52 

Appendix 2: Pension Board .......................................................................................................................... 54 

Appendix 3: Fund Employers ....................................................................................................................... 55 

Appendix 4: Investment Strategy Statement .............................................................................................. 56 

Appendix 5: Governance Statement ............................................................................................................ 76 

Appendix 6: Funding Strategy Statement ................................................................................................... 86 

Appendix 7: Communications Policy ........................................................................................................ 105 

Glossary of Terms ....................................................................................................................................... 110 

 

 

  

Page 28



ANNUAL REPORT 

3 

  

Page 29



 

4 

Chairman’s Statement 
Welcome to the Annual Report of the Powys Pension Fund. This report covers the year 
ending 31 March 2019 – a year that has seen periods of positive returns on various asset 
classes, together with tougher periods of poorer performance towards the end of the 
calendar year. It is also the year that has seen some milestones achieved in collaborative 
working as part of the Wales Pension Partnership (WPP). 
 
During the year, the Powys Pension Fund has continued to work alongside the other 
Welsh LGPS Funds as part of the Wales Pension Partnership, with the culmination of the 
hard work being the transition of the first assets into the Global Equity sub-funds in 
January 2019. 
 
Powys Pension Fund took part in this initial transition and successfully transitioned 
approximately £72.5 million of its Global Equity portfolio into the Global Growth sub-fund. 
 
The development of this partnership between the 8 Welsh Funds to enable pooling of 
Welsh LGPS Fund assets, will hopefully generate improved returns and lower investment 
costs through the benefits of scale and the transition of the global equities marks an 
important step in working towards achieving this. 
 
We look forward to continuing to work closely with our LGPS colleagues in Wales as part 
of this exciting collaboration and the opportunities that will come along, as we work to 
design sub-funds for the next set of asset classes. 
 
Towards the end of 2017, the Powys Fund decided to move away from a fund of funds 
approach for the hedge fund asset class by appointing four individual hedge fund 
managers, each bringing differing approaches and offering what we believe is the best fit 
for the Powys Fund. In late 2018 subscriptions were made into the CFM Institutional 
Systematic Diversified Fund LP and IPM Systematic Macro Fund with investments into the 
Stone Milliner Macro Fund and the Man Alternative Risk Premia Fund following shortly 
afterwards. 
 
Work on the next triennial valuation is due to take place during the 2019/20 year and the 

Powys Fund is expecting to see an improvement in the funding position from the 2016 

valuation, mainly due to the excellent investment returns on equities seen since then. With 

that in mind and the uncertainties around Brexit together with the future performance of the 

equity market, the fund decided to implement an equity protection overlay strategy towards 

the end of the financial year, to protect against any sudden downturns in the equity market. 

I trust that you will find this year’s report interesting and informative. Should you have any 
comments on this report or any aspect of the Pension Fund or the Local Government 
Pension Scheme, see Appendix 3 for details of how to contact us.   
 
 
 
Cllr Peter Lewis 
Chair of the Pensions and Investment Committee 

Page 30



ANNUAL REPORT 

5 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Pension Fund 

Accounts 
The Council’s Responsibilities as Administering Authority  

The Council is required to: 

• Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to 
ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of 
those affairs. For Powys County Council, that officer is the the Section 151 
Officer. 

• Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources 
and safeguard its assets. 

• Approve the Pension Fund Accounts. 

These accounts were approved by Audit Committee on the 6 September 2019. 

Signature:     Date 6 September 2019 

Audit Committee Chairman 

Section 151 Officer Responsibilities 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Pension Fund’s Accounts 

in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code of Practice”). These 

accounts are required to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund at 

the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year. 

In preparing the Pension Fund Accounts, the Section 151 Officer has: 

• Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 

• Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and consistent. 

• Complied with the Code of Practice. 

The Section 151 Officer has also: 

• Kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 

• Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

Certificate of the Section 151 Officer on the Accounts of Powys County Council 

Pension Fund for 2018/19. 

I certify that the accounts set out on pages 28 to 47 present a true and fair view of the 

financial position of Powys County Council Pension Fund as at 31 March 2019 and its 

income and expenditure for the year then ended. 

 

Signature:   Date 6 September 2019 

J Thomas, Head of Finance 

Page 31



 

6 

Pension Board Report 
1 Constitution, Representation and Attendance 

1.1 The Powys County Council LGPS Local Pension Board (“the Board”) was 

constituted under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. As such, the Board is not a 

Committee of the Council.  

1.2 It held its first meeting on 31 July 2015. It consists of two representatives of the 

Scheme employers, and two representatives of the Scheme members, all of whom 

are voting members. There is also a non-voting independent Chair. A vacancy 

arose at the start of the year which was filled in due course.  

1.3 The Board met on three occasions during the year on the following dates in 2018: 

10 July, 21 September and 30 November. Each meeting was quorate, with the 

overall attendance level at 80%. The planned fourth meeting was re-scheduled to 

the first week of the new financial year. 

 10 Jul 18 21 Sep 18 30 Nov 18 

Gerard Moore: 
Independent Chair 

  

John Byrne: 
Scheme Member representative 

  

Mick Hutchinson: 
Scheme Member representative 

  

Wayne Thomas: 
Scheme Employer representative 

  

Nigel Brinn: 
Scheme Employer representative 

N/A N/A x 

 
1.4 Board meetings are open to the public, other than when considering exempt items. 

1.5 To facilitate the operation of the Board, the Chair is invited as an observer to 

meetings of the Powys County Council Pensions and Investment Committee (“the 

Committee”).  

2 Functions and Operation of the Board 

2.1 The two primary functions of a Local Pension Board (LPB) are to assist the 

Administering Authority to: 

 ensure effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS; 

 ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. 

2.2 It therefore has a monitor/assist/review/scrutinize purpose, rather than being a 

decision making body. It could be seen as being a critical but supportive friend. It 

sets its own agenda, and can be selective and probe particular topics in more depth 

than the Committee with its wider range of statutory responsibilities. As such, the 

general approach of the Board is to seek assurances with evidence from the Fund 

and external bodies that it is meeting its objectives, producing its required 

statements, managing its risks, etc. so as to achieve the overall objectives as set 

Page 32



ANNUAL REPORT 

7 

out in paragraph 2.1 above. It can and does commission its own reports, and where 

appropriate, makes recommendations to the Committee and to officers. 

2.3 In so doing, the Board is helping manage the reputational risk of both the Fund and 

the Administering Authority. This is more critical now that the LGPS in England and 

Wales has both the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) and the Pensions Regulator (TPR) as its regulators. The Administering 

Authority, and in extreme circumstances Board members, can be fined by TPR, who 

also has other powers available.  

2.4 The Board is supported by the Board Secretary and operates under Terms of 

Reference which were initially agreed by Powys County Council in January 2015. 

They were reviewed at the September 2018 Board meeting, at which 

recommendations were made for re-wording to reflect the development of the 

Wales Pensions Partnership. The url for current Terms of Reference is shown in 

paragraph 7.1. 

2.5 In 2018/2019 the direct costs of operating the Board, covering travel and training 

expenses relating to Board members and the fees and expenses of the 

Independent Chair amounted to £16,471. These costs do not include any indirect 

costs relating to officer time nor any apportioned costs for the use of the Council’s 

premises, systems or services recharged to the Fund by the Council. There was a 

specific budget of £23,021. Board members are covered by indemnity insurance. 

Mindful of delivering value for money, the Board endeavours to work in a cost-

effective manner, as its costs are reflected in employer contribution rates.  

3 Detailed Work of the Board 

3.1 Overview 

3.1.1 This is the fourth Annual Report produced by the Board. Since their inception, Local 

Pension Boards have become increasingly visible, as have the expectations of both 

TPR and the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB).  

3.1.2 As such, Boards are in a continuous state of evolution. This has manifested itself in 

a number of ways. There is an increasing dialogue between Board members 

between formal meetings. This is especially true between the Board Chair and the 

Board Secretary.  

3.1.3 To further improve the communication links between the Board and the Committee, 

the Board Chair now produces and formally presents to the Committee an 

Executive Summary from each Board meeting showing any specific 

recommendations made by the Board, with justifications, what assurances it has 

gained on behalf of the Committee, and any other matters considered to be relevant 

to the Committee.  

3.1.4 The main elements of the work programme of the Board are governance, and 

oversight of the pensions administration function, which is run by an in-house team. 

3.1.5 Paragraph 4 sets out further examples of how the Board is endeavouring to help 

manage the reputational risk of the Fund. Such a focus seeks assurances that the 

Fund is complying with its responsibilities and obligations. Where appropriate, these 

reviews are extended to ensure that all scheme employers are similarly complying, 

as their efficient, accurate and timely supply of information and data is critical to the 

Page 33



 

8 

Fund avoiding poor key performance indicators, but more fundamentally, avoiding 

breaches of the law, inaccurate data, inaccurate contribution rates and 

inappropriate investment decisions. 

3.2 Risk management 

3.2.1 A separate Risk Register is produced for the Pension Fund. The detailed 

assessment of the likelihood of each risk occurring and its impact had been judged 

in the light of the existence of the Board as an additional scrutiny resource. Review 

of the Risk Register is a standing item at Board meetings. During the year, the 

Board made various recommendations regarding the Risk Register. These included 

making reference to advantages in succession planning for key pensions staff. The 

Board was assured that a staffing structure is now in place that can cope with the 

ever increasing demands and complexities of pension administration. Cyber 

security and data protection continue to receive increased focus.   

3.3 The Pensions Regulator (TPR) 

3.3.1 The Pensions Regulator examines the Scheme on an ongoing basis and has, for 

example, highlighted delays across LGPS Funds in producing Annual Benefit 

Statements (ABS’s). The Board was pleased to note that Powys Pension Fund once 

again produced its ABS’s by the due date but nevertheless continues to seek 

assurances that the next set of ABS’s will once again be delivered on time. 

3.3.2 A key achievement of the Board has been to commence, with the Board Secretary, 

a continuous review of the Fund against the standards and expectations as 

reflected in TPR’s Code of Practice 14. The assessment identifies areas in which 

the Fund needs to make improvements. The Board has initially looked at the “red 

and amber” items but would also challenge the areas assessed as “green”, so 

seeking assurance that the evidence supports this level. 

3.3.3 The Board monitors TPR’s annual review of its priorities, and reflects these in 

agenda setting. Powys was not in the LGPS cohort of 10 Funds visited by TPR. 

3.3.4 A significant addition was made in 2018/19 to the contents of TPR’s Scheme 

Annual Return, which is an obligatory document to be returned within a set 

deadline, with which Powys complied. The return shows percentages for 

completeness and accuracy of “common data” and “scheme specific data”. Using 

this 2018/19 data as a baseline, TPR will be measuring and seeking annual 

improvements in data quality. Whilst data quality for Powys was of a high level, 

nevertheless a Data Improvement Plan is now in place, which the Board will 

continue to monitor as a key part of its Work Programme.  

3.4 Reporting and Recording Breaches 

3.4.1 The Board, and all associated with the Fund, other than individual scheme 

members, have a responsibility to report significant breaches of law to TPR. 

Following the improved procedures implemented in the previous year, the Board 

reviews any breaches of the law as a standing item on its agenda. During 2018/19, 

none of the recorded breaches were deemed to be of material significance to the 

TPR, hence no breaches were formally reported via the Administering Authority. A 

fast track reporting system is now in place for reporting breaches of material 

significance to TPR in a timely manner.  

Page 34



ANNUAL REPORT 

9 

3.5 Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) 

3.5.1 The Board monitors the focus and priorities of the SAB, takes them into account in 

setting its Work Programme, and also receives minutes of SAB meetings.  

3.5.2 The SAB commissions periodic surveys of local pension boards, with the second 

such survey scheduled for 2019/20.  

3.6  Review of Investment Issues 

3.6.1 Whilst the vast majority of the Board’s work programme focuses on administration 

and governance issues, investment issues are not ignored. 

3.6.2 As expected under the relevant Investment Regulations, the Board continues to 

monitor the on-going consideration and development of an appropriate strategy for 

responsible investment, as reflected in the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement. 

3.6.3 The Board continued to receive updates on progress by the Wales Pension 

Partnership on pooling of assets. There was been recent engagement by the host 

authority with the eight LPB Chairs. On behalf of the Board, the Chair responded to 

the informal MHCLG Guidance on Asset Pooling, with specific reference to those 

paragraphs which related to the role of Local Pension Boards. 

3.6.4 The Board keeps a watchful eye on on-going compliance with MiFID II, particularly 

should there be any changes of key staff with investment expertise.  

3.7 Scheme documents 

3.7.1 The Board examines the range of scheme documents expected to be in place. It 

has reported where it found gaps or a need to update. The Board recommended 

expanding some of the content in the Annual Report. 

3.7.2 The Board pays particular regard to those standard documents which are sent to 

scheme members and has made recommendations regarding their content. 

4. Ensuring Compliance with Regulatory Deadlines. 

4.1 An increasing component of the Board’s agenda is ensuring compliance with 

regulatory deadlines, some of which represent an annual requirement, whilst others

 relate to the effective dates of new legislation and regulations. In all cases progress 

reports are received with the Board considering whether any recommendations are 

appropriate to help meet the deadlines. 

4.2 Annual requirements include producing Annual Benefit Statements for active 

members, Pension Savings Statements and the submission of the Scheme Annual 

Return to the TPR. Powys Pension Fund complied with these deadlines. 

4.3 Other specific deadlines included compliance with the General Data Protection 

Regulations (GDPR: 25 May 2018) and the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) 

reconciliation exercise. At the same time it is appropriate to continue to review on-

going compliance of recently implemented legislation, such as GDPR and MiFID II 

(into effect 3 January 2018). 

5. Training 

5.1 Each Board member must be conversant with the details of the Scheme, which 

translates as having a good working knowledge. The training policy for Board 

members is based on an individual training needs analysis and is therefore being 

Page 35



 

10 

individually tailored. This allows use of both the CIPFA Framework and TPR Toolkit. 

In addition, Board members are informed of external training opportunities such as 

CIPFA Pensions Network events and the annual LGA/LGPS Trustees Conference. 

5.2 Board members are encouraged to attend at least two LGPS-focussed 

seminars/conferences each year. Training is often targeted to specific events, e.g. 

the Triennial Valuation 2019, and the General Data Protection Regulations. 

5.3 Board members are invited to training provided for Committee members. New 

Board members receive one to one training with the Board Chair. 

6. Workplan 

6.1 The work plan for 2019/20 covers the separate activity areas of: 

 Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 

 administration, including Key Performance Indicators, the Data Improvement 
Plan and, potentially, Value for Money studies 

 audit and risk management, including the Risk Register  

 governance; including conflicts of interest, recording and if appropriate 
reporting breaches, and compliance with TPR’s Code of Practice 14 

 investments, including developments with the Wales Pension Partnership: 
implications for Administering Authorities  

 external deadlines  

 training 

 member communications 

 participating in and learning from relevant surveys, e.g. of SAB and TPR. 

6.2 There is flexibility to allow for any additional reviews and developments.  

7. Public accountability 

7.1  As well as being open to the public, the agendas, minutes and the Board’s Terms of 

Reference are available on the Authority’s website at the following address: 

https://www.powyspensionfund.org/powys-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/  

The Chair of Powys County Council’s LGPS Local Pension Board wishes to thank his 

fellow Board members who have volunteered their time and energies in their roles. Thanks 

are also expressed to the Board Secretary, the Chair of the Pensions and Investments 

Committee, the Cabinet Manager for Legal, Scrutiny and Democratic Services, and to 

other support officers. 

 
 
Gerard Moore 
Independent Chair 
Powys County Council LGPS Local Pension Board 

Page 36

https://www.powyspensionfund.org/powys-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/


ANNUAL REPORT 

11 

Scheme Management and Advisors 
 

The Pensions & Investment Committee is the principal decision-making body for the 

Pension Fund responsible for management, investment and administration issues. The 

Committee is governed by its constitution which sets out the Committee’s authority, its 

membership and its overall mode of operation. 

Members of the Committee are drawn from Powys County Council as the administering 

authority with the addition of two further (non-voting) members representing Fund 

Employers and Scheme Members. The Committee receives advice and guidance from 

both Officers of Powys County Council and external professional advisers. From 5 May 

2018 the membership of the Committee was as follows: 

County Councillor P Lewis (Chair) 
County Councillor E A Jones (Vice Chair) 
County Councillor T Van-Rees  
County Councillor J Morris 
County Councillor H Williams 
County Councillor A Davies 
Mr A M C Weale (Fund Employers) 
Vacant (Scheme Members) 
 
Officers and Fund Advisors: 

Mrs J Thomas (s.151 Officer and Head of Finance) 
Mr C Hurst (Pension Fund Manager) 
Mr D Paley (Financial Reporting and Policy Accountant) 
Mrs R Pinder / Mr S Mayne – Aon (Investment Consultants) 
Mr C Archer – Aon (Actuary) 
Burges Salmon (Legal Advisers) 
 

Link Asset Services (Wales Pension Partnership FCA Authorised Operator) 

 

Page 37



 

12 

Risk Management 
 

The Fund uses a risk register to identify, manage and monitor risks to the Fund. The risk 

register can be found with the following link. 

https://www.powyspensionfund.org/media/4563/risk-register-revised-mar-2019.xlsx  

The Investment Strategy Statement (Appendix 4) highlights the Funds approach to risk, 

the assessment of risks and how they are managed. The Funding Strategy Statement 

(Appendix 6) includes the key risks and controls in place to mitigate them. 

At year end investment managers are requested to provide SSAE16/70 or equivalent type 

reports for review. Our Investment Advisors provide quarterly reports in line with 

Committee meetings to update on investment activity and performance over the period.   

 

Financial Performance  
Detailed information on the accounts of the Fund can be found later in the report. The 

main movements between years can be attributed to increases in the market value of the 

investments. The movements in non-investments assets and liabilities can be found in 

Note 13: Current Assets and Liabilities of the accounts. 

At the last valuation it was determined that the aggregate Employer total contribution rate 

required to restore the funding ratio to 100% using a recovery period of 22 years from 1 

April 2017 is 26.6% of pensionable pay. In 2018-19 contributions were received in timely 

manner.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38

https://www.powyspensionfund.org/media/4563/risk-register-revised-mar-2019.xlsx


ANNUAL REPORT 

13 

Fund Administration Report 

Scheme Details 
Powys County Council is the Administering Authority for the Powys Pension Fund. The 

Pension Fund provides pension entitlements under the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (“LGPS”) to all eligible employees of Powys County Council and other 

participating bodies. See appendix 2 for a list of the fund employers.  Membership of the 

LGPS is not mandatory and excludes teachers, police officers and fire fighters, for whom 

specific separate pension schemes are available. The LGPS is a statutory public service 

defined benefit pension scheme based on final salary for benefits accrued up to 31 March 

2014 and Career Average Revalued Earnings (“CARE”) for benefits accrued from 1 April 

2014. Contributions payable by employees and the benefits due to them are prescribed by 

the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations. 

Additional Voluntary Contribution (AVC) Scheme 
Since 6 April 1988, it has been a legal requirement for all pension schemes to provide 

members with access to an in-house AVC Scheme. The Powys Pension Fund’s appointed 

providers are the Equitable Life Assurance Society, the Standard Life Assurance Company 

and Prudential plc. Members are able to pay contributions into a variety of AVC 

arrangements offered by the providers, to secure additional pension benefits. The AVC 

investments are excluded from the Pension Fund Accounts but are disclosed for 

information in note 15. 

Changes to Scheme Rules  
During 2018/19 there have been two statutory instruments issued that have changed the 
rules governing the LGPS.  
 
The first was the Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2018, 
which came into force on 14 May 2018. These regulations clarify and amend previous 
regulations and introduce parity into the treatment of scheme members who fall under 
differing sets of regulations.  
 
The second set of changes were contained in the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Miscellaneous Amendment) Regulations 2018, which came into force on 10 January 
2019. These regulations clarify a number of matters introduced in the previous set of 
amendment regulations. 
 

The Pensions Regulator  
In April 2015 the Pensions Regulator published the Code of Practice no. 14: Governance 

and Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes. The Code applies to all schemes 

established under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and is directed at scheme 

managers and members of pension boards of public service schemes. The Code contains 

four parts:  

• Governing your scheme 

• Managing risks 

• Administration 

• Resolving issues 

Page 39



 

14 

Pension Fund officers and the Powys Pension Board will oversee and monitor the 

performance of the Powys Pension Fund against the Code. 

The Fund is required to complete an annual return to The Pensions Regulator and include 
scores on the quality of the Common and Scheme Specific Data, measured against the 
regulator’s specified criteria. In the latest return, the scores for the quality of Common Data 
was 93% and the Scheme Specific Data was 76%. 
 
A data improvement plan was published in October 2018, outlining how the Fund plan to 

tackle the highest priority cases and improve the quality of the data that it holds and, in 

turn, improve the above scores for future annual returns. 

Altair 
Since January 2011 the Pensions Team’s main administration system has been Altair. 

This system is used for holding membership data, the calculation of pension benefits, the 

generation of scheme documents and the data extracts required at each actuarial 

valuation. In addition, the Team also uses Civica Electronic Document Management 

(EDM) that provides document management and workflow monitoring facilities. 

A member self-service portal is also provided for scheme members use, enabling 24/7 

access for scheme members to their Powys Pension Fund pension benefits. 

The address for this facility is www.mypowyspension.co.uk. 

More detail on the online facility is included in the “My Powys Pension Engagement” 

section of this report. 

Performance Standards 
The Pensions Team has a number of service standards that it seeks to meet in order to 

ensure that it is providing an efficient and timely service to members of the LGPS. The 

standards are:  

New Active Members 

Membership Certificate: We aim to issue a Membership Certificate to a new 

member within one month of receiving a completed notification from the member’s 

employer. 

Transfers In: We aim to acknowledge the member’s request for transfer details and 

calculate the estimated benefits that a transfer value will buy and issue a quotation 

within 10 days of receiving details from the previous scheme and any additional 

essential information required from Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs. We aim to 

request payment of the transfer value within 5 days of receiving confirmation from 

the member that the transfer is to proceed. We aim to confirm the actual benefits 

purchased by the transfer value within 10 days of receiving payment from the 

previous scheme. 

  

Page 40

http://www.mypowyspension.co.uk/


ANNUAL REPORT 

15 

Existing Active Members 

Annual Benefit Statements: Provided pay details are received from employers 

promptly after the year end and provided we hold all of the relevant information, we 

will make available each year an Annual Benefit Statement to each member 

showing the estimated current value of accrued benefits, the value of prospective 

benefits at normal retirement age, the estimated current value of death-in-service 

benefits and, for tax purposes the amount of Annual Allowance used by the change 

in benefit value since the previous year. 

Paying Extra Contributions: We aim to provide information within 10 days of 

receiving a request from a member wishing to pay extra contributions.  

Retirements: We aim to send details of the benefits payable and pay the member’s 

tax-free cash lump sum within 10 days of receiving all of the information required 

from the member’s employer and/or the member. 

Deaths: We aim to send details of the benefits payable within 10 days of receiving 

all of the information required from the late member’s employer and we will pay the 

lump sum death grant within 10 days of receiving Grant of Probate (or other 

appropriate documentation) or authorisation from two delegated officers. 

Early Leavers: We aim to send details of the benefit options available within 30 

days of receiving all of the information required from the employer. 

Refunds: We aim to pay a refund by the end of the month following receipt of the 

member’s formal request for payment. 

Transfers Out: We aim to issue a quotation, guaranteed for 3 months, within 10 

days of receiving the member’s request and confirmation of the member’s 

contracted-out rights from Her Majesty's Revenue & Customs (where appropriate). 

We aim to pay a transfer value within five days of receiving confirmation from the 

member that the transfer is to be made and all of the information we require to 

make payment. 

Deferred Members 

Annual Benefit Statements: We aim to make available to each deferred member a 

Benefit Statement by 31 August annually, showing the current value of the 

member’s preserved benefits. 

Deferred Benefits into Payment: Provided we hold an address which has been 

confirmed we will write to the member setting out the benefit options available to 

them, at least 30 days prior to the date benefits become payable. 

 

The Powys Pension Fund aims to deliver an excellent experience to its 

stakeholders and scheme members, whilst constantly reviewing process in an 

attempt to deliver value for money. 

 

 

  

Page 41



 

16 

Communications 
An effective communications strategy is vital for any organisation that strives to provide a 

high quality and consistent service to its customers. The complexity of pensions in general 

and the LGPS in particular, places communications at the heart of a high quality service 

provision. Communication material is produced locally and on an all Wales basis in 

collaboration with the seven other Welsh LGPS Pension Funds. 

Powys Pension Fund communicates with all stakeholders, as defined in specific 

legislation. Communication is increasingly distributed via electronic means, with all 

documents available on www.powyspensionfund.org, whilst staff can be contacted via 

pensions@powys.gov.uk. A named Pension Technician is allocated to each member of 

the Scheme. Details of which can been found in Appendix 3.  

Appropriately qualified members of staff from the Pensions Section or external 

experts/specialists will deliver presentations to groups of stakeholders and conduct 

individual meetings as required. The Pension Fund’s objective in respect of 

communication is to comply with relevant legislation and ensure that individual members 

and employers receive accurate and timely information about their pension arrangements. 

Information on policies and guidance produced is available on the Powys Fund website 
and the Local Government Association's here http://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php  
 
The Powys Pension Fund has a formal complaints procedure, which can be found here: 
https://www.powyspensionfund.org/powys-pension-fund/about-us/compliments-
complaints-and-disputes/  
 
 
 

Page 42

file://///Powyscc.local/Group/Finance/ESTIMATE/Technical/Pensions/Closing%202015-16/Statement%20of%20Accounts/www.powyspensionfund.org
mailto:pensions@powys.gov.uk
http://lgpsregs.org/resources/guidesetc.php
https://www.powyspensionfund.org/powys-pension-fund/about-us/compliments-complaints-and-disputes/
https://www.powyspensionfund.org/powys-pension-fund/about-us/compliments-complaints-and-disputes/


ANNUAL REPORT 

17 

Scheme Statistics and Performance 

Membership Trends 
The graph below shows the membership of the Fund as at 31 March. Deferred members 

are former employees of the contributing authorities who have yet to draw their pensions. 

 

  

 

Details of new pensioners 

 
Total Retirements in 2018-19 271 

Ill Health  3 

Early Retirements 241 

Normal Retirements 27 

 

Financial Indicators 
The total number of scheme members at 31 March 2019 was 17,223. 

 

 2018-19 
Total Expenses 

£’000 

2018-19 
Cost per member 

£’000 

Administration expenses 1,019 59 

Investment management expenses 2,432 141 

Oversight and governance costs 151 9 

Total Management Expenses 3,602 209 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Deferred 5,824 5,401 5,713 6,369 6,158 6,206 6,695

Pensioner 3,699 3,803 4,059 4,223 4,326 4,545 4,713

Contributers 6,462 6,639 6,555 6,273 5,927 5,849 5,815

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

5,500

6,000

6,500

7,000

Page 43



 

18 

The following data has been collected from SF3 data and compared with the other Wales 

Funds. 

 

 
Process 

 
2013/14 

 
2014/15 

 
2015/16 

 
2016/17 

 
2017/18 

Wales  
2017/18 

Investment 
Management Expenses 

      

Total Cost (£’000) 2,226 2,392 2,706 2,152 2,330 73,652 

Total Membership 
(number) 

15,934 16,138 16,416 16,348 16,431 358,750 

Sub Cost per 
Membership (£) 

139.70 148.22 164.84 131.64 141.81 205.30 

       

Administration Costs       

Total Cost (£’000) 921 866 906 1,413 1,002 9,851 

Total Membership 
(number) 

15,934 16,138 16,416 16,348 16,431 358,750 

Sub Cost per 
Membership (£) 

57.8 53.66 55.16 86.43 60.98 27.46 

       

Oversight and 
Governance Costs  

      

Total Cost (£’000) - - 111 126 92 3,398 

Total Membership 
(number) 

15,394 16,138 16,416 16,348 16,431 358,750 

Sub Cost per 
Membership (£) 

- - 6.76 7.71 5.60 9.47 

       

Total Cost per Member 197.50 201.88 226.79 225.78 208.39 242.23 

 

Staffing 
 

There are 8.8 (FTE) members of staff in the Pension Administration section. Of their work 

6.6 FTE equivalents would be performing purely pension administration tasks. This 

calculates to a ratio of 2,610 members per member of staff performing purely pension 

administration tasks. 

Employers in the Fund 
 

Employer Data Active Ceased  Total 

Scheduled Bodies 11 6 17 

Admitted Bodies 14 7 21 

Total 25 13 38 

 

Further details of Fund Employers can be found in Appendix 3. 

Contributions received split by employers and employees 

Page 44



ANNUAL REPORT 

19 

2018/19 
No of 
contributors 

Employers 
normal 

Employers 
additional 

Members 
normal 

Total 

  as at 31 Mar £ £ £ £ 

Scheduled Bodies           

Brecon Beacons National Park 111 446,894 34,453 161,520 642,867 

Brecon Town Council 5 19,052 - 5,765 24,816 

Llandrindod Wells Town Council 1 5,956 - 1,889 7,845 

Llanidloes Burial Joint 
Committee 

1 2,767 - 747 3,514 

Llandidloes Town Council 1 5,269 - 1,663 6,931 

Machynlleth Town Council 10 27,998 - 7,609 35,606 

Newtown Town Council 10 50,391 - 16,007 66,398 

Powys County Council 5,219 13,420,313 943,546 4,521,118 18,884,977 

Welshpool Town Council 2 5,107 - 1,363 6,470 

Ystradfellte Community Council 1 469 - 125 595 

Ystradgynlais Town Council 2 11,632 3,965 17,391 32,987 

Sub total 5,363 13,995,847 981,964 4,735,196 19,713,007 

Admitted Bodies           

Adapt business Services 2 4,092 - 979 5,071 

Aramark   3,251 - 784 4,035 

BUPA 28 109,191 - 29,866 139,056 

Bupa Brynhyfryd 1 4,264 - 883 5,147 

Careers Wales 17 89,146 - 38,692 127,838 

Elite Supported Employment 
Agency Ltd 

- 
3,333 - 745 4,078 

Freedom Leisure (ex. PCC) 277 241,239 - 105,344 346,583 

Freedom Leisure (Post PCC) 27 6,083 - 2,501 8,584 

Heart Of Wales Property 
Services 

72 444,582 - 117,913 562,494 

Kier Facilities Services Ltd - 13,297 - 3,156 16,453 

Menter Maldwyn 4 8,183 - 4,178 12,361 

Mirus-Wales Ltd 4 17,391 - 5,571 22,962 

P.A.V.O. (Former P.R.C.) 3 16,778 - 4,753 21,531 

Powys Dance 1 6,560 - 2,080 8,640 

Solo Service Group 14 23,084 - 5,562 28,646 

Theatr Brycheiniog 1 3,323 - 1,688 5,011 

Ystradgynlais Miners Welfare & 
Com Hall Trust Ltd 

1 17,781 - 5,263 23,044 

Sub total 452 1,011,579 0 329,955 1,341,535 

Total 5,815 15,007,426 981,964 5,065,152 21,054,541 

 

  

Page 45



 

20 

My Powys Pension Engagement 
My Powys Pension was launched at the end of February 2015 as the new way for scheme 

members to monitor and engage with their pension. Below is a chart which shows the 

percentage of scheme members (excluding councillors) who have registered to this 

service since it was launched. 

 

By the end of financial year 2017/18, 43.3% of scheme members (excluding councillors) 

had registered to use My Powys Pension. This has grown to 47.3% by the end of financial 

year 2018/19. 

Website traffic 
The hosts of our websites are able to track how many visits they receive, including new 

visitors and how many webpages have been viewed. Below is a summary of their data 

over each financial year. 

Financial Year Visits 
New 

Visits 
Page 
Views 

Avg. Pages 
per Visit 

2015/16 (*) 1,973 1,103 8,555 4.34 

2016/17 2,789 1,816 10,171 3.65 

2017/18 1,999 1,307 6,283 3.14 

2018/19 3,359 2,527 5,886 1.75 

 
(*) Please note that figures for December 2015 were not provided. As such to facilitate a 

comparison between the years, it has been assumed that the figures would be similar 

to an average of the preceding 3 months. 

  

0.1%

7.1%

31.2%

43.3%

47.3%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

50.0%

J
a
n

-1
5

M
a

r-
1

5

M
a

y
-1

5

J
u
l-

1
5

S
e

p
-1

5

N
o
v
-1

5

J
a
n

-1
6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u
l-

1
6

S
e

p
-1

6

N
o
v
-1

6

J
a
n

-1
7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u
l-

1
7

S
e

p
-1

7

N
o
v
-1

7

J
a
n

-1
8

M
a

r-
1

8

M
a

y
-1

8

J
u
l-

1
8

S
e

p
-1

8

N
o

v
-1

8

J
a
n

-1
9

M
a

r-
1

9

Page 46



ANNUAL REPORT 

21 

Workflow Performance 
As covered in Performance Standards on page 14, the below table shows the workload 

placed on the Pensions Team and how many of the various requests have been fulfilled. 

The ‘Performance’ percentage is calculated by dividing the number of tasks completed in 

the given year by those raised in the same year. As such if some of the completed tasks 

were originally raised in the previous year, this may exceed 100%. 

 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

Brought Forward 1,082 963 1,055 

Started 9,568 8,054 7,209 

Completed 9,688 7,962 6,506 

Carried Forward 962 1,055 1,758 

Performance 101% 98.9% 88.25% 

 

The overall performance over the 2018/19 year is at 88.25%. Whilst this is below the 

benchmark of 100%, this primarily due to the administration service running at reduced 

capacity for the period 2 April 2018 to 31 December 2018, following three retirements 

within the period.  

There was a slight redesign to the staffing structure during the same period to facilitate an 

increase in administration resource from 1 January 2019. 

Process No. cases 
outstanding 
at start of 
the period 

No. Cases 
commenced 
in year 

No. cases 
completed 
in year 

No. cases 
outstanding 
at year end 

% 
completed 
in year 

Deaths  57 182 180 59 98.90% 

Retirements 57 256 264 49 103.13% 

Deferment 246 572 248 570 43.36% 

Transfers in 71 206 174 103 84.47% 

Transfers out 63 132 120 75 90.91% 

Divorce 
quote 

1 27 23 5 85.19% 

Divorce 
actual 

0 4 3 1 75.00% 

Pensions 
Estimates 

50 724 689 85 95.17% 

Starters 0 401 392 9 97.76% 

Aggregations 185 251 229 207 91.24% 

 
 

Process  Legal Requirement 
(from Notification)  

% 

Death Letter Acknowledging death of 
member 

2 months 94% 

Death Letter notifying amount of 
dependant’s benefits 

2 months 93% 

Deferment Calculate & Notify Deferred 
Benefits 

2 months 39% 

Transfer 
Out 

Letter detailing Transfer Out 
Quote 

2 months 95% 

Page 47



 

22 

Refund Process and Pay a Refund 2 months 99% 

Divorce 
Quote 

Letter detailing cash equivalent 
value and other benefits 

3 months 99% 

Divorce 
Actual 

Letter detailing implementation 
of cash equivalent value and 
application of pension sharing 
order 

3 months 99% 

Joiners Send notification of joining the 
LGPS to scheme member 

2 months 97% 

 

Funding and Valuation 

 

The aim of the funding is to accumulate current contributions at a level sufficient to provide 

known benefits at some time in the future. In short therefore, the scheme benefits are 

financed by contributions from employees and employers together with income from 

investments. Both the employees’ contributions and the benefits to be provided by the 

scheme are fixed by the Government as set out in the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations, leaving the employers’ rate of contribution as the only element which can be 

deliberately adjusted. 

The employers’ rate of contribution is assessed by the Actuary to the Fund who reviews 

the future income and liabilities of the Fund. These reviews, or actuarial valuations, are 

required by law with a major review being undertaken every third year.  The statement of 

the actuary can be seen on page 49. 

 

The actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2016 showed the assets held at the valuation date 

were sufficient to cover 80% of the accrued liabilities assessed on an ongoing basis. While 

this is a slight improvement on the 79% achieved as at 31 March 2013, it is the long-term 

goal to achieve 100% funding and efforts continue to be made to address this. The level of 

funding has no impact on members’ benefits which are guaranteed by law.  

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2007 2010 2013 2016

Funding Level

Page 48



ANNUAL REPORT 

23 

Investment Policy and Performance Report 
The prime requirement in managing the Fund is to ensure adequate diversification of its 

assets over different asset classes and different geographical areas. The right balance 

must be struck between the desire for enhanced returns and potential ‘risk’ of volatility in 

those returns i.e. the investment policy of the Fund is aimed at maximising returns within 

the acceptable limits of risk. There is no ideal split for any fund, so the portfolio balance 

needs to be regularly monitored and adjusted in line with the economic, financial and 

market indicators. 

 

The investment style of the Fund is to appoint external expert fund managers with clear 

performance benchmarks and place accountability for performance against those 

benchmarks on the fund managers. The benchmarks are outlined in paragraph 6.3 of 

Appendix 4, The Investment Strategy Statement. The Chief Financial Officer must ensure 

that the management of the Fund falls within the requirements of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations.  

During 2018/19 the Fund liquidated its Hedge Fund of Funds investments to invest in four 

single manager Hedge funds.  Also, the transition of active equity funds to the Wales 

Pension Partnership pool was partially completed during the period. Of the £18.9m capital 

commitment (Note 18) outstanding as at 31 March 2018, £4.7m was drawn down in 

2018/19. 

Performance Review 

 

 1 Year 
% 

3 Years 
% 

5 Years 
% 

Powys Pension Fund Overall Return 5.4 9.6 8.7 

Inflation CPI 2.3 2.1 1.5 

Average Earnings Index 2.9 2.5 2.3 

 

£0m

£50m

£100m

£150m

£200m

£250m

£300m

£350m

Fixed
interest

Index linked Equities Hedge
Funds

Cash and
short term

investments

Property Private
equity

Market value by asset class

31st Mar 17

31st Mar 18

31st Mar 19

Page 49



 

24 

Given the long-term nature of the Fund, perhaps the most significant column above is that 

detailing the comparisons over five years. Inflation and average earning percentages are 

taken from the Office for National Statistics data. 

The following tables include returns over 1, 3 and 5 years by asset class and current 

manager. The managers appointed in 2018/19 have been included for completeness 

although full year returns are not applicable.  

Asset Class and Manager Performance 1 Year 

 

Asset Class/ Manager Fund % Benchmark Excess Return 

Equity 7.1 9.0 (1.9) 

LF WPP Global Growth Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Hosking (2.3) 10.5 (12.8) 

BlackRock 7.9 8.0 (0.1) 

Bond 2.7 4.2 (1.5) 

Insight Corporate Bond 2.8 3.7 (0.9) 

BlackRock Corporate Bond 4.4 3.7 0.7 

Insight Absolute Return Bond (2.3) 0.8 (3.1) 

Insight Index Linked Gilt  n/a n/a n/a 

BlackRock Index Linked Gilt 5.8 5.7 0.1 

Blackrock Gilts 3.8 3.7 0.1 

Property Fund 4.9 5.1 (0.1) 

Aviva  4.1 5.1 (1.0) 

Hermes UK Property Fund 6.1 5.6 0.5 

Schroders UK Property Fund 5.2 5.1 0.1 

CBRE European Property Fund (3.1) 2.4 (5.5) 

Private Equity 15.6 11.3 4.3 

Standard Life 12.8 12.6 0.2 

HarbourVest 15.8 12.6 3.2 

Hedge Funds 3.3 0.8 2.5 

Man Alternative Risk Premia  n/a n/a n/a 

CFM Systematic Diversified Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Stone Milliner Macro Fund n/a n/a n/a 

IPM Systematic Macro Fund n/a n/a n/a 

 

Asset Class and Manager Performance 3 Year 

 

Asset Class/ Manager Fund % Benchmark Excess Return 

Equity 13.7 13.3 0.4 

LF WPP Global Growth Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Hosking n/a n/a n/a 

BlackRock 14.6 14.7 (0.1) 

Bond 4.3 6.0 (1.7) 

Insight Corporate Bond 4.7 4.7 0.0 

BlackRock Corporate Bond 5.0 4.5 0.5 

Insight Absolute Return Bond 0.5 0.5 0.0 

Insight Index Linked Gilt  n/a n/a n/a 

BlackRock Index Linked Gilt 11.7 9.1 2.6 

Page 50



ANNUAL REPORT 

25 

Blackrock Gilts 1.2 3.6 (2.4) 

Property Fund 6.6 6.3 0.3 

Aviva  5.1 6.3 (1.2) 

Hermes UK Property Fund 8.0 6.8 1.2 

Schroders UK Property Fund 7.5 6.3 1.2 

CBRE European Property Fund (3.4) 3.0 (6.4) 

Private Equity 14.7 15.3 (0.6) 

Standard Life 14.6 15.0 (0.4) 

HarbourVest 14.9 15.0 (0.1) 

Hedge Funds 4.1 0.5 3.5 

Man Alternative Risk Premia  n/a n/a n/a 

CFM Systematic Diversified Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Stone Milliner Macro Fund n/a n/a n/a 

IPM Systematic Macro Fund n/a n/a n/a 

 

Asset Class and Manager Performance 5 Year 

 

Asset Class/ Manager Fund % Benchmark Excess Return 

Equity 11.6 11.4 0.2 

LF WPP Global Growth Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Hosking n/a n/a n/a 

BlackRock n/a n/a n/a 

Bond 5.1 6.1 (1.0) 

Insight Corporate Bond n/a n/a n/a 

BlackRock Corporate Bond n/a n/a n/a 

Insight Absolute Return Bond 0.7 0.5 0.2 

Insight Index Linked Gilt  n/a n/a n/a 

BlackRock Index Linked Gilt n/a n/a n/a 

Blackrock Gilts n/a n/a n/a 

Property Fund 7.6 9.1 (1.6) 

Aviva  7.9 9.1 (1.2) 

Hermes UK Property Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Schroders UK Property Fund n/a n/a n/a 

CBRE European Property Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Private Equity n/a n/a n/a 

Standard Life n/a n/a n/a 

HarbourVest n/a n/a n/a 

Hedge Funds n/a n/a n/a 

Man Alternative Risk Premia  n/a n/a n/a 

CFM Systematic Diversified Fund n/a n/a n/a 

Stone Milliner Macro Fund n/a n/a n/a 

IPM Systematic Macro Fund n/a n/a n/a 

 

 

 

Page 51



 

26 

Investment manager structure as a percentage of fund total, as at 

31 March 2019 
 Manager  

 

B
la

c
k
ro

c
k
 

H
o

s
k
in

g
 &

 L
in

k
 

W
P

P
 

In
s
ig

h
t 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 

C
F

M
, 
IP

M
, 
M

A
N

, 

S
to

n
e

 M
ill

in
e
r 

A
v
iv

a
, 

C
B

R
E

, 

S
c
h

ro
d

e
rs

 &
 

H
e

rm
e

s
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 L
if
e
 &

 

H
a

rb
o

u
rv

e
s
t 

 

Asset Class Passive 
% 

Active 
% 

Active 
% 

Active 
% 

Active 
% 

Active 
% 

Total 
% 

Equities  31.3   17.4   -     -     -     -     48.7  

Bonds  3.8   -     11.4   -     -     -     15.2  

Index Linked  8.7   -    4.5     -     -     -     13.2  

Hedge Fund   -     -     -    7.6     -    -  7.6 

Property  -     -     -    -  9.5     -    9.5 

Private Equity  -     -     -     -    -  4.9  4.9 

Cash/ Other  0.9   -     -     -     -     -     0.9  

Total  44.7   17.4   15.9   7.6   9.5   4.9   100.0  

 
The strategic asset allocation is as follows: 

2017/18  2018/19 

47% Equities 47% 

30% Fixed interest and index linked securities 30% 

10% Property 10% 

5% Private equity 5% 

8% Hedge fund of funds 8% 

100% Total 100% 

 
The current strategic asset allocation is 70% return seeking and 30% risk reducing 

(matching assets). This strategy was determined with the aid of the fund’s Investment 

Advisors. 

The strategic asset allocation is the ideal target and cannot be achieved until the scheme 

is fully funded in all areas. It does not reflect the actual investments held at the year-end. 

The current structure aims to have a 70:30 split between return seeking and liability 

matching assets. 

AON Hewitt Limited currently operates a Medium Term Asset Allocation (MTAA) project for 

the Fund. It utilises all of the Fund’s assets excluding Private Equity. The MTAA service 

has the target of increasing the return achieved by these assets by 0.5% per annum by 

deliberately allocating assets away from the strategic allocation to take advantage of 

market over/under valuations during the medium term. The MTAA service has an artificial 

benchmark of 49.5% equity, 32% bonds and 18.5% alternatives.  

 

 

 

 

Page 52



ANNUAL REPORT 

27 

 

The market value of assets spread between the fund managers as at 31 March 2019 is 

shown below. 

 

 

 

Post pool reporting 
In January 2019, the Fund transferred assets into the LF Wales PP Global Growth Fund, a 

global equity fund managed by the Wales Pension Partnership pool operator Link Asset 

Services. The split of investments by manager can be found in note 12b: Investments 

Analysed by Fund Manager, of the accounts. The value of assets transferred in the pool at 

31 March 2019 is £77.06m.  

2017/18 
£’000 

WPP Oversight and Governance Costs 2018/19 
£’000 

65 Set-Up Costs 73 

- Host Authority Costs 20 

   

 WPP Investment Management Expenses  

- Fund Manager Fees 46 

 

 

1.4%
9.2M

44.7%
291.9M

0.1%
0.4M

2.4%
15.3M

4.8%
31.2M 2.1%

13.8M

5.6%
36.5M

15.9%
104.0M

1.1%
7.3M

11.8%
77.0M

2.3%
14.9M

5.9%
38.7M

0.1%
0.6M

1.8%
12.0M

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

240

260

280

300

£
 M

ill
io

n
s

Page 53



 

28 

Net Assets Statement 
As at 31 March 

2018 
£’000 

 Note 2019 
£’000 

 618,327  Investments 12 652,770 

 2,081  Current Assets 13 3,215 

(1,471) Current Liabilities 13 (1,412) 

618,937  Net Asset as at 31 Mar  654,573 

 
The accounts show cash held with the Investment Managers as investments as 

recommended in the Statement of Recommended Practice, Financial Reports for Pension 

Schemes. 

Pension Fund Account 
2017/18 

£’000 
 Note 2018/19 

£’000 

 Contributions and benefits   

(24,248) Contributions receivable 4 (26,545) 

(1,905) Transfers in 5 (1,851) 

(37) Other income 6 (31) 

(26,190) Total income  (28,427) 

 26,380  Benefits payable 7 26,218 

 2,512  Payments on account of leavers 8 2,664 

 3,424  Management expenses 9 3,602 

 32,316  Total expenditure  32,484 

 6,126  Net withdrawals from dealing with members  4,057 

 Returns on investments   

(5,888) Investment income 10 (6,153) 

 3  Taxes on Income 11 2 

(21,036) Changes in the market value of investments 12 (33,542) 

(26,921) Net profit on investments  (39,693) 

(20,795) Net (increase)/decrease in the fund  (35,636) 

 598,142  Opening net assets  618,937 

 618,937  Closing net assets  654,573 

 

  

Page 54



ANNUAL REPORT 

29 

Notes to the Pension Accounts 
Note 1: Basis of Preparation ........................................................................................................................ 30 
Note 2: Accounting Policies ......................................................................................................................... 30 
Note 3: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies ..................................................................... 32 
Note 4: Contributions Receiveable .............................................................................................................. 33 
Note 5: Transfers In ..................................................................................................................................... 33 
Note 6: Other Income .................................................................................................................................. 33 
Note 7: Benefit Payable ............................................................................................................................... 34 
Note 8: Payments to and on Account of Leavers ........................................................................................ 34 
Note 9: Management Expenses .................................................................................................................. 34 
Note 9a: Investment Management Expenses.............................................................................................. 34 
Note 10: Investment Income ........................................................................................................................ 35 
Note 11: Taxes on Income........................................................................................................................... 35 
Note 12: Investments ................................................................................................................................... 36 
Note 13: Current Assets and Liabilities ....................................................................................................... 38 
Note 14: Related Party Transactions ........................................................................................................... 38 
Note 15: Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) ..................................................................................... 39 
Note 16: Contingent Liabilities ..................................................................................................................... 39 
Note 17: Post Balance Sheet Events .......................................................................................................... 39 
Note 18: Capital Commitments .................................................................................................................... 39 
Note 19: Stock Lending ............................................................................................................................... 40 
Note 20: Financial Instruments .................................................................................................................... 40 
Note 21: Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits ........................................................... 42 
Note 22: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments ................................................... 43 
Note 23: Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted ....................... 47 

 

  

Page 55



 

30 

Note 1: Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 

2018/19 CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 

which is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for 

the UK public sector. 

The financial statements summarise the transactions of the scheme and deal with the net 

assets at the disposal of the trustees. They do not take account of obligations to pay 

pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the scheme year. The actuarial 

position of the scheme, which does take account of such obligations, is dealt with in the 

statement by the actuary included in the annual report and these financial statements 

should be read in conjunction with it. 

Note 2: Accounting Policies 

Contributions and Benefits 

Contributions are accounted for on an accruals basis. Benefits payable represents the 

benefits entitlement up to the end of the reporting period. 

Transfers to other Schemes 

Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members 

who have either joined or left the fund during the financial year and are calculated in 

accordance with The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations.  

Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when 

the member liability is accepted or discharged.  

Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary 

contribution to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are 

included in Additional Contributions. 

Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms 

of the transfer agreement. 

Refunds to Leavers 

These are accounted for when due. 

Investment Management Expenses 

Each fund manager receives a fee for their services based on the market value of the 

assets they manage. 

Investment Income 

Interest income 

Interest income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues. 

Distributions from pooled funds 

Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not 

received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a 

current financial asset. 

Change in Market Value 

Changes in market value of investments comprise reinvested investment income and all 

realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year. 

Page 56



ANNUAL REPORT 

31 

Foreign Currency Transactions 

Assets and liabilities held in a foreign currency are translated at the rate of sterling quoted 

at year-end. Income and expenditure arising during the year is translated into sterling at 

the rate quoted on the date of receipt or payment. Resulting exchange gains or losses are 

recognised through the revenue account. 

Valuation of Assets 

No property is directly held by the fund. The market value used for quoted investments is 

the bid market price ruling on the final day of the accounting period. Fund Managers value 

unquoted securities at the year-end in line with generally accepted guidelines to ascertain 

the fair value of the investment. Change in Market value also includes income which is 

reinvested in the fund, net of applicable tax. Fixed interest securities are recorded at net 

market value based on their current yields. Fair value for limited partnerships is based on 

the net asset value ascertained from periodic valuations provided by those controlling the 

partnership. It is not the intention of the fund to dispose of unquoted investments before 

maturity. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits. 

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 

cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value. 

Taxation 

The fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the 

Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and 

from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas 

investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is permitted. 

Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it arises. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the 

reporting date. A financial asset is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the 

fund becomes party to the contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date any gains or 

losses arising from changes in the fair value of the asset are recognised in the fund 

account. 

Financial Liabilities 

The fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date. A financial 

liability is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to 

the liability. From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 

liability are recognised by the fund. 

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits 

The actuarial value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the 

scheme actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant actuarial 

standards. As permitted under IAS 26, the fund has opted to disclose the actuarial value of 

promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the net assets statement (note 21). 

Administrative expenses 

All staff costs of the pension administration team and other overheads are apportioned to 

the fund in accordance with Council policy. 

Page 57



 

32 

Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are possible liabilities whose existence will only be confirmed by 

future events and are not recognised until the realisation of the loss is virtually certain. 

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC’s) 

Members of the Pension Fund may make additional voluntary contributions (AVCs) in 

order to obtain improved benefits on retirement. The AVC investments are excluded from 

the Financial Statements of the Powys Pension Fund, in accordance with section 4(2)b of 

the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management & Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/3093) but are disclosed as a note only (note 15). 

Note 3: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

Unquoted private equity investments 

It is important to recognise the subjective nature of determining the fair value of private 

equity investments. They are inherently based on forward looking estimates and 

judgements involving many factors. Unquoted private equity investments are valued by the 

investment managers using acceptable guidelines. The value of these investments at 

31 March 2019 was £31.8m (31 March 2018: £28.5m). 

An analysis of investments can be found later in Note 12a. 

Pension Fund liability 

The pension fund liability is calculated every three years by the appointed actuary, with 

annual updates in the intervening years. The methodology used is in line with accepted 

guidelines and in accordance with IAS 19. Assumptions underpinning the valuations are 

agreed with the actuary and are summarised in the statement of the actuary. This estimate 

is subject to significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions. 

  

Page 58



ANNUAL REPORT 

33 

Note 4: Contributions Receivable 
 

2017/18 
£’000 By Category 

2018/19 
£’000 

19,505 Employers 21,480 

4,743 Employees 5,065 

24,248  26,545 

 

2017/18 
£’000 By Authority 

2018/19 
£’000 

21,946 Powys County Council (administering body) 24,225 

875 Scheduled bodies  956 

1,427 Admitted bodies  1,364 

24,248  26,545 

 

2017/18 
£’000 By Type 

2018/19 
£’000 

14,244 Employers normal contributions 15,008 

4,743 Employees normal contributions 5,065 

406 Employers additional contributions 982 

4,855 Employers deficit reduction contributions 5,490 

24,248  26,545 

 

Note 5: Transfers In 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

1,905 Individual transfers from other schemes 1,851 

 

Note 6: Other Income 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

17 Administrative fees received 10 

20 Additional allowances recovered 21 

37  31 

  

Page 59



 

34 

Note 7: Benefit Payable 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

21,000 Pensions 22,103 

4,898 Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits 3,594 

482 Lump sum death benefits 521 

26,380  26,218 

 
Benefits can be further analysed as follows: 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

22,366 Powys County Council (administering authority) 22,368 

2,580 Scheduled bodies  2,546 

1,434 Admitted bodies  1,304 

26,380  26,218 

 

Note 8: Payments to and on Account of Leavers 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

47 Refunds to members leaving service 55 

4 Payments to members joining state scheme - 

2,461 Individual transfers to other schemes 2,609 

2,512  2,664 

 

Note 9: Management Expenses 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

1,002 Administration expenses 1,019 

2,330 Investment management expenses (see Note 9a) 2,432 

92 Oversight and governance costs 151 

3,424  3,602 

 

Note 9a: Investment Management Expenses 
 

2017/18 
£’000 

 2018/19 
£’000 

2,075 Management fees 2,058 

223 Investment advice 345 

32 Custody fees 29 

2,330  2,432 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 60



ANNUAL REPORT 

35 

Note 10: Investment Income 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

(2) Interest on cash deposits (25) 

(783) Income from bonds (752) 

(1,691) Pooled property investments (1632) 

(3,407) Private equity income (3,737) 

(5) Other investment income (7) 

(5,888)  (6,153) 

 

Note 11: Taxes on Income 
 

2017/18 
£’000  

2018/19 
£’000 

3 Foreign tax on investment 2 

3  2 

 

  

Page 61



 

36 

Note 12: Investments 
 

 V
a

lu
e

 a
s
 a

t 

1
 A

p
r 

1
8
 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 a

t 

C
o

s
t 

S
a

le
s

 

P
ro

c
e
e

d
s
 

F
e
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i

n
 

N
A

V
 

C
a

s
h

 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

V
a

lu
e

 a
s
 a

t 

3
1
 M

a
r 

1
9
 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bonds 99,294 4,000 (4,752) (76) 752 (210) 99,008 

Index linked 
Securities 

81,959 37,620 (38,200) - - 5,039 86,418 

Equities 
(pooled funds) 

291,722 95,689 (91,709) (459) - 22,906 318,149 

Property 
(pooled funds) 

74,542 1,151 (16,071) (452) 522 2,412 62,104 

Private Equity 28,465 4,696 (6,264) (558) 3,695 1,745 31,779 

Hedge Fund of Funds 39,599 48,600 (40,128) (255) - 1,549 49,365 

Cash & Short Term 
Investments 

2,746 51,600 (48,500) - - 101 5,947 

 618,327 243,356 (245,623) (1,801) 4,969 33,542 652,770 

 

 V
a

lu
e

 a
s
 a

t 

1
 A

p
r 

1
7
 

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e

s
 a

t 

C
o

s
t 

S
a

le
s

 

P
ro

c
e
e

d
s
 

F
e
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i

n
 

N
A

V
 

C
a

s
h

 

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

M
a

rk
e

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

V
a

lu
e

 a
s
 a

t 

3
1
 M

a
r 

1
8
 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Bonds  87,810  11,300 (783) (81) 783 265 99,294 

Index linked 
Securities 

 81,265  - - - - 694 81,959 

Equities 
(pooled funds) 

285,268  52,498 (58,298) (454) - 12,708 291,722 

Property 
(pooled funds) 

 69,856  1,184 (2,582) (459) 507 6,036 74,542 

Private Equity  27,361  5,107 (6,578) (313) 3,407 (519) 28,465 

Hedge Fund of Funds  38,162  12,328 (12,335) (403) - 1,847 39,599 

Cash & Short Term 
Investments 

 4,441  5,800 (7,500) - - 5 2,746 

 594,163  88,217 (88,076) (1,710) 4,697 21,036 618,327 

 
The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and 

decreases in the market value of investments held at any time during the year, including 

profits and losses realised on sales of investments during the year. Some transaction 

costs are included in the cost of purchases and sales proceeds. Transaction costs include 

costs charged directly to the scheme such as fees, commissions, stamp duty and other 

fees.  

These transaction costs incurred in the year are incurred through the bid-offer spread on 

investments within pooled investment vehicles. The amount of indirect costs is not 

separately provided to the scheme. All equity investments held by the fund are in unitised 

funds. 

Page 62



ANNUAL REPORT 

37 

Note 12a: Analysis of Investments 

 

2017/18 
  

2018/19 

£’000 £’000 

  Bonds   

99,294 UK unit trusts quoted  99,008 

  Index linked securities   

81,959 UK quoted 86,418 

  Equities   

16,543 UK unit trusts quoted 13,043 

275,179 Overseas unit trusts quoted 305,106 

  Hedge Funds   

39,599 UK 49,365 

  Private Equity   

28,465 Overseas unquoted 31,779 

  Property   

73,482 UK unit trusts quoted 61,692 

1,060 Overseas unquoted 412 

120 Cash 121 

2,626 Liquidity Funds 5,826 

618,327   652,770 

 

Note 12b: Investments Analysed by Fund Manager 

 

31 Mar 18  31 Mar 19 

Market 
Value 
£’000 %  

Market 
Value 
£’000 % 

23,350 3.8 Aviva Investors Pensions Ltd 9,151 1.4 

293,733 47.3 BlackRock Global Investors Ltd 291,885 44.7 

26,477 4.3 Carnegie - - 

1,060 0.2 CBRE Ltd 412 0.1 

- - CFM 15,280 2.4 

39,600 6.4 Goldman Sachs Asset Management Ltd - - 

27,558 4.5 HarbourVest Partners LLC 31,184 4.8 

13,335 2.2 Hermes Fund Managers Ltd 13,799 2.1 

36,165 5.9 Hosking 36,528 5.6 

75,815 12.3 Insight Investment Ltd 104,053 15.9 

- - IPM 7,257 1.1 

- - Link WPP 77,056 11.8 

- - MAN 14,874 2.3 

43,531 7.0 MFS International Ltd - - 

36,797 6.0 Schroders Investment Management Ltd 38,742 5.9 

906 0.1 Standard Life Investments Ltd 596 0.1 

- - Stone Milliner 11,953 1.8 

618,327   652,770  

 

Page 63



 

38 

 

The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the scheme: 

31 Mar 18  31 Mar 19 

Market 
Value 
£’000 % Security 

Market 
Value 
£’000 % 

61,763 10.0 
Blackrock Aquila Life Currency Hedged US 

Equity Index Fund 
72,939 11.2 

81,960 13.3 Blackrock Aquila Life Over 5Yr Uk Idx Lkd 56,809 8.7 

38,697 6.3 
Blackrock Aquila Life Currency Hedged MSCI 

World Index Fund 
41,187 6.3 

39,600 6.4 Goldman Sachs Hedge Fund Opportunities Ltd - - 

36,165 5.9 Hosking Partners 36,528 5.6 

48,205 7.8 Insight Bonds Plus fund 47,097 7.2 

- - Link WPP 77,056 11.8 

43,531 7.0 MFS Global Equity Fund - - 

36,797 6.0 Schroder UK Real Estate Fund 38,742 5.9 

 

Note 13: Current Assets and Liabilities 
 

2017/18 
£’000 

 2018/19 
£’000 

 Current Assets  

179 Contributions due from employers and members 167 

1,375 Cash balances 2,557 

527 Sundry debtors 491 

2,081  3,215 

 Current Liabilities  

(437) Benefits payable (269) 

(1,034) Sundry creditors (1,143) 

(1,471)  (1,412) 

 
Amounts unpaid at the year end are subsequently paid within a reasonable time frame, i.e. 

the majority of the balances are paid within a 3 month period. 

Note 14: Related Party Transactions 
Details of Members and officers of the Council represented on the Pensions and 

Investment Committee are shown in Appendix 1. Their combined contributions into the 

scheme totalled £19.2k in 2018/19 (£18k in 2017/18).  

The Fund is administered by Powys County Council. Consequently, there is a relationship 

between the Authority and the Fund. 

The Authority incurred costs of £916k in 2018/19 (2017/18: £894k) in relation to the 

administration of the Fund and was subsequently reimbursed by the Fund. 

The Authority is also the single largest employer of members in the Fund and contributed 

£18,761k to the Fund in 2018/19 (2017/18: £17,388k) in employers contributions and 

deficit recovery payments. 

Page 64



ANNUAL REPORT 

39 

Governance 

The makeup of the Pensions and Investment Committee can be seen in Appendix 1. 

The role of Section 151 Officer for the Authority, plays a key role in the financial 

management of the Fund and is also an active member of the Fund. 

Councillors are required to declare their interest at each meeting. 

The Committee members and Section 151 Officer accrue their benefits in line with the 

regulations encompassing councillors and employees of the employing bodies of the Fund. 

For the full Governance Statement please see Appendix 5. 

Note 15: Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) 
Members of the Pension Fund may make additional voluntary contributions (AVCs) in 

order to obtain improved benefits on retirement. The AVC investments are excluded from 

the Financial Statements of the Powys Pension Fund, in accordance with section 4(2)b of 

the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management & Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/3093). However, as administering authority we oversee the 

following AVC arrangements: 

2018/19 
 
Contributions received 

Standard 
Life 

£’000 

Prudential 
 

£’000 

Equitable 
Life 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Powys County Council 35 286 1 322 

BBNP - 14 - 14 

 

 
 
Fund Value 

Standard 
Life 

£’000 

Prudential 
 

£’000 

Equitable 
Life 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

As at 31 Mar 19 1,055 1,214 71 2,340 

 

Note 16: Contingent Liabilities 
No contingent liabilities were known to exist at the Balance Sheet date. 

Note 17. Post Balance Sheet Events 
The accounts outlined in these financial statements represent the financial position of the 

Fund as at 31 March 2019. Since this date, the performance of the global markets may 

have affected the financial value of Pension Fund investments. 

Note 18: Capital Commitments 
 

2017/18 
£’000 Private Equity and Property mandate 

2018/19 
£’000 

904 Standard Life (Private Equity) 937 

17,990 Harbourvest (Private Equity) 29,920 

18,894  30,857 

 
The Pension Fund has committed to guaranteed investments in private equity that the 

asset managers can draw down upon as and when required. The Capital Commitments 

figure above, represents the level of investment guaranteed but not yet drawn down at the 

year end. 

Page 65



 

40 

Note 19: Stock Lending 
Section 12.1 of the Investment Strategy Statement (Appendix 4) sets out the fund’s policy 

on stock lending. 

 

Note 20: Financial Instruments 

Note 20A: Classification of financial instruments & liabilities 

 

31 Mar 18   31 Mar 19 

Amortised 
cost 

Fair value 
through profit 
and loss   

Amortised 
cost 

Fair value 
through profit 
and loss 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

    Financial Assets     
 99,293 Fixed interest securities  128,617 
 81,960 Index linked securities  56,809 
 291,722 Equities (pooled funds)  318,149 
 74,543 Property (pooled funds)  62,104 
 28,465 Private equity  31,779 
 39,600 Hedge fund of funds  49,365 

2,746  Cash & short term 
investments 

5,947  

2,081  Current assets 3,215  

4,827 615,583 Total financial assets 9,162 646,823 

    Financial Liabilities   

(1,471)  Current liabilities (1,412)  

(1,471)    (1,412)  

 

Note 20B: Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value 

The valuation of financial instruments has been classified into three levels, according to 

the quality and reliability of information used to determine fair values. 

Level 1 

Financial instruments at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from 

unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products 

classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted index linked 

securities and unit trusts. 

Level 2 

Financial instruments at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for 

example, where an instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or 

where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value and where these techniques 

use inputs that are based significantly on observable market data. 

Level 3 

Financial instruments at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a 

significant effect on the instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. 

Page 66



ANNUAL REPORT 

41 

Such instruments would include unquoted investments and hedge fund of funds, which are 

valued using various valuation techniques that require significant judgement in determining 

appropriate assumptions. 

The private equity values are based on valuations provided by the general partners to the 

private equity funds in which the Powys Pension Fund has invested. 

The hedge fund values are based on the net asset value provided by the fund manager. 

The tables below show the financial assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund grouped into 

levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable. 

Value as at 31 Mar 19 Level 1 
£’000 

Level 2 
£’000 

Level 3 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

Investments 432,466 139,160 81,144 652,770 

Current assets 3,215 - - 3,215 

Current liabilities (1,412) - - (1,412) 

Net financial assets 434,269 139,160 81,144 654,573 

 

Value as at 31 Mar 18 Level 1 
£’000 

Level 2 
£’000 

Level 3 
£’000 

Total 
£’000 

Investments 475,721 74,543 68,063 618,327 

Current assets 2,081 - - 2,081 

Current liabilities (1,470) - - (1,470) 

Net financial assets 476,332 74,543 68,063 618,938 

 
Reconciliation of Level 3 movements 
 

Level 3 asset Value as at 
31 Mar 18 
 
£’000 

Purchases, 
sales & 
transfers 
£’000 

Change in 
market 
value 
£’000 

Value as at 
31 Mar 19 
 
£’000 

Hedge funds 39,599 8,472 1,294 49,365 

Private equity 28,465 (1,568) 4,882 31,779 

Total 68,064 6,904 6,176 81,144 

 
 
 
  

Page 67



 

42 

Note 21: Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 
CIPFA’s Code of Practice requires the disclosure for the year ending 31 March 2016 of the 

actuarial valuation of promised retirement benefits as set out in IAS 26. The actuarial 

present value should be calculated on an IAS 19 basis. IAS 26 is the accounting standard 

that sets out the requirements for accounting and reporting in respect of retirement and the 

requirements for accounting and reporting of promised retirement benefit plans following 

the move to financial reporting of the Pension Fund Accounts under the IFRS. 

The actuarial present value of the promised retirement benefits were as follows 

31 March 2013 31 March 2016 
£’000 £’000 

632,400 724,600 

 

Assumptions used 

 31 March 2013 
% 

31 March 2016 
% 

Discount rate 4.4 3.4 

Inflation (CPI) 2.4 1.8 

Salary increase rate 3.9 3.3 

 
McCloud Judgement 

In December 2018 the Court of Appeal ruled in the ‘McCloud/Sargeant’ judgement that the 

transitional protection arrangements put in place when the Firefighters’ and Judges’ 

pension schemes were reformed were age discriminatory. The Government applied to the 

Supreme Court for permission to appeal this judgement, however the Supreme Court 

rejected the government’s request on 27 June 2019. The next stage is for the case to be 

referred to the Employment Tribunal to agree the remedy, following appropriate 

consultation. 

While the judgement was not in relation to members with LGPS benefits it would be 

reasonable to assume that Government will now seek a remedy for all public sector 

schemes, including the LGPS, with the remedy potentially differing by Scheme depending 

on the transitional protections adopted. 

Any remedy, and hence the amount to recognise is uncertain. The Government Actuary’s 

Department (GAD), under instruction of the LGPS Advisory Board (England and Wales), 

were asked to calculate the ‘worst-case’ scenario impact at LGPS Scheme Level on 

assumptions that are reflective of those that are used for accounting. The GAD Report 

provided a worst case scenario that the additional liability is calculated using 3.2% of the 

active liabilities. The active liabilities at the 2016 valuation were £222.2m, applying 3.2% 

would mean an additional £7.1m liability.  This figure has not been included in the 

accounts of the pension fund elsewhere, due to the uncertainty.  The actuary will provide 

an up-to-date 2019 valuation in 2019-20. 

  

Page 68



ANNUAL REPORT 

43 

Note 22: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 

Risk and Risk Management 

The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. 

promised benefits payable to members.) Therefore the aim of investment risk 

management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund and to 

maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The Fund achieves 

this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency 

risk and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund 

manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast 

cash flows. The council manages these investment risks as part of its overall pension fund 

risk management programme. Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy 

rests with the Pension Fund Committee. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and 

foreign exchange rates and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from its 

investment activities, particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure 

depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the 

asset mix.  

The objective of the Fund’s risk management is to identify, manage and control market risk 

exposure within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk. 

In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the 

portfolio in terms of geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate 

market risk, the Council and its investment advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of 

market conditions and benchmark analysis. Specific risk exposure is limited by applying 

risk-weighted maximum exposures to individual investments. 

Equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual securities may 

also be used to manage market risk on equity investments. It is possible for over-the-

counter equity derivative contracts to be used in exceptional circumstances to manage 

specific aspects of market risk. 

Other Price Risk 

Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as 

a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or 

foreign exchange risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 

individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all such instruments in the market. 

The Fund is exposed to price risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund for which 

the future price is uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. 

Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is 

determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. Possible losses from shares sold 

short are unlimited. 

The Fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification. 

Other Price Risk – Sensitivity Analysis 

The following movements in market price risk are considered reasonably possible for 

2018/19. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency 

exchange rates and interest rates remain unchanged. 

Page 69



 

44 

Asset Type 

Value as at 
31 Mar 19 

Percentage 
Change 

Value on 
Increase 

Value on 
Decrease 

£’000 % £’000 £’000 

Active Equity 113,584 9.85 124,773 102,395 

Passive Equity 204,565 10.04 225,113 184,016 

UK Corporate Bonds 38,579 5.27 40,613 36,544 

Absolute Bonds 47,097 1.97 48,026 46,168 

Index Linked 86,418 15.10 99,467 73,369 

Government Bonds 13,332 4.23 13,896 12,768 

Property 62,104 2.18 63,459 60,750 

Private Equity 31,779 10.45 35,101 28,457 

Hedge Funds 49,365 2.32 50,512 48,218 

Cash & short term 
investments 

5,947 0.17 5,958 5,937 

Total Assets 652,770 5.83 706,918 598,622 

 

  

Page 70



ANNUAL REPORT 

45 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on 

investments. These investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk 

that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 

The Fund’s interest rate and return are monitored by the Council and its investment 

advisors as part of the monthly and quarterly reporting and assessment of interest rate 

return against benchmark. 

A 0.75% volatility associated with interest rates is considered likely, based on the 

Authorities Treasury Management advisors latest advice. The Fund’s exposure to interest 

rate movements as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 is set out below. 

As at 
31 Mar 18 

£’000 Asset Type 

As at 
31 Mar 19 

£’000 

2,746 Cash Instruments 5,947 

1,374 Cash balances 2,557 

99,294 Bonds 128,617 

103,414 Total 137,121 

 

Currency Risk 

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is 

exposed to currency risk on financial instruments that are denominated in any currency 

other than the functional currency of the fund (£UK). The fund holds both monetary and 

non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than £UK. 

The fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by the Council and its investment 

advisors in accordance with the Fund’s risk management, including monitoring the range 

of exposure to currency fluctuations. 

  

Page 71



 

46 

The fund’s currency exposure as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 is set out below. 

As at 
31 Mar 18 

£’000  

As at 
31 Mar 19 

£’000 

28,465 Private equity 31,779 

36,165 Equities (Pooled Funds) 36,528 

64,630 Total 68,307 

 
A 10% volatility associated with exchange rates is considered likely, based on analysis of 

historical movements. 

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. 

A 10% strengthening/weakening of the pound against the various currencies in which the 

fund holds investments would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay benefits 

as follows: 

Asset Type 

Value as at 
31 Mar 19 

Value on Increase Value on Decrease 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Private equity 31,779 34,957 28,601 

Equities (Pooled Funds) 36,528 40,181 32,875 

Total 68,307 75,138 61,476 

 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial 

instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the fund to incur a financial loss. 

The market values of investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing 

and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the fund’s 

financial assets and liabilities. 

In essence the fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, 

with the exception of the derivatives positions, where the risk equates to the net market 

value of a positive derivative position. However the selection of high quality counterparties, 

brokers and financial institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure to 

settle a transaction in a timely manner. 

Contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment or receipt that remains 

outstanding, and the cost of replacing the derivative position in the event of counterparty 

default. The residual risk is minimal due to the various insurance policies held by the 

exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties. 

Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated 

independently and meet the council’s credit criteria. The council has also set limits as to 

the maximum percentage of the deposits placed with any one class of financial institution. 

  

Page 72



ANNUAL REPORT 

47 

The Council believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk, and has had no 

experience of default or uncollectable deposits over the past five financial years. The table 

below shows the funds cash holding as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019. 

 Rating 
As at 31 Mar 18 

£’000 
As at 31 Mar 19 

£’000 

Bank Current Account    

HSBC AA- 3 91 

Bank Deposit Account    

HSBC AA- 1,372 2,466 

 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the fund will not be able to meet its financial 

obligations as they fall due. The Council therefore takes steps to ensure that the pension 

fund has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. This will particularly be the 

case for meeting the pensioner payroll costs; and also cash to meet investment 

commitments. 

The Fund has immediate access to its pension fund cash holdings. 

The fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three 

months. Illiquid assets are those assets which will take longer than three months to 

convert in to cash. As at 31 March 2019 the value of illiquid assets was £143.2m, which 

represented 21.9% of the total fund assets - (31 March 2018 - £142.6m, which 

represented 23.1% of the total fund assets). 

Management prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to understand and manage the timing 

of the fund’s cash flows. The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms 

part of the fund’s investment strategy. 

All financial liabilities at 31 March 2019 are due within one year. 

Refinancing risk 

The key risk is that the Council will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its 

pension fund financial instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Council 

does not have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its treasury 

management and investment strategies. 

Note 23: Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet 

Been Adopted. 
The Code of Practice requires that the Authority discloses information relating to the 

impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been 

issued but not yet adopted. This requirement applies to accounting standards that come 

into effect for financial years commencing on or before 1 January of the financial year in 

question (i.e. on or before 1 January 2019 for 2019/20). None of the standards introduced 

in the 2019/20 code are expected to have a material impact on the financial statements. 

 

  

Page 73



 

48 

The independent auditor’s statement of the Auditor General 

for Wales to the members of Powys Pension Fund on the 

Annual Report 
 

I have examined the pension fund accounts and related notes contained in the 2018-19 

Annual Report of Powys Pension Fund to establish whether they are consistent, in all 

material respects, with the pension fund accounts and related notes included in the 

Statement of Accounts produced by Powys County Council for the year ended 31 March 

2019 which were authorised for issue on 06 September 2019. The pension fund accounts 

comprise the Fund Account and the Net Assets Statement. 

Opinion 

In my opinion the pension fund accounts and related notes included in the Annual Report 

of Powys Pension Fund are consistent, in all material respects, with the pension fund 

accounts and related notes included in the Statement of Accounts produced by Powys 

County Council for the year ended 31 March 2019 which were authorised for issue on 06 

September 2019 on which I issued an unqualified opinion. 

I have not considered the effects of any events between the date on which I issued my 

opinion on the pension fund accounts included in the pension fund’s Statement of 

Accounts, 10 September 2019 and the date of this statement. 

Respective responsibilities of the Administering Authority and the Auditor General 

for Wales 

The Administering Authority, Powys County Council, is responsible for preparing the 

Annual Report. My responsibility is to report my opinion on whether the pension fund 

accounts and related notes contained in the Annual Report are consistent, in all material 

respects, with the pension fund accounts and related notes included in the Statement of 

Accounts of the Pension Fund. I also read the other information contained in the Annual 

Report and consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any misstatements 

or material inconsistencies with the pension fund accounts. This other information 

comprises the Chairman’s Statement, Pension Board Report, Fund Administration Report, 

Investment Policy and Performance Report, and the Statement of the Actuary. 

 

 

      

 

Anthony J Barrett       24 Cathedral Road 

For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales  Cardiff 

October 2019       CF11 9LJ 

 

 

Page 74



ANNUAL REPORT 

49 

Statement of the Actuary for the Year Ended 31 March 
 

Introduction 

The Scheme Regulations require that a full actuarial valuation is carried out every third 
year. The purpose of this is to establish that the Powys County Council Pension Fund (the 
Fund) is able to meet its liabilities to past and present contributors and to review employer 
contribution rates. The last full actuarial investigation into the financial position of the Fund 
was completed as at 31 March 2016 by Aon, in accordance with Regulation 62 of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.  

Actuarial Position 

1. The valuation as at 31 March 2016 showed that the funding ratio of the Fund had 
increased since the previous valuation with the market value of the Fund’s assets 
as at 31 March 2016 (of £501.8M) covering 80% of the liabilities allowing, in the 
case of  
pre- 1 April 2014 membership for current contributors to the Fund, for future 
increases in pensionable pay.  

2. The valuation also showed that the theoretical aggregate level of contributions 
required to be paid by participating employers with effect from 1 April 2017 was: 

 18.6% of pensionable pay. This is the rate calculated as being sufficient, 
together with contributions paid by members, to meet the liabilities arising in 
respect of service after the valuation date (the primary rate), 

Plus 

 Monetary amounts to restore the assets to 100% of the liabilities in respect of 
service prior to the valuation date over a recovery period of 22 years from 1 April 
2017 (the secondary rate), equivalent to approximately 8.0% of pensionable pay 
(or £6.6M in 2017/18, and increasing by 3.5% p.a. thereafter).  

3. In practice, each individual employer's or group of employers' position is assessed 
separately and contributions are set out in Aon's report dated 31 March 2017 (the 
"actuarial valuation report"). In addition to the contributions certified, payments to 
cover additional liabilities arising from early retirements (other than ill-health 
retirements) will be made to the Fund by the employers. Due to stepping in of 
contributions, the actual contributions paid from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 are 
likely to be lower than those set out in 2 above. 

4. The funding plan adopted in assessing the contributions for each individual 
employer or group is in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement. Different 
approaches adopted in implementing contribution increases and individual 
employers' recovery periods were agreed with the Administering Authority reflecting 
the employers' circumstances.  

5. The valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial method for most 
employers and the main financial actuarial assumptions used for assessing the 
funding target and the contribution rates were as follows. 

Discount rate 4.4% p.a. 

Rate of pay increases 3.5% p.a. 

Rate of increase to pension accounts 2.0% p.a. 

Page 75



 

50 

Rate of increases in pensions in payment  
(in excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension) 

2.0% p.a. 

 

In addition the discount rate for already orphaned liabilities (i.e. where there is no 

scheme employer responsible for funding those liabilities) was 2.1% p.a. 

 The assets were valued at market value. 

Further details of the assumptions adopted for the valuation, including the 

demographic assumptions, are set out in the actuarial valuation report. 

6. The valuation results summarised in paragraphs 1 and 2 above are based on the 
financial position and market levels at the valuation date, 31 March 2016. As such 
the results do not make allowance for changes which have occurred subsequent to 
the valuation date. 

7. The formal actuarial valuation report and the Rates and Adjustments Certificate 
setting out the Employer contribution rates for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2020 were signed on 31 March 2017. Other than as permitted or required by 
the Regulations, employer contribution rates will be reviewed at the next actuarial 
valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 in accordance with Regulation 62 of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. 

8. Since the date the valuation report was signed, there have been a number of 
developments in respect of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS): 

 Increases to GMPs: 
HM Treasury, in its response to the consultation on indexation and equalisation 
of GMPs in public sector schemes, announced an extension of the indexation of 
GMPs to those reaching State Pension Age on or before 5 April 2021 
(previously 5 December 2018). This extension period was not allowed for in the 
valuation results as the actuarial valuation report was signed off in advance of 
this announcement, but the increase in liability is not expected to be material. In 
addition, on 26 October 2018 the High Court ruled in the Lloyds Banking Group 
case that schemes are required to equalise male and female members' benefit 
for the effect of unequal GMPs. Our understanding is that this will not alter HM 
Treasury's approach to GMP equalisation in the LGPS. 

 Cost Management Process and McCloud judgement: 
Legislation requires HM Treasury and the LGPS Advisory Board to undertake 
periodic valuations to monitor the cost of the LGPS to ensure it remains 
sustainable and affordable. Initial results from the Scheme Advisory Board 
process indicated that benefit improvements / member contribution reductions 
would be required. However, the cost management process has been paused 
following the Court of Appeal ruling that the transitional arrangements in both the 
Judges' Pension Scheme (McCloud) and Firefighters' Pension Scheme 
(Sergeant) were age discriminatory; these cases could have knock on 
implications for the LGPS (potentially increasing the liabilities) which also had 
transitional arrangements when the new scheme was introduced with effect from 
April 2014. 

9. The actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 is currently underway and 
the Regulations require the formal report on the valuation and the Rates and 
Adjustments Certificate setting out employer contributions commencing from 1 April 
2020 to be signed off by 31 March 2020. Asset values have increased in value 
since 2016, on its own leading to an improvement in the funding level due to higher 

Page 76



ANNUAL REPORT 

51 

than assumed investment returns. Liability values and employer contributions, as 
well as being affected by the items listed in paragraph 8 above, will depend upon 
membership factors, changes to expectations of future returns and other 
assumptions (including allowance for the slow-down in longevity improvements) and 
any changes to funding strategy made as part of the 2019 valuation. 

10. This Statement has been prepared by the current Actuary to the Fund, Aon, for 
inclusion in the accounts of the Fund. It provides a summary of the results of their 
actuarial valuation which was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation 
provides a snapshot of the funding position at the valuation date and is used to 
assess the future level of contributions required. 

 This Statement must not be considered without reference to the formal actuarial 

valuation report which details fully the context and limitations of the actuarial 

valuation. 

 Aon does not accept any responsibility or liability to any party other than our client, 

Powys County Council, the Administering Authority of the Fund, in respect of this 

Statement. 

11. The actuarial valuation report is available on the Fund's website at the following 
address: 
http://www.powyspensionfund.org/media/2717/powys-pension-fund-valuation-
report-31-march-2016.pdf 

 

Aon Hewitt Limited 

May 2019 

Page 77

http://www.powyspensionfund.org/media/2717/powys-pension-fund-valuation-report-31-march-2016.pdf
http://www.powyspensionfund.org/media/2717/powys-pension-fund-valuation-report-31-march-2016.pdf


 

52 

Appendix 1: Pensions and Investment Committee 
 
Over the year the Committee met on 6 occasions, Member attendance is shown in the 

following table: 

  

1
3

/0
7

/2
0

1
8
 

0
6

/0
9

/2
0

1
8
 

1
9

/1
0

/2
0

1
8
 

1
3

/1
2

/2
0

1
8
 

2
8

/0
1

/2
0

1
9
 

0
8

/0
3

/2
0

1
9
 

O
v

e
ra

ll
 %

 

P Lewis       100% 

T Van-Rees       100% 

J Morris       67% 

EA Jones       67% 

H Williams       100% 

A Davies       83% 

AMC Weale       50% 

Attendance 100% 71% 57% 100% 57% 100%  

 
  

Page 78



ANNUAL REPORT 

53 

Members of the Committee have also taken part in Pension Fund training and attended 

relevant seminars and conferences as detailed below: 

Date/Seminar P
 L

e
w

is
 

E
 A

 J
o

n
e
s
 

J
 M

o
rr

is
 

T
 V

a
n

-R
e
e

s
 

H
 W

il
li

a
m

s
 

A
 D

a
v

ie
s
 

A
 M

 C
 

W
e

a
le

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

11/05/2018 
 Aon Investment Training 

 
      

14% 

14/06/2018 
P&I Induction 

    
 

  
14% 

21/06/2018 
Pension Fund Training Day 

LA Forum 
     

 

 86% 

13/07/2018 
CEM Performance 

Management 
       100% 

13/07/2018 
Hedge Fund MAN Group 

       100% 

05/09/2018 
Investment Manager 

Engagement Day 
 

      
14% 

08/11/2018 
Pension Fund Training Day 

LA Forum 
       71% 

14/11/2018 
Russell Investment Summit 

 
      14% 

13/12/2018 
Securities Lending 

       100% 

28/01/2019 
Equity Protection 

   
   57% 

08/03/2019 
Responsible Investment 

       100% 

Attendance 82% 55% 55% 55% 73% 55% 55%  

 
 

Page 79



 

54 

Appendix 2: Pension Board 
The Pension Board is the local pension board for the Pension Fund responsible for the 

oversight, scrutiny and where appropriate, assisting the Pensions & Investment 

Committee. The Board was established with effect from 1 April 2015 in accordance with 

the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Board is governed on a 

day-to-day basis by its Terms of Reference which sets out the Board’s remit and its 

membership requirements. 

The Board has an independent Chair (who regularly attends Pensions & Investment 

Committee as an observer) together with two representatives each of Fund Employers and 

Scheme Members. The Board receives support and advice from Officers of Powys County 

Council and may seek advice and information from external professional advisers. During 

2018/19 the membership of the Board was as follows: 

Mr G Moore (Independent Chair) 
Cllr W Thomas (Fund Employer Representative) 
Mr N Brinn (Fund Employer Representative)  
Mr J Byrne (Scheme Member Representative) 
Mr M Hutchison (Scheme Member Representative) 
 
Over the year the Board met on 3 occasions: the 10 July 2018, 21 September 2018 and 30 

of November 2018.  The meeting of the 5 of March 2019, was re-scheduled and took place 

on the 3 of April 2019.  The attendance of these meetings is as detailed in the Pension 

Board report (page 6). 

Throughout the year, members of the Board have also taken part in Pension Fund training 

and attended relevant seminars and conferences as detailed below: 

Date/Seminar G
 M

o
o

re
 

W
 T

h
o

m
a

s
 

N
 B

ri
n

n
 

J
 B

ry
rn

e
 

M
 

H
u

tc
h

in
s

o
n

 

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

27/06/2018 
CIPFA – Intro to LGPS   

   
60% 

10/07/2018 
Data Quality Training   

 
  

80% 

13/07/2018 
Performance Management Training      20% 

13/07/2018 
Hedge Fund Training      20% 

10/10/2018 
CIPFA LGPS Seminar      40% 

08/11/2018 
Pension Fund Training Day 

 
    40% 

11/01/2019 
New Board member Induction  

 
   40% 

28/01/2019 
Equity Protection      20% 

08/03/2019 
Responsible Investment      20% 

20/03/2019 
LGPS Pension Board Event      20% 

Attendance 90% 40% 20% 10% 20%  

Page 80



ANNUAL REPORT 

55 

Appendix 3: Fund Employers 
Powys County Council administers the scheme for employees and ex-employees of the 

following bodies: 

Scheduled Bodies Admitted Bodies 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority, 
Brecon Town Council, 
Knighton Town Council, 
Llandrindod Wells Town Council, 
Llanidloes Burial Joint Committee, 
Llanidloes Town Council, 
Machynlleth Town Council, 
Newtown and Llanllwchaiarn Town Council, 
Powys County Council, 
Powys Magistrates Courts’ Committee, 
Welshpool Town Council, 
Ystradfellte Community Council, 
Ystradgynlais Town Council 

Adapt Business Services 
Agoriad 
Aramark Ltd 
BUPA Care Homes, 
Camping & Caravanning Club, 
Careers Wales Powys, 
Development Board for Rural Wales, 
Elite Supported employment Agency, 
Freedom Leisure, 
Heart of Wales Property Services Ltd 
Kier Facilities Services Ltd. 
MENCAP, 
Menter Maldwyn, 
Mirus Wales, 
Powys Association of Voluntary Organisations, 
Powys Dance, 
Powys Valuation Panel, 
Presteigne Shire Hall Museum Trust, 
Solo Service Group, 
Theatr Brycheiniog, 
Wales European Centre, 
Ystradgynlais Miners Welfare & Community 
Hall Trust Ltd 

 
Community Councils and various other statutory bodies have the right to be included in the 

Fund. Other bodies can be admitted at the discretion of the County Council. 

Contact List and Communications 

A copy of this report is available to anyone on demand, subject to a small administration 

charge. A full copy of the report can be viewed at www.powyspensionfund.org. Should you 

have any comments on the financial statement or any other pension matter please contact 

the appropriate officer in the following list: 

Pension Scheme, Fund Governance & Other Matters 

Pension Fund Manager Mr C Hurst 01597 827640 

Pensions Administration Manager    Mrs M Price  01597 827642 

Accounts & Investment 

Pension Fund Accounts Mr D Paley 01597 826042 

 

 

 

 

Page 81

http://www.powyspensionfund.org/


 

56 

Appendix 4: Investment Strategy Statement 
 

1.1 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds in England and Wales are 

required to publish an Investment Strategy Statement (ISS)1 which must address 

the following: 

 to ensure that asset allocation strategies are sufficiently diversified; 

 to include the authority’s assessment of the suitability of asset classes; 

 to include the administering authority’s approach to risk, the assessment of risks 
and how they are to be managed;  

 the authority’s approach to the pooling of investments, including the use of 
collective investment vehicles and shared services; 

 the authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate governance 
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention 
and realisation of investments; 

 the administering authority’s policy of the exercise of the rights (including voting 
rights) attaching to investments; 

 set out the maximum percentage of the total value of all investments that it will 
invest in in particular asset classes;  

 review the ISS periodically and at least every three years. 

 
1.2 Further, LGPS funds in England and Wales are required under Guidance from the 

Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) to progress plans to pool the investment of assets, which will result in 
changes in the way that the Powys Pension Fund’s (Fund's) assets will be managed 
moving forward.   

 
1.3 Therefore, this ISS will be reviewed every three years after the investment strategy 

has been reviewed and is confirmed as fit for purpose. In addition the ISS will be 
reviewed following changes to the investment strategy. 

 
1.4 A copy of this ISS will be made available on request to any interested party. 
 
  

                                            
1 Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 
(SI 2016 No.946) 

Page 82



ANNUAL REPORT 

57 

2. Overall Responsibility 

2.1 The County Council is the designated statutory body responsible for administering 

the Fund on behalf of its constituent scheduled and admitted bodies. 

 
2.2 Elected Members have a fiduciary duty to the Fund, Scheme members and local 

council taxpayers in relation to the delivery of the LGPS. Functions may be 

delegated to Officers but the Members retain overall responsibility for the 

management of the Fund and its investment strategy and individual decisions about 

investments. The County Council is responsible for setting investment policy, 

appointing suitable persons to implement that policy and carrying out monitoring 

and reviews of investment and performance. The County Council’s Constitution 

delegates these functions to the Pensions & Investment Committee. 

 
2.3 Under the regulations the Secretary of State has the power to intervene in the 

investment function of an administering authority if the administering authority does 

not have regard to the Regulations, guidance or if other concerns are raised. This 

may include changing the ISS and, in the extreme, the transfer of investment 

powers to the Secretary of State or another nominated person. 

 
2.4 The Investment Regulations permit the appointment of one or more investment 

managers to manage the Fund on behalf of the administering authority, provided 

that the investment managers are suitably qualified by their ability and practical 

experience of financial matters to make investment decisions for them, and to their 

compliance with other specific requirements of the regulations.   

 
2.5 Administering authorities are required to take proper advice to enable them to fulfil 

their obligations, “Proper advice” is defined in the regulations as “the advice of a 

person who is reasonably believed to be qualified by his ability and practical 

experience of financial matters”. 

 
2.6 The County Council has delegated the decision-making responsibilities to the 

Pensions and Investment Committee. The Section 151 Officer and external fund 

advisors offer advisory support. The Committee has co-opted two non-voting 

members, one staff representative nominated by the Trade Unions and one 

representative nominated by the Outside Bodies Employers.  

 
2.7 There is also a Local Pension Board which provides oversight to ensure the Fund is 

effectively managed. 

 
  

Page 83



 

58 

2.8 Decisions affecting the Fund’s investment strategy are taken with appropriate 

advice from the Fund’s advisors. Only persons or organisations with the necessary 

skills, information and resources take decisions affecting the Fund. The Members of 

the Pension and Investment Committee will ensure they receive training as and 

when deemed appropriate, to enable them to evaluate critically any advice they 

receive. 

 
2.9 The County Council has in place arrangements for the provision of specialist advice 

relating to actuarial matters (including the triennial valuation) and investment 

matters (including asset allocation and manager appointments).  

 
2.10 The County Council has appointed independent specialists to provide actuarial and 

investment advice and is prepared to pay sufficient fees to attract a broad range of 

both kinds of providers when tendering. 

 
2.11 The County Council will use suitable means to assess the advice received from its 

advisors in terms of its contribution to the decision making process. 

 
2.12 Appropriate performance data will be included in the annual report and statement of 

accounts for the Fund and in the annual members' newsletter. 

 
2.13 Investment Committee 

 
2.13.1 Powys County Council delegates responsibility for the administrating authority role 

to the Pensions & Investment Committee (The Committee). This includes investing 

the Fund's assets. The Committee is supported by the Fund Administrator and 

investment advisors. 

 
2.13.2 The Committee is responsible in respect of investment matters: 

a. To determine the overall strategy relating to the investment of the Fund’s 
assets and to meeting the Fund’s liabilities. 

b. To keep under review the performance of the Fund and the Fund’s 
managers. 

c. To approve the appointment of advisors and fund managers (unless the 
assets are invested in pooled arrangements in which case the latter may be 
delegated). 

d.   To publicise the stewardship role to all Scheduled and Admitted Bodies of the 
Powys Pension Fund and to all contributors and beneficiaries in accordance 
with the Fund’s Communication Strategy. 

e. The Pensions and Investment Committee regularly monitors the investment 
performance of the Fund in both absolute terms and against the specific 
benchmarks set. A review of overall or asset class specific benchmarks will 
be undertaken if the Pensions and Investment Committee considers it 
appropriate. 

Page 84



ANNUAL REPORT 

59 

2.14 Investment Managers 

 
2.14.1 Each investment manager, or subsequent manager of the Fund’s investments, will 

be responsible for: 

a. Discretionary management of their portfolio, in accordance with the terms of 
their management agreement, having regard to the need for diversification of 
investments so far as appropriate and the suitability of investments. 

b. Providing the Committee with quarterly statements of the assets together 
with a quarterly report on their actions and future intentions, and any 
changes to the processes applied to their portfolio. 

c. Providing the designated provider with the information necessary to calculate 
performance statistics. 

d. Investment manager(s) are permitted to use authorised financial instruments 
in appropriate circumstances following prior discussion and approval. 
Approval will not be withheld without clear justification. 

e. The investment manager(s) are required to produce a quarterly investment 
report and to attend Pension and Investment Committee meetings as 
appropriate. 

f. The County Council requires the investment manager(s) to provide details of 
the commission payments they receive on asset transactions (including soft 
commissions if applicable) and how they assess their overall trading 
efficiency. By discussing these matters with the investment manager(s), the 
County Council seeks to gain a full understanding of the transaction-related 
costs that the Fund incurs, and to understand the options open to the County 
Council in relation to those costs. 

 
2.15 Investment Consultant 

 
2.15.1 The Investment Consultant will be responsible for providing prompt, consistent and 

competent advice and support through one or two named representatives, in respect 
of investment matters when so requested by the Committee. Advice and support is 
likely to be sought in regard of: 

 
a. Review of the Investment Strategy Statement. 

b. Presentation and interpretation of investment performance measurement 

results. 

c. The Potential impact of: 

 any changes in the investment managers’ organisations that could affect 
the interests of the Fund; 

 any changes in the investment environment that could present either 
opportunities or problems for the Fund. 

d. Investment manager selection, retention and termination (until such time as 

the investment pool takes over such responsibilities);  

e. Benchmark adjustments; 

Page 85



 

60 

f. The appropriate content of investment management and other related    

Agreements; 

g. Appropriate investment structures for the Fund in the light of the Fund’s 

liability profile. This will involve working with the Fund’s Actuary and, in time, 

discussion with the investment pool. 

h. Ad-hoc project work as required. 

i. The independent investment advisor who attends each Pensions and 

Investment Committee meeting is required to produce a separate report on 

investment performance quarterly. 

 
2.16 Pensions Board 

 
2.16.1 The role of the board is to assist the Powys County Council pension fund in complying 

with all the legislative requirements making sure the scheme is being effectively and 
efficiently governed and managed. 

 
2.16.2 The board members work with the Council in its role as an administering authority 

and with the pension fund's officers to ensure that your pension scheme is being run 
properly. 

 
2.16.3 To comply with requirements imposed by regulations including those which are 

enforced by the Pensions Regulator, the members of the local pension board are 
required to maintain their knowledge and understanding of the LGPS and pensions 
in general, so receive appropriate training. 

 
3. Investment Objectives 

3.1 The long term investment objectives of the Fund are to: 
 

 maximise investment returns over the long term within an acceptable level of 
risk; 

 ensure that sufficient assets are readily available to meet liabilities as they 
fall due; 

 aim for long-term stability in the employers' contribution rates; 

 achieve and maintain funding levels at, or close to, 100% of the Fund's 
liabilities. 

 
3.2 Risk is mainly concerned with the possibility of a deficiency in the Fund or a 

substantial increase, or volatility, in future employer contribution rates. 
 
  

Page 86



ANNUAL REPORT 

61 

3.3 Whilst stability of the employers' rate has a high priority, absolute cost to the 
employer is also important. This implies that: 

 

 the cost of administering the Fund will be constrained by the adoption of best 
management practice; 

 employers will adopt appropriate policies in those areas where they have 
discretion and where costs of their actions fall on the Fund; 

 the Fund will, as far as is practicable, and through the Fund's Actuary, avoid 
cross subsidisation between the Fund's individual employers; 

 the Fund's overall investment policy will be aimed at superior investment 
returns relative to the growth of liabilities. This implies that the Fund will take 
a controlled active risk relative to its liability profile. 

 
4. The Balance Between Different Types of Investments 
 
4.1 The County Council seeks to achieve its investment objectives through investing in 

a suitable mixture of real and monetary assets. A mixture across the asset classes 

should provide the level of returns required by the Fund to meet its liabilities at an 

acceptable level of risk and at an acceptable level of cost. 

 
4.2 The current strategic asset allocation is 70% return seeking and 30% risk reducing 

(matching assets). This strategy was determined with the aid of our Investment 

Advisors in order to ensure the balance between expected return and risk is 

appropriate and the expected return is sufficient. In addition the split between 

potential asset classes has been set to ensure there isn't excessive exposure to any 

particular asset class or specific risk such as equities or credit risk. 

 
4.3 To ensure that asset allocation is sufficiently diversified the Fund's investment 

strategy has been set using modelling techniques that cover all mainstream asset 
classes including those most likely to be available through the pooling 
arrangements available to the Wales Pension Partnership. In addition 

 
  

Page 87



 

62 

4.4  The current strategic benchmark is as follows: 
 

Asset Class % Max % Benchmark Index 

Equities* 47 55  

Active 19  MSCI All Countries World 
(NDR)  

Passive 28  FTSE Developed World 

Bonds 30 35  

Corporate Bonds 6  iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilts All 
Maturities 

Index-Linked Gilts 15  FTSE UK Index-Linked 
over 5 years 

Gilts 3  FTSE UK Gilts All Stock 

Absolute Return Bonds 6  3 Month GBP LIBOR 

Property 10 15 IPD Index 

Private Equity 5 10 MSCI AC World ex UK 

Hedge Funds 8 15 3 Month LIBOR 

Total 100   

  
*50% of currency risk from overseas equities is hedged back to Sterling. An equity 

protection strategy was implemented on 2 and 3 April 2019 to cover the currency hedged 

overseas equities. More information can be found in section 5.7. 

 
4.5 There is also an agreement to invest 10% of assets allocated to equities in 

infrastructure when suitable opportunities for investment are available. 

 
4.6 In reaching its decisions on asset allocation the County Council will: 

 take proper advice from specialist, independent advisors and give 
consideration to the desirability of receiving advice based on an asset / 
liability study.   

 consider the volatility of returns which it is prepared to accept. 

 determine the split between matching and returning seeking assets before it 
gives consideration to any other asset class. 

 have due regard to the diversification and suitability of investments. 

 
  

Page 88



ANNUAL REPORT 

63 

5. Approach to risk, the assessment of risks and how they are managed 
 
5.1 The Committee recognises that risk is inherent in any investment activity and it 

seeks to manage the level of risk that it takes in an appropriate manner. 
 
5.2 The main risk arising from the investment strategy will be a fall in the value of the 

investments relative to the value of the liabilities, potentially leading to higher 
contributions being required from the County Council and other employers within 
the Fund. 

 
5.3 Other risks include but are not limited to risks such as not having enough liquidity to 

meet cash requirements and third parties defaulting on contracts. 
 
5.4 The operational risk to the Fund is minimised by: 
 

 the use of a regulated, external, third party, professional custodian for 
custody of assets. 

 having formal contractual arrangements with investment managers. 

 having access to the internal audit service of Powys County Council. 

 the activities of the investment manager(s) being governed by detailed 
Investment Management Agreements. Investment managers are expected to 
have regards to these principles and legislative requirements, in particular 
the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (SI 
2016 No.946). 

 having formal agreements in place with admitted bodies.    

 
5.5 The investment risks to the Fund are managed by: 

 diversification of types of investment. 

 diversification of investment manager(s). 

 the setting of a Fund-specific benchmark informed by asset-liability modelling 
of liabilities. 

 the appointment of independent professional advisors. 

 the appointed expert investment manager(s) being given clear performance 
benchmarks and maximum accountability for performance against those 
benchmarks over appropriate time-scales.  

 investment manager(s) being required to implement appropriate risk 
management measures and to operate in such a manner that will ensure the 
likelihood of not achieving the performance target is kept within defined 
acceptable limits. 

 
  

Page 89



 

64 

5.6 In order to reduce the risk of assets increasing beyond agreed ranges there is also 
a Medium Term Asset Allocation (MTAA) project. This project utilises all of the 
Fund's assets excluding Private Equity. The MTAA service has the target of 
increasing the return achieved by these assets by 0.5% p.a. by deliberately 
allocating assets away from the strategic allocation to take advantage of market 
over/under valuations during the medium term. This service has run from 2009. The 
Pensions & Investment Committee has recently decided to extend the project 
period, with regular reviews as they see fit. The MTAA service has an artificial 
benchmark of 49.5% equity / 32% bond / 18.5% alternatives. It operates within 
tolerance bands so the difference between the actual allocation and the strategic 
allocation will not deviate beyond these set limits.  For further information on the 
MTAA project, please see Appendix B. 

 
5.7 The Fund has a 47% allocation to equities, which poses a significant risk to the 

investment returns (especially in a turbulent market which may be followed by a 
recession).  An equity protection strategy was put in place on 2 and 3 April 2019 
protecting £155.7m (as at 27 March 2019) of passively managed, currency hedged 
non-UK, and UK, equities against total return losses between 3% and 23%.  The 
protection uses two zero premium collars each with notional of £77.85m and 
expiring in December 2019 and March 2020.  The initial objective of the equity 
protection strategy is to protect the value of part of the Fund's equities until the 2019 
actuarial valuation is concluded and the future employer rates finalised.  The equity 
protection strategy may be extended to achieve other objectives at that time (or 
earlier).     

 
6. The expected return on investments 

 
6.1 The wider strategy has been set to target 5.8% pa over the long term with a 

volatility of 10.8% pa. This is based on assumptions at 30 September 2016 and will 

be subject to change depending on changes in market conditions. 

 
6.2 The investment manager(s) have been given specific performance targets 

measured against the index return in the relevant asset class. The County Council 

recognises that these targets will not be met in all periods under consideration, but 

expects that they will be met in the vast majority of periods under consideration.   

 
  

Page 90



ANNUAL REPORT 

65 

6.3 The performance targets for the investment manager(s) are shown in the table 

below:   

Investment 
Manager 

Mandate Benchmark Objective 

Link WPP Global Equity MSCI AC World (NDR)  To achieve long-term capital 
appreciation and outperform the 

benchmark by 2% p.a. gross of fees 

Hosking Global Equity MSCI AC World (NDR)  To outperform the benchmark by 3-
5% p.a. (gross of fees) over a typical 

market cycle 

BlackRock Balanced Composite benchmark To track the benchmark 

Aviva Investors UK Property IPD/PPFI All Balanced Funds 
Medium Index 

To outperform the benchmark by 1% 
p.a. over rolling 3 year periods. 

Hermes Fund 
Managers 

UK Property IPD Other Balanced Funds 
Index 

To outperform the benchmark by 
0.5% p.a. on a rolling three year 

basis 

Schroders UK Property IPD UK All Balanced Funds 
Index 

To outperform the benchmark by 
0.5% p.a. on a rolling three year 

basis 

CB Richard Ellis European 
Property 

UK Retails Price Index 
(The IPD UK Pooled 

Property Index will also be 
used for comparison 

purposes) 

Provide investors with a return of 8-
10% p.a., net of fees and expenses. 

Insight Asset 
Management 

UK Corporate 
Bonds 

 iBoxx Sterling Non-Gilt All 
Maturities Index 

To outperform the benchmark by 
0.75% p.a., net of fees 

Insight Asset 
Management 

Absolute 
Return Bonds 

3 month GBP LIBOR  To outperform the benchmark by 2% 
gross of fees 

Insight Asset 
Management 

Index-Linked 
Gilts 

N/A Collateral for equity protection 
strategy 

Standard Life 
Investment 

Private Equity 
(European) 

MSCI World To outperform the benchmark by 5% 
pa over a rolling three year period. 

HarbourVest 
Partners 

Private Equity 
(US) 

MSCI World No stated objective, just to produce 
returns which place HarbourVest in 

the top quartile in the industry 

Man Group 
Alternative 

Risk Premia 
3 Month GBP LIBOR 

To provide returns in a cost-effective 
manner by allocating capital to 

affiliated portfolio managers through 
funds that implement risk premia 

investment strategies with a volatility 
target of 8% p.a. 

Capital Fund 
Management 

Alternative 
Risk Premia 

3 Month GBP LIBOR 

To achieve long-term capital 
appreciation through returns that 

seek to be uncorrelated with 
traditional asset classes with a 

volatility target of 6% p.a.. 

Stone Milliner 
Discretionary 

Macro 
3 Month GBP LIBOR 

To seek absolute returns for 
investors over the medium to long 
term, primarily through pursuing a 
global macro investment strategy 

with a return target of 10% p.a. net of 
fees. 

Informed 
Portfolio 

Management 

Systematic 
Macro 

3 Month GBP LIBOR 

To seek to preserve capital and 
generate consistent absolute returns 

with a targeted level of volatility of 
15% p.a. 

 

Page 91



 

66 

6.4 The investment manager(s) benchmarks are based on market indices. The indices 

used were considered in consultation with the investment advisor and the 

investment manager(s) and carefully chosen with regard to their strategic suitability. 

The limits on the levels of divergence from these indices set out in the investment 

mandates were chosen with regard to the investment manager(s) overall 

performance objectives.   

 
7. The realisation of investments 

 
7.1 General investment principles require that issues of liquidity and marketability be 

considered in making any investment decision. The Fund is currently paying out 

more than it receives in contributions meaning the assets need to cover any 

shortfall. Where possible assets are held in income producing investments. This 

helps increase cash available to meet outgoings. Also the majority of assets are 

invested in funds with good liquidity which can be used to meet any outstanding 

cashflow requirements. 

 
7.2 The vast majority of the Fund’s assets are readily marketable. However some 

investments, such as property and private equity, are less easy to realise in a 

 timely manner. This relative illiquidity is not considered to have any significant 

adverse consequences for the fund, and may generate an investment return 

'illiquidity premium'. 

 
7.3 The County Council would inform the investment manager(s) of any projected need 

to withdraw funds in order to enable the investment manager(s) to plan an orderly 
realisation of assets if this proves necessary. 

 
8. Pooling 

 
8.1 The County Council will aim for all assets to be managed under pooled 

arrangements through the Wales Pensions Partnership investment pool.  

 
8.2 Investment opportunities outside the pooling arrangements will be considered if they 

are not already or likely to be available through the Wales Pension Partnership 

investment pool, and there are suitable resources to invest in and monitor the 

investment. These can include contracts related to financial futures or insurance. 

Appropriate advice will be sought on alternative asset classes when setting the 

strategy and as opportunities arise. 

 
8.2 Suitable asset classes include those available through the pooling arrangements as 

well as any asset class where the Pensions and Investment Committee have 
resource to understand and monitor the investment. This may include illiquid 
investments and other asset classes that offer improved risk and return 
expectations. 

 

9. Socially Responsible Investment 

Page 92



ANNUAL REPORT 

67 

 
9.1 The County Council has delegated responsibility for the selection, retention and 

 realisation of investments to the investment manager(s). 

 
9.2 The County Council’s policy is to invest part of the Fund’s assets on a passive 

basis. The County Council does not consider it appropriate for a passive investment 

manager to take account of social, environmental or ethical considerations in the 

selection, retention and realisation of investments. 

 
9.3 The County Council’s policy in respect of the actively managed portion of the 

Fund’s assets is that the extent to which social, environmental or ethical 

considerations are taken into account in the selection, retention and realisation of 

investments is left to the discretion of the active investment managers. However the 

County Council expects that the active investment manager(s) in the exercise of 

their delegated duties will take the extent to which social, environmental or ethical 

issues may have a financial impact on the portfolio into account. 

 
10. The exercise of the rights attaching to investments 

 
10.1 The County Council supports the principle of good corporate governance. It has 

reviewed and accepted the corporate governance policies of its Investment 

manager(s) who exercise its voting rights. Votes are cast by proxy. Investment 

manager(s) provide reports when any voting rights are exercised. Only direct 

investments in traded equity shares carry such voting rights.  

 
11. Corporate Governance 

 
11.1 The County Council supports the principle of good corporate governance. It has 

reviewed and accepted the corporate governance policies of its investment 

manager(s) who exercise its voting rights. Votes are cast by proxy. Each investment 

manager is required to report its actions on a quarterly basis. 

 
11.2 The County Council is aware of the UK Stewardship code and understands that, 

within the 2016 Investment regulations, there is a requirement that administering 

authorities should formally become signatories to the Code. 

 
11.3 Whilst not having formally signed up to the Code, the Fund aims to abide by the 

principles and recognises the importance of the investments being managed in 

accordance within these principles. The Fund, therefore, ensures that where 

appropriate its investment managers are themselves signed up to the code and thus 

manage the investments in accordance with the seven code principles. 

 

11.4 The Fund does already act on some of the principles of the UK Stewardship Code 

at a Fund level, one being via its membership of the Local Authority Pension Fund 

Page 93



 

68 

Forum (LAPFF), a collection organisation of LGPS who engage fund managers and 

investee companies to promote responsible investor/ownership practices. 

 
11.5 In addition to the requirement to become a signatory in its own right, the Fund will 

also expect both the Wales Pool and any directly appointed fund managers, to 

comply with the UK Stewardship Code. 

 
11.6 The principles of the UK Stewardship code are included in Appendix A for 

information. 

 
11.7 In addition to the above the Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund 

Forum which helps ensure governance is in line with current best practice. 

 
12. Stock Lending 
 
12.1 The Fund only currently invests in pooled vehicles so cannot undertake any stock 

lending. The stock lending policy on pooled funds is determined by the individual 

investment managers. Any income not retained by the fund manager and / or the 

lending agent is incorporated in the net asset values of each pooled fund. 

 
13. Monitoring and Implementing of Investment Policy 
 
13.1 The Committee will meet on a quarterly basis with the Investment Advisors to 

review and discuss the operation of each investment manager’(s) portfolio, 

including past and future policy decisions. The performance of the investment 

manager(s) will be monitored by the Committee on a quarterly basis at the 

Investment Committee meetings. 

 
13.2 The Committee, in conjunction with the Investment Consultant, will review the 

allocation of assets between the passive and specialist portfolios, property and other 
asset classes. 

 
13.3 The appointments of the investment manager(s) will be subject to review at the 

meeting held to consider the performance results from the designated provider. The 
review will be based on the monitoring of the Investment manager(s) processes as 
well as their performance. 

 
13.4 The investment manager(s) appointments, whilst subject to annual monitoring, 

would generally be reviewed over rolling 3 year periods, in line with their 
performance benchmarks. 

 
13.5 If an investment manager(s) performance prompts concerns then the Committee 

may ask the manager(s) to come to a meeting for a special review meeting. 

 

Page 94



ANNUAL REPORT 

69 

13.6 The Committee will assess, on an ongoing basis, the impact that investment 
through the Wales Pension Partnership has on monitoring and implementing of 
investment policy.  

Page 95



 

70 

Appendix A: Principles for Institutional Investment Decision Making  

Compliance with CIPFA Principles for Investment Decision Making in LGPS 

 
Principle 1 – Effective Decision Making 
 

Administering authorities should ensure that:  

 Decisions are taken by persons or organizations with the skills, 
knowledge, advice and resources necessary to make them effectively 
and monitor their implementation, and  

 Those persons or organizations have sufficient expertise to be able to 
evaluate and challenge the advice they receive, and manage conflicts of 
interest.  

 
Powys County Council is the Administering Authority with overall responsibility for Powys 

Pension Fund (PPF), which it delegates to its Pensions & Investment Committee and the 

Section 151 Officer. This Committee consists of 6 voting members; 1 non-voting member 

representing Pension Fund employers (elected by those Pension Fund employers); and, 1 

non-voting member representing pension scheme members (nominated by the recognised 

trade unions).  

The governance arrangements of the County Council (including the Constitution, Financial 

Regulations and Contract Standing Orders) apply to the management of the Pension 

Fund. In addition the, the administering authority is assisted by the Powys Pensions Board 

which was established under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 

Members of the Pensions & Investment Committee are required to undertake training and 

demonstrate competency in accordance with the Knowledge & Skills Framework Policy.  

The Committee receives what it considers to be proper advice from Fund officers and, in 

addition, has appointed an external consultant to provide advice on its investment strategy.  

The Investment Advisor and Actuary have contracts which are regularly reviewed. The 

Investment Advisor was tendered in 2016/17, actuarial services are scheduled for 

2020/21.  

  

Page 96



ANNUAL REPORT 

71 

Principle 2 – Clear Objectives 
 

Trustees should set out an overall investment objective(s) for the fund that 
takes account of the scheme’s liabilities, the strength of the sponsor covenant 
and the attitude to risk of both the trustees and the sponsor, and clearly 
communicate these to advisors and investment managers. 

 
The Fund’s objectives are set out in the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) and Funding 

Strategy Statement (FSS). Both documents are available on the Fund’s website. The aims 

of the Fund in relation to the FSS are set out in 2.2 of that document. To view the Fund's 

Investment objectives view 3 Investment Objective in the ISS.  

The approach to risk, the assessment of risks and how they are managed are stated in 

section 5 of the ISS.  

The Fund, in accordance with regulatory requirements, has an objective of keeping the 

employers’ contribution rate as level as possible while maintaining its solvency. 

The investment manager(s) have been given specific performance targets measured. 

These are displayed in section 6 of the ISS.  

The Fund monitors each of the participating LGPS employers and admitted bodies.  

  

Page 97



 

72 

Principle 3 – Risk and Liabilities  
 

In setting and reviewing their investment strategy, trustees should take 
account of the form and structure of liabilities. These include the strength of 
the sponsor covenant, the risk of sponsor default and longevity risk. 

 

The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. 

promised benefits payable to members.) Therefore the aim of investment risk 

management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund and to 

maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole Fund portfolio. The Fund achieves 

this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency 

risk and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level. In addition, the Fund 

manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast 

cash flows. The council manages these investment risks as part of its overall pension fund 

risk management programme. Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy 

rests with the Pensions & Investment Committee. 

The Triennial Valuation exercise looks in detail at each participating employer’s liability 

and is used to inform the setting of employers’ contribution rates, as well as informing the 

investment strategy and objectives of the Fund.  

The strength of the covenant of participating employers is also considered as part of the 

exercise establishing contribution rates.  

A risk register is monitored monthly and maintained. Pensions and Investment Committee 

review the Risk Register every 12 months.  

Regular internal audit on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal 

control is undertaken and outcomes reported to the Pensions & Investment Committee 

and Pension Board.  

The Annual Report and Accounts of the Powys Pension Fund are subject to a separate 

external audit and an independent audit opinion is given.  

Within the FSS, point 6 Key Risks and Controls, summarises the risks and controls under 

the following headings, investment, solvency, liability, regulatory, employer.    

  

Page 98



ANNUAL REPORT 

73 

Principle 4 – Performance Assessment 

Trustees should arrange for the formal measurement of the performance of 
the investments, investment managers and advisors. Trustees should also 
periodically make a formal policy assessment of their own effectiveness as a 
decision-making body and report on this to scheme members. 

 

Advisors provide buy – qualified – sell – quarterly ratings on current managers to the 

Committee.   

Investment Managers are measured against their targets shown in the ISS. The Fund's 

advisors report formally on a quarterly basis to the Pensions and Investment Committee 

their ratings of the incumbent managers. Significant developments between meetings are 

also communicated by the advisors. 

Investment Managers are invited to attend the Pensions and Investment Committee at 

behest of the Committee.  

The Fund maintains a Governance Statement which is available from the Fund's website.   

Pensions & Investment Committee attendance and training is monitored and reviewed on 

a quarterly basis.  

Advisors are selected competitively, based on performance, price and other factors. 

All active and deferred scheme members receive the ‘Your Pension’ publication along with 

their Annual Benefit Statements which includes information on the Fund's activity and a 

summary of the accounts; all retired members receive an annual newsletter with 

information on Fund developments and a summary of the accounts.  

The Fund produces a detailed annual report covering all aspects of its performance which 

is published on the website. 

Principle 5 – Responsible Ownership 
 

Trustees should adopt, or ensure their investment managers adopt, the 
Institutional Shareholders’ Committee (ISC) Statement of Principles on the 
responsibilities of shareholders and agents. A statement of the scheme’s 
policy on responsible ownership should be included in the Statement of 
Investment Principles. Trustees should report periodically to members on the 
discharge of such responsibilities. 

 

The Fund’s Socially Responsible Investment intention is laid out in section 9 of the ISS. 

The Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) which 

considers responsible investment on a collaborative basis. 

 
  

Page 99



 

74 

Principle 6 – Transparency and Reporting 
 

Trustees should act in a transparent manner, communicating with 
stakeholders on issues relating to their management of investment, its 
governance and risks, including performance against stated objectives. 
Trustees should provide regular communication to members in the form they 
consider most appropriate. 

 

Details of the Fund’s Communications Policy and all other key reports – ISS, Annual 

Report, FSS and Governance Policy Statement are all published on the Fund’s website. A 

newsletter is also published periodically. There is employer and employee representation 

on the Committee ensuring transparency.  

The Fund actively manages risks. Pensions & Investment Committee reviews the risk 

register on a regular basis.  

Pensions & Investment Committee meetings are open to the public. Agendas, papers and 

minutes are available on Powys County Councils website. 

Principle Compliance 

Effective Decision Making  The Fund considers that its practices are compliant 
with the CIPFA principles 

Clear objectives The Fund considers that its practices are compliant 
with the CIPFA principles  

Risk and Liabilities The Fund considers that its practices are compliant 
with the CIPFA principles 

Performance Assessment The Fund considers that its practices are compliant 
with the CIPFA principles 

Responsible Ownership The Fund considers that its practices are compliant 
with the CIPFA principles 

Transparency and Reporting The Fund considers that its practices are compliant 
with the CIPFA principles 

 

Principles of the UK Stewardship Code 

1. Publicly disclose their policy on how they will discharge their stewardship 
responsibilities.  

2. Have a robust policy on managing conflicts of interest in relation to stewardship 
which should be publicly disclosed.  

3. Monitor their investee companies.  

4. Establish clear guidelines on when and how they will escalate their stewardship 
activities.  

5. Be willing to act collectively with other investors where appropriate.  

6. Have a clear policy on voting and disclosure of voting activity.  

7. Report periodically on their stewardship and voting activities.  

  

Page 100



ANNUAL REPORT 

75 

Appendix B: Background to Medium Term Asset Allocation 

Philosophy 

The Committee recognises that it is possible to take advantage of excessive over/under 

valuations of markets in order to target additional returns. The Committee in conjunction 

with the Investment Consultant seeks to identify opportunities to allocate investments 

away from the strategic benchmark that are designed to add additional return relative to 

the benchmark return over the medium term (around 1 to 3 years).  

Process 

A thorough fundamental analysis of economics and financial markets is carried out to 

identify and incorporate general investor expectations into views of the different markets. 

In particular, attention is paid to establishing consensus views and profit is taken from 

positions which differ from the consensus. A range of appropriate timing indicators are 

utilised in order to achieve the best entry and exit levels to and from asset classes. 

In terms of the practical application, once an opportunity has been identified the Fund's 

Investment Consultant will notify the Pensions & Investment Committee. The Committee 

decides whether to pursue the opportunity and if so will work with the Investment 

Consultant to complete any necessary asset transitions. The Investment Consultant liaises 

with the investment manager(s) and follows each transaction as it happens to make sure 

each trade goes through smoothly.  

Risk management 

Considerable lengths are taken to assess what correlations are likely to be in the future so 

as to ensure asset allocation views are truly diversified. The style of the MTAA project is to 

have a limited number of meaningful positions rather than either a small number of large 

positions or a large number of small positions. The overall objective is to achieve an 

additional return of 0.5% p.a. of assets involved in the MTAA project. The Investment 

Consultant will provide regular reporting to the Pensions & Investment Committee. 

Page 101



 

76 

Appendix 5: Governance Statement 

Governance Policy Statement for the Powys County Council Pension Fund 

1. Constitutional Arrangements. 

1.1 The Powys Pension Fund is a local government pension fund. The primary legal 

frameworks are the Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pensions Act 

2013, with operational matters being set out in regulations made thereunder. 

1.2 Powys County Council is the administering authority for the Powys Pension Fund.  

The governance arrangements of the County Council (including the Constitution, 

Financial Regulations and Contract Standing Orders) apply to the management of 

the Pension Fund. In addition, the administering authority is assisted by the Powys 

Pensions Board which was established under the Public Service Pensions Act 

2013.  

2. Scheme of Delegation. 

2.1 Powys County Council delegates its functions in relation to maintaining the Pension 

Fund to the Pensions & Investment Committee and the Section 151 Officer, in 

accordance with Appendices A and B to this Statement. 

2.2 Day-to-day decisions in respect of the management of the Pension Fund and 

investment decisions that are required to be taken before the next Committee, are 

delegated to the Section 151 Officer, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair 

of Pensions & Investment Committee. 

2.3.1 Powys County Council will appoint the voting members of the Pensions & 

Investment Committee.  The Committee will consist of 6 voting members (1 of which 

will be the Portfolio Holder for Finance); 1 non-voting member representing Pension 

Fund employers (elected by those Pension Fund employers); and, 1 non-voting 

member representing pension scheme members (nominated by the recognised 

trade unions). 

2.3.2 The Pensions & Investment Committee will meet quarterly with special meetings 

and training workshops as necessary. 

2.3.3 The Pensions & Investment Committee will be advised by the Council’s Section 151 

Officer, the Pension Fund’s Investment Adviser (currently Aon Hewitt) and the 

Pension Fund’s Actuary (currently Aon Hewitt). 

2.3.4 Members of the Pensions & Investment Committee will be required to undertake 

training and demonstrate competency in accordance with the Knowledge & Skills 

Framework Policy (Appendix C). 

2.3.5 The minutes of the Pensions & Investment Committee will be reported to the County 

Council. 

(cont.)  

Page 102



ANNUAL REPORT 

77 

3. Powys Pensions Board. 

3.1 Powys County Council established a local pension board on 21st January 2015 in 

accordance with the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 

3.2 Powys County Council will appoint the independent chair of the Pensions Board. 

The Board will consist of 4 voting members in addition to the independent chair; 2 

members representing Pension Fund employers (nominated by those Pension Fund 

employers); and, 2 members representing pension scheme members (nominated by 

the recognised trade unions). 

3.3 The Pensions Board will meet quarterly (after each meeting of the Pensions & 

Investment Committee), with special meetings and training workshops as 

necessary. Pension Board meetings are open to the public. 

3.4 The Pensions Board will be advised by the Section 151 Officer and any other 

Council Officers and professional Advisers and Consultants, as may be required. 

3.5 Members of the Pensions Board will be required to undertake training and 

demonstrate competency in accordance with the Knowledge & Skills Framework 

Policy (Appendix C). 

3.6 The minutes of the Pensions Board will be reported to the Pensions & Investment 

Committee and published on the Pension Fund’s website. 

4. Consultation 

4.1 The Pensions & Investment Committee will engage with stakeholders (including 

Pension Fund employers and trade unions) through the following: 

 An annual general meeting for the main stakeholders. 

 A triennial meeting between Pension Fund employers and the actuary to 
discuss the results of the actuarial valuation. 

5. Review of this Statement 

5.1 In accordance with the requirements of regulation 55(2) of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended), this Statement will be reviewed 

and published by Powys Pension Fund following any material changes. 

6. Contacts 

6.1 Any questions, queries or observations on this Statement should be addressed to: 

  Chris Hurst 
  Pension Fund Manager 
  Powys County Council, 
  County Hall, 
  Llandrindod Wells, 
  Powys 
  LD1 5LG 

6.2 Further information about the Powys Pension Fund and the Local Government 

Pension Scheme, can be found on the Fund’s website: www.powyspensionfund.org  

  

Page 103

http://www.powyspensionfund.org/


 

78 

Appendix A Functions Delegated to Pensions & Investment Committee 

Pension Administration Functions 

To appoint the Pension Fund’s Actuary;  

To receive the triennial actuarial valuation and such other valuations that may arise from 

time to time and set employers’ contribution rates arising therefrom. 

To monitor and review the overall arrangements for the administration of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

To respond to consultations in respect of the LGPS. 

To undertake the following functions of the LGPS: 

 To act as Scheme Trustees in relation to the Powys County Council Additional 
Voluntary Contributions (AVC) Scheme 

 To exercise the discretionary powers available to an administering authority under 
the provisions of the LGPS regulations 

 To develop, publish and review policies as required by the LGPS regulations. 

Investment Functions 

To determine long-term investment policy. 

To approve the Council’s Funding Strategy Statement and Statement of Investment 

Principles (this latter document is replaced from 1st April 2017 by the Investment Strategy 

Statement). 

To review the Pension Fund’s investment structure at least triennially, having regard to the 

Fund’s liabilities and the advice of the Fund’s Investment Adviser and the Section 151 

Officer. 

To appoint and dismiss investment managers, consultants and advisers. 

To review investment performance at least once every 3 months. 

To appoint the Fund’s custodian for its assets and to periodically review custody 

arrangements. 

To appoint the Performance Measurement Service for the Fund. 

General 

To approve the annual business plan. 

To receive the annual accounts of the Pension Fund and any external audit comments 

related thereto; 

To approve the Pension Fund Annual Report. 

To receive internal audit reports on Pension Fund matters. 

  

Page 104



ANNUAL REPORT 

79 

Appendix B Functions Delegated to Section 151 Officer 

Pension Administration Functions 

To manage the administration of LGPS. 

To undertake the following functions of the LGPS: 

 Award of Death Grants in accordance with the Council’s agreed policy. 

 Ensure compliance with the Pensions Act 1995 

 Ensure compliance with relevant Finance Acts, in particular the meeting of HMRC 
Reporting Requirements  

 Ensure compliance with the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 

 Ensure compliance with the statutory requirements imposed by The Pensions 
Regulator. 

Investment Functions 

To undertake regular monitoring and reconciliation of investments and to report matters of 

significance to the Pensions & Investment Committee. 

To undertake tendering exercises for Fund services and Investment Managers in 

accordance with the Council’s overall governance arrangements and the Pensions & 

Investment Committee’s instructions and to present the Committee with shortlists for 

appointment. 

General 

To produce the Fund’s Annual Report & Accounts in accordance with proper practice. 

To authorise, within limits, expenditure from the Fund. 

To authorise cash or asset movements between the Council, the Fund, custodian and 

investment managers. 

When necessary, the exercise of the Fund’s voting rights by instruction to the investment 

managers and custodian, after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 

Pensions & Investment Committee.  The Pensions & Investment Committee has delegated 

the use of the voting rights attached to its shareholdings to the investment managers but 

retains a right to exercise those rights on its own account in exceptional circumstances. 

The Section 151 Officer may authorise Officers in their service to exercise, on his behalf, 

functions delegated to him.  Any decisions taken under this authority shall remain the 

responsibility of the Section 151 Officer and must be taken in his name and he shall 

remain accountable and responsible for such decisions. 

  

Page 105



 

80 

Appendix C 

Knowledge and Skills Framework Policy 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This document sets out the policy of the Powys Pension Fund in relation to the 

knowledge and skills requirements that it places upon those serving as members of 

either: 

 The Powys County Council Pensions & Investment Committee (being the 
principal decision-making and management body for the Powys Pension 
Fund), or 

 The Powys Pension Board 

1.2 Commitment to this policy is an obligation placed upon those concerned as part of 

the discharge of their duties; as a matter of best practice and good governance.   

2 Knowledge and Skills Framework 

2.1 The Powys Pension Fund has adopted the CIPFA Knowledge and Skills 

Framework, as set out in the Code of Practice on pensions, in partnership with the 

Pensions Regulator. The Framework provides a roadmap to the knowledge and 

skills that should be held by those involved in the management and governance of 

the Powys Pension Fund, who are not themselves pension professionals. Whilst the 

Regulator provides access to relevant study and training materials. 

2.2 All relevant Members will be assessed against the criteria set out in the Framework, 

as soon as possible following their appointment. This will be done by the completion 

of a Member Training Needs Self-Assessment Form.  

2.3 On completion of the self-assessment form, the Section 151 Officer will assess the 

Member against the Framework criteria and determined what training is required to 

be completed and within what time period. 

2.4 In total there are 6 areas of knowledge and skills that CIPFA have identified as the 

core technical requirements:  

 pensions legislative and governance context 

 pensions accounting and auditing standards 

 financial services procurement and relationship management 

 investment performance and risk management 

 financial markets and products knowledge 

 actuarial methods, statements and practices. 

  

Page 106



ANNUAL REPORT 

81 

3 Meeting Knowledge and Skills Needs 

3.1 Identified knowledge and skills needs may be met by a variety of methods that will 

include, but are not restricted to: 

 completion of specific modules in the e-Learning Public Service toolkit 
provided free online by the Pensions Regulator 

 attendance at external training events for pension trustees and/or board 
members 

 attendance at internal training events facilitated by Powys Pension Fund or 
Powys County Council 

 attendance at pension conferences, seminars and workshops that cover fund 
investment, scheme administration, fund governance, actuarial matters or 
other relevant areas. 

4 Continuing Development 

4.1 Pension fund matters do not stand still. Therefore, there will be a requirement to 

undertake continual development to remain up to date with general pensions and 

LGPS specific issues. The requirement is for all relevant Members, regardless of 

professional background, to undertake a minimum of 4 days continuing 

development in each scheme year (ending 31st March). 

4.2 Completion of this requirement may be achieved by a range of attendances at, for 

example, LGPS Trustees Conference or LAPFF seminars. 

5 Accountability and Transparency 

5.1 Accountability and transparency are principles of good governance and best 

practice. Therefore, knowledge and skills needs, training and development 

undertaken and continuing development, will be monitored and recorded and 

published annually.  

5.2 Failure by a Member to meet their obligations under this policy, may result in them 

being barred from serving on either the Pensions & Investment Committee or the 

Powys Pension Board, as applicable, and as determined by the Section 151 Officer. 

  

Page 107



 

82 

Appendix D Governance Compliance Statement 

Principle A – Structure 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

a) The management of the administration of benefits and 
strategic management of fund assets clearly rests with 
the main committee established by the appointing 
council. 

 

b) That representatives of participating LGPS employers, 
admitted bodies and scheme members (including 
pensioner and deferred members) are members of 
either the main or secondary committee established to 
underpin the work of the main committee.     

 

c) That where a secondary committee or panel has been 
established, the structure ensures effective 
communication across both levels.   

 

d) That where a secondary committee or panel has been 
established, at least one seat on the main committee is 
allocated for a member from the secondary committee 
or panel. 

 

* Reason for non-compliance: None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
c)  There is no secondary Committee. 
d)  There is no secondary Committee. 

  

Principle B – Representation 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be represented within the main 
or secondary committee structure. These Include:

e) Fund employers  

f) Scheme members  

g) Independent professional observers (where appropriate)  

h) Expert advisers  

i) That where lay members sit on a main or secondary 
committee, they are treated equally in terms of access 
to papers and meetings, training and are given full 
opportunity to contribute to the decision making 
process, with or without voting rights. 

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
g) & h) These are not considered to be appropriate nor statutory requirements. However, 
professional expert advisers to the Pension Fund whilst not members, attend Pensions 
& Investment Committee. 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
None 

 

  

Page 108



ANNUAL REPORT 

83 

Principle C – Selection and role of lay members 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

j) That committee members are made fully aware of the 
status, role and function they are required to perform on 
either a main or secondary committee. 

 

k) That at the start of any meeting, committee members 
are invited to declare any financial or pecuniary interest 
related to specific matters on the agenda.    

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
None 

 

Principle D – Voting 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

l) The policy on voting rights is clear and transparent, 
including the justification for not extending voting rights 
to each body or group represented on main LGPS 
committees. 

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
There are no voting rights for either the employer or member representative on the 
Fund’s Pensions & Investment Committee. Powys County Council takes the view that it 
is inappropriate for members of the Pensions & Investment Committee who are not 
elected members of the County Council to have decision-making powers in respect of a 
function for which the County Council, as the administering authority, is responsible. 

 

Principle E – Training / Facility Time / Expenses 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

m) That in relation to the way in which statutory and related 
decisions are taken by the administering authority, there 
is a clear policy on training, facility time and 
reimbursement of expenses in respect of members 
involved in the decision-making process. 

 

n) That where such a policy exists, it applies equally to all 
members of committees, sub-committees, advisory 
panels or any other form of secondary forum.   

 

o) That the administering authority considers the adoption 
of annual training plans for committee members and 
maintains a log of all such training undertaken.   

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
None 

 
  

Page 109



 

84 

Principle F – Meetings (Frequency / Quorum) 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

p) That an administering authority’s main committee or 
committees meet at least quarterly. 

 

q) That an administering authority’s secondary committee 
or panel meet at least twice a year and is synchronised 
with the dates when the main committee sits. 

 

r) That an administering authority who does not include 
lay members in their formal governance arrangements, 
must provide a forum outside of those arrangements by 
which the interests of key stakeholders can be 
represented. 

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
q)  There is no secondary committee. 
r) Such interests are represented on the Pensions & Investment Committee. 

 

Principle G – Access 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

s)  That subject to any rules in the council’s constitution, all 
members of main and secondary committees or panels 
have equal access to committee papers, documents 
and advice that falls to be considered at meetings of the 
main committee.   

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
None 

 

Principle H – Scope 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

t) That administering authorities have taken steps to bring 
wider scheme issues within the scope of their 
governance arrangements. 

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
None 

 

  

Page 110



ANNUAL REPORT 

85 

Principle I – Publicity 

 Level of Compliance 

 Non* Full 

u) That administering authorities have published details of 
their governance arrangements in such a way that 
stakeholders with an interest in the way in which the 
scheme is governed, can express an interest in wanting 
to be part of those arrangements. 

 

* Reason for non-compliance: 
None 

Notes and explanations on the ratings given above: 
None 

 

Page 111



 

86 

Appendix 6: Funding Strategy Statement 

1. Introduction 
This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the Powys County Council Pension 

Fund. 

It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the Fund 

Actuary, Aon Hewitt Limited, and after consultation with officers, elected members, 

the Fund's employers and investment advisors and is effective from the date of 

issue of this statement. A single strategy is produced for the Pension Fund. The 

FSS compliments the triennial Actuarial Valuation and the Statement of Investment 

Principles or Investment Strategy Statement as follows: 

Actuary’s Valuation Report Defines what employer contributions 
should be made to meet current and 
future pension payments. 

Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) States how solvency and risk will be 
managed in relation to liabilities. 

Statement of Investment Principles (SIP) 
or Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) 

How and where the fund will be 
invested and managed. 

 
1.1 Regulatory Framework 

This statement, originally prepared in accordance with Regulation 76A of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997, has been reviewed in accordance 

with Regulation 58 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as 

amended) (the LGPS 2013 Regulations) and the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (Investment and Management of Funds) Regulations 2016 (the Investment 

Regulations). 

As required by Regulation 58(4) of the LGPS 2013 Regulations, the Statement has 

been prepared having regard to guidance published by CIPFA in October 2012. The 

Statement also has regard to updated guidance published by CIPFA in September 

2016. 

Members' benefits and contributions are also set out in the LGPS 2013 Regulations. 

The members' contributions do not cover the full cost of benefits and the shortfall or 

liability is met by the participating employers within the fund. The FSS sets out how 

this liability will be funded in the long term. 

(cont.)  

Page 112



ANNUAL REPORT 

87 

1.2 Purpose of this Funding Strategy Statement 

The main purpose of the FSS is to document the processes by which the 

Administering Authority: 

• establishes a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will identify how 

employers' pension liabilities are best met going forward; 

• supports the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant primary 

contribution rates as possible; 

• enable overall employer contributions to be kept as constant as possible and 

(subject to the Administering Authority not taking undue risks and ensuring that 

the regulatory requirements are met) at reasonable cost to the taxpayers, 

scheduled, designating, and admitted bodies 

• ensures that the regulatory requirements to set contributions so as to ensure the 

solvency and long-term cost efficiency of the Fund are met 

• takes a prudent longer-term view of funding the Fund's liabilities. 

These objectives are desirable individually, but may be mutually conflicting. This 

statement sets out how the Administering Authority has balanced the conflicting 

aims of affordability of contributions, transparency of processes, stability of 

employers' contributions, and prudence in the funding basis. The focus of the FSS 

is on those actions which are in the best long term interests of the Fund. 

1.3 Reviews of FSS 

The FSS will be reviewed in detail at least every three years in line with triennial 

valuations being carried out. It will be circulated to employers prior to the completion 

of each valuation. It will only need to be updated in between valuations if there has 

been material change. Small updates can be attached to the original approved. 

1.4 Links to Investment Strategy 

Funding and investment strategy are inextricably linked. Investment strategy is set 

by the Administering Authority, after consultation with the employers and after 

taking investment advice. 

The Authority has produced this FSS having taken an overall view of the level of 

risk inherent in the investment policy set out in the Statement of Investment 

Principles (SIP) or Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) published under Regulation 

7 of the Investment Regulations and the funding policy set out in this Statement. 

The Administering Authority will continue to review both documents to ensure that 

the overall risk profile remains appropriate including, where appropriate, asset 

liability modelling or other analysis techniques. 

2. Purpose and Aims of the Fund 
2.1 Purpose of the Fund 

The purpose of the Fund is to invest monies in respect of contributions, transfer 

values and investment income to produce a Fund to pay the Scheme benefits over 

the long term and in doing so smooth out the contributions required from employers 

over the long term. 

Page 113



 

88 

2.2 Aims of the Fund 

The aims of the Fund in relation to the Funding Strategy include: 

• to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund. The Fund Solvency should be 

assessed in light of the risk profile of the Fund and the risk appetite of the 

Administering Authority and employers; 

• to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all benefits as they fall due 

for payment; 

• to maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters; 

• to manage employers liabilities effectively through regular review of 

contributions and additional contributions for early retirement; 

• to try to maintain stability of employer contributions, and (subject to the 

Administering Authority not taking undue risks) at reasonable cost to the 

taxpayers, scheduled, resolution and admitted bodies. 

3. Responsibilities of Key Parties 
The LGPS Regulations set out the responsibilities of the key parties and are 

summarised below. 

3.1 The Administering Authority should:- 

• administer the Fund 

• collect investment income and other amounts due to the Fund including 

employer and employee contributions and exit payments from employers whose 

participation in the Fund has ceased. The administering authority will ensure all 

individual employers are aware that they must pay contributions in accordance 

with Regulations 67 to 71 of the LGPS 2013 Regulations; 

• invest surplus monies in accordance with the regulations; 

• pay from the Fund the relevant entitlements as set out in the LGPS 2013 

Regulations 

• ensure that cash is available to meet liabilities as and when they fall due; 

• manage the valuation process in consultation with the fund's actuary; 

• prepare and maintain a FSS and a SIP/ISS, both after proper consultation with 

interested parties; 

• monitor all aspects of the fund's performance and funding and amend the 

FSS/ISS as necessary; 

• effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role as 

both Administering Authority and as a Scheme Employer. 

• Enable the local Pension Board to review the valuation process as set out in 

their terms of reference. 

  

Page 114



ANNUAL REPORT 

89 

3.2 Individual Employers should:- 

• deduct contributions from employees' pay correctly; 

• pay both ongoing members’ and employer’s contributions (both percentage of 

pay and monetary shortfall recovery contributions which are due) as determined 

by the Fund's actuary, promptly by the 19th day of the month. Unless an agreed 

arrangement is in place, late payments will incur interest of 1% above base rate. 

• develop a policy on certain discretions and exercise discretions within the 

regulatory framework, ensuring that the Administering Authority has copies of 

current policies covering those discretions; 

• make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in 

respect of, for example, augmentation of scheme benefits, early retirement 

strain; 

• notify the administering authority promptly of all changes to membership or, as 

maybe proposed, which affect future funding; 

• noting and if desired responding to any consultation regarding the FSS, the 

SIP/ISS, or other policies; 

• pay any exit payments required in the event of their ceasing participation in the 

Fund. 

3.3 The Fund Actuary should:- 

• prepare valuations including the setting of employers' contribution rates at a 

level to ensure solvency and long term cost efficiency after agreeing 

assumptions with the Administering Authority and having regard to the FSS and 

the Regulations 

• prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and the 

funding aspects of individual benefit-related matters, on exit valuations on 

cessation of admission agreements or when an employer ceases to employ any 

active members, and in connection with bonds and other forms of security 

against employers default. 

Such advice will take account of the funding position and FSS, as well as other 

relevant matters when instructed to do so. 

The Fund Actuary will assist the Administering Authority in assessing whether 

employer contributions need to be revised between actuarial valuations as required 

or permitted by the Regulations. 

The Fund Actuary will ensure that the Administering Authority is aware of any 

professional guidance or other professional requirements which may be of 

relevance to his or her role in advising the Administering Authority. 

  

Page 115



 

90 

4 Funding Strategy 
4.1 Risk Based Approach 

The Fund utilises a risk based approach to funding strategy. 

A risk based approach entails carrying out the actuarial valuation on the basis of the 

assessed likelihood of meeting the funding objectives, rather than relying on a 

'deterministic' approach. In practice, three key decisions are required for the risk 

based approach: 

• what the Solvency Target should be (the funding objective - where the 

Administering Authority wants the Fund to get to), 

• the Trajectory Period (how quickly the Administering Authority wants the Fund to 

get there), and 

• the Probability of Funding Success (how likely the Administering Authority wants 

it to be now that the Fund will actually achieve the Solvency Target by the end of 

the Trajectory Period). 

These three choices, supported by complex risk modelling carried out by the Fund 

Actuary, define the discount rate and, by extension, the appropriate levels of 

contribution payable. Together they measure the amount of risk in the funding 

strategy. 

These three terms are considered in more detail below. 

4.2 Solvency Target 

The Administering Authority's primary aim is long-term solvency. Accordingly, 

employers’ contributions will be set to ensure that 100% of the liabilities can be met 

over the long term. The Solvency Target is the amount of assets which the Fund 

wishes to hold at the end of the Trajectory Period (see later) to meet this aim. 

The Fund is deemed to be solvent when the assets held are equal to or greater 

than 100% of the Solvency Target, where the Solvency Target is the value of the 

Fund's liabilities evaluated using appropriate actuarial methods and assumptions. 

Some comments on the principles used to derive the Funding Target and Solvency 

Target for different bodies in the Fund are set out below. 

(cont.)  

Page 116



ANNUAL REPORT 

91 

4.2.1 Scheduled Bodies and Admission Bodies with guarantors agreeing to subsume 

assets and liabilities following exit 

The Administering Authority will adopt a general approach in this regard of 

assuming indefinite investment in a broad range of assets of higher risk than risk 

free assets for scheduled bodies and certain other bodies. With regard to Admission 

Bodies the guarantor must have been judged to be of suitable covenant by the 

Administering Authority (see section on Guarantors in section 5). 

For these bodies, appropriate actuarial methods and assumptions are taken to be 

measurement by use of the Projected Unit method of valuation, and using 

assumptions such that, if the Fund had reached the Solvency Target and its 

financial position continued to be assessed by use of such methods and 

assumptions, and contributions were paid in accordance with those methods and 

assumptions, there would be a chance of at least 80% that the Fund would continue 

to be 100% funded after a period of 25 years. The level of funding implied by this is 

the Solvency Target. For the purpose of this Statement, the required level of chance 

is defined as the Probability of Maintaining Solvency. 

4.2.2 Admission Bodies and other bodies whose liabilities are expected to be orphaned 

For admission bodies the Administering Authority will have regard to the potential 

for participation to cease (or to have no contributing members), the potential timing 

of such exit from the Fund, and any likely change in notional or actual investment 

strategy as regards the assets held in respect of the admission body's liabilities at 

the date of exit (i.e. whether the liabilities will become 'orphaned' or a guarantor 

exists to subsume the notional assets and liabilities). For most bodies where 

liabilities will become orphaned, the chance of achieving solvency will be set 

commensurate with assumed investment in an appropriate portfolio of Government 

index linked and fixed interest bonds after exit. 

If the liabilities for such bodies are deemed to be small compared to the liabilities of 

the whole Fund (and therefore the risk related to these liabilities is small) then the 

Administering Authority may decide to use the Funding Target and Solvency Target 

used for Scheduled Bodies for practical reasons. 

4.2.3 Orphan Liabilities 

These are liabilities with no access to funding from any employer in the Fund. To 

minimise the risk to other employers in the Fund the notional assets related to these 

liabilities may be assumed to be invested in low risk investments. This is described 

in more detail later in this document. 

If these liabilities are deemed to be small compared to the liabilities of the whole 

Fund (and therefore the risk related to these liabilities is small) then the 

Administering Authority may decide to use the Funding Target and Solvency Target 

used for Scheduled Bodies for practical reasons. 

  

Page 117



 

92 

4.3 Probability of Funding Success 

The Administering Authority deems funding success to have been achieved if the 

Fund, at the end of the Trajectory Period, has achieved the Solvency Target. The 

Probability of Funding Success is the assessed chance of this happening based on 

the level of contributions payable by members and employers. 

Consistent with the aim of enabling employers' contribution rates to be kept as 

nearly constant as possible, the required chance of achieving the Solvency Target 

at the end of the relevant Trajectory Period for each employer or employer group 

can be altered at successive valuations within an overall envelope of acceptable 

risk. 

The Administering Authority will not permit contributions to be set following a 

valuation that have an unacceptably low chance of achieving the Solvency Target at 

the end of the relevant Trajectory Period. 

The trajectory period is set to be 25 years. 

4.4 Funding Target 

The Funding Target is the amount of assets which the Fund needs to hold at the 

valuation date to pay the liabilities at that date as indicated by the chosen valuation 

method and assumptions. It is a product of the triennial actuarial valuation exercise 

and is not necessarily the same as the Solvency Target. It is instead the product of 

the data, chosen assumptions, and valuation method. 

The valuation method including the components of Funding Target, future service 

contributions and any adjustment for the surplus or deficiency simply serve to set 

the level of contributions payable, which in turn dictates the chance of achieving the 

Solvency Target at the end of the Trajectory Period (defined below). The Funding 

Target will be the same as the Solvency Target only when the methods and 

assumptions used to set the Funding Target are the same as the appropriate 

funding methods and assumptions used to set the Solvency Target (see above). 

Consistent with the aim of enabling the primary rate of employers' contributions to 

be kept as nearly constant as possible: 

• contribution rates are set by use of the Projected Unit valuation method for most 

employers. The Projected Unit method is used in the actuarial valuation to 

determine the cost of benefits accruing to the Fund as a whole and for 

employers who continue to admit new members. This means that the future 

service contribution rate is derived as the cost of benefits accruing to employee 

members over the year following the valuation date expressed as a percentage 

of members’ pensionable pay over that period. 

• for employers who no longer admit new members, the Attained Age valuation 

method is normally used. This means that the future service contribution rate is 

derived as the average cost of benefits accruing to members over the period 

until they die, leave the Fund or retire. 

  

Page 118



ANNUAL REPORT 

93 

4.5 Full Funding and Solvency 

The Fund is deemed to be fully funded when the assets held are equal to or greater 

than 100% of the Funding Target. When assets held are greater than this amount 

the Fund is deemed to be in surplus, and when assets held are less than this 

amount the Fund is deemed to be in deficiency. 

The Fund is deemed to be solvent when the assets held are equal to or greater 

than 100% of the Solvency Target. 

The Administering Authority believes that its funding strategy will ensure the 

solvency of the Fund because employers collectively have the financial capacity to 

increase employer contributions should future circumstances require, in order to 

continue to target a funding level of 100%. 

4.6 Recovery Periods 

Where a valuation reveals that the Fund is in surplus or deficiency against the 

Funding Target, employer contribution rates will be adjusted to target restoration of 

the Funding Target over a period of years (the recovery period). The recovery 

period applicable for each participating employer is set by the Administering 

Authority in consultation with the Fund actuary and the employer, with a view to 

balancing the various funding requirements against the risks involved due to such 

issues as the financial strength of the employer and the nature of its participation in 

the Fund. 

The Administering Authority recognises that a large proportion of the Fund’s 

liabilities are expected to arise as benefit payments over long periods of time. For 

employers of sound covenant, the Administering Authority is prepared to agree to 

recovery periods which are longer than the average future working lifetime of the 

membership of that employer. In general for employers that are closed to new 

entrants and are of sufficient term the recovery period is set with regard to the 

estimated future working lifetime of the active membership (i.e. the estimated period 

of time until the last active member leaves or retires). The Administering Authority 

recognises that such an approach is consistent with the aim of keeping employer 

contribution rates as nearly constant as possible. However, the Administering 

Authority also recognises the risk in relying on long recovery and trajectory periods 

when the employer has a deficiency and has agreed with the Fund actuary a limit of 

25 years in these circumstances, which can be extended in exceptional 

circumstances for employers of sound covenant to an absolute limit of 40 years. 

The Administering Authority’s policy with regard to employers with a deficit (surplus) 

is to agree recovery periods with each employer which is as short (long) as possible 

within this framework. The Administering Authority may encourage employers with a 

surplus not to take any reduction in their contribution rate to assist with stability 

requirements. 

For employers whose participation in the Fund is for a fixed period it is unlikely that 

the Administering Authority and Fund actuary would agree to a recovery period 

longer than the remaining term of participation. 

  

Page 119



 

94 

4.7 Long term cost efficiency 

In order to ensure that measures taken to maintain stability of employer 

contributions are not inconsistent with the statutory objective for employer 

contributions to be set so as to ensure the long-term cost efficiency of the Fund, the 

Administering Authority has assessed the actual contributions payable by 

considering: 

• The implied average deficit recovery period, allowing for the stepping of 

employer contribution changes; 

• The investment return required to achieve full funding over the recovery period; 

and 

• How the investment return compares to the Administering Authority's view of the 

expected future return being targeted by the Fund’s investment strategy. 

4.8 Phasing in of Contribution Rates 

Phasing in periods will be influenced by the perceived credit worthiness of the 

employer when there is a deficiency. The Administering Authority's policy is that in 

the normal course of events no more than 3 annual steps will be permitted. Further 

steps may be permitted at the Administering Authority's discretion, but the total is 

unlikely to exceed 6 steps. No limit will be set to phasing in contribution rates when 

the employer has a surplus. 

4.9 Grouping 

In some circumstances it is desirable to group employers within the Fund together 

for funding purposes (i.e. to calculate employer contribution rates). Reasons might 

include reduction of volatility of contribution rates for small employers, facilitating 

situations where employers have a common source of funding or accommodating 

employers who wish to share the risks related to their participation in the Fund. 

The Administering Authority recognises that grouping can give rise to cross 

subsidies from one employer to another over time. Employers may be grouped 

entirely, such that all of the risks of participation are shared, or only partially 

grouped such that only specified risks are shared. The Administering Authority’s 

policy is to consider the position carefully at initial grouping and at each valuation 

and to notify each employer that is grouped that this is the case, which other 

employers it is grouped with and details of the grouping method used. If the 

employer objects to this grouping, it will be offered its own contribution rate. 

All employers in the Fund are grouped together in respect of the risks associated 

with payment of lump sum benefits on death in service – in other words, the cost of 

such benefits is shared across the employers in the Fund. Such lump sum benefits 

at no fault of the employer can cause funding strains which could be significant for 

some of the smaller employers without insurance or sharing of risks. The Fund, in 

view of its size, does not see it as cost effective or necessary to insure these 

benefits externally and this is seen as a pragmatic and low cost approach to 

spreading the risk. 

(cont.)  

Page 120



ANNUAL REPORT 

95 

Currently there is one group of employers in the Fund pooled together for funding 

and contribution purposes. All risks are shared within this group, they have a 

common primary (future service) contribution rate but they retain responsibility for 

the payment of the contributions towards the deficit relating to them. 

In addition Powys County Council has agreed a risk sharing approach with a 

number of employers whereby the employer will pay their primary rate only plus any 

agreed additional contributions arising from actions taken by the employer. Such 

employers will be required to sign an agreement with Powys County Council which 

will set out the contributions to be paid. 

The employers to whom these grouping arrangements apply are set out as an 

Appendix to this Statement. 

4.10 Asset shares notionally allocated to employers 

In order to establish contribution rates for individual employers or groups of 

employers it is convenient to notionally subdivide the Fund as a whole between the 

employers, as if each employer had its own asset share within the Fund. 

This subdivision is for funding purposes only. It is purely notional in nature and does 

not imply any formal subdivision of assets, nor ownership of any particular assets or 

groups of assets by any individual employer or group. 

The asset share allocated to each employer will be rolled forward allowing for all 

cashflows associated with that employer's membership, including contribution 

income, benefit payments, transfers in and out and investment income. In general 

no allowance is made for the timing of contributions and cashflows for each year 

are assumed to be made half way through the year with investment returns 

assumed to be uniformly earned over that year. However, where significant one-off 

employer contributions have been paid, allowance is made for the timing of such 

contributions. Further adjustments are made for: 

• A notional deduction to meet the expenses paid from the Fund in line with the 

assumption used at the previous valuation. 

• Allowance for any known material internal transfers in the Fund (cashflows will 

not exist for these transfers). The actuary will assume an estimated cashflow 

equal to the value of the liabilities transferred from one employer to the other 

unless some other approach has been agreed between the two employers. 

• Allowance for lump sum death in service benefits shared across all employers in 

the Fund. 

• An overall adjustment, as part of each triennial valuation, to ensure the notional 

assets attributed to each employer is equal to the total assets of the Fund which 

will take into account any gains or losses related to the orphan liabilities. 

(cont.)  

Page 121



 

96 

In some cases information available will not allow for such cashflow calculations. In 

such a circumstance: 

• Where, in the opinion of the actuary, the cashflow data which is unavailable is of 

low materiality, estimated cashflows will be used 

• Where, in the opinion of the actuary, the cashflow data which is unavailable is 

material, or the results of the cashflow approach appears to give unreliable 

results perhaps because of unknown internal transfers, the actuary will instead 

use an analysis of gains and losses to roll forward the asset share. Analysis of 

gains and losses methods are less precise than use of cashflows and involve 

calculation of gains and losses to the surplus or deficiency exhibited at the 

previous valuation. Having established an expected surplus or deficiency at this 

valuation, comparison of this with the liabilities evaluated at this valuation leads 

to an implied notional asset share. 

4.11 Fund Maturity 

To protect the Fund, and individual employers, from the risk of increasing maturity 

producing unacceptably volatile contribution adjustments as a percentage of pay 

the Administering Authority will normally require defined capital streams from 

employers in respect of any disclosed funding deficiency. 

In certain circumstances, for secure employers considered by the Administering 

Authority as being long term in nature, contribution adjustments to correct for any 

disclosed deficiency may be set as a percentage of payroll. To protect the Fund 

against the risk of payroll failing to grow at the assumed rate, the Administering 

Authority will monitor payrolls where this approach is agreed. 

5. Special Circumstances related to certain employers 
5.1 Interim Reviews 

Regulation 64(4) of the LGPS 2013 Regulations provides the Administering 

Authority with a power to carry out valuations in respect of employers expected to 

exit the Fund at some point in the future, and for the Fund Actuary to certify revised 

contribution rates, between triennial valuation dates. 

The Administering Authority's overriding objective at all times in relation to 

admission bodies is that, where possible, there is clarity over the funding target for 

that body, and that contribution rates payable are appropriate for that funding target. 

However, this is not always possible as any date of exit may be unknown (for 

example, participation may be assumed at present to be indefinite), and also 

because market conditions change daily. 

(cont.)  

Page 122



ANNUAL REPORT 

97 

The Administering Authority's general approach in this area is as follows: 

• Where the date of exit is known, and is more than 3 years hence, or is unknown 

and assumed to be indefinite, interim valuations will generally not be carried out 

at the behest of the Administering Authority. 

• For transferee and Schedule 2 Part 3 (1)(d) admission bodies falling into the 

above category, the Administering Authority sees it as the responsibility of the 

Relevant Scheme Employer to instruct it if an interim valuation is required. Such 

an exercise would be at the expense of the Relevant Scheme Employer unless 

otherwise agreed. 

• A material change in circumstances, such as the date of exit becoming known, 

material membership movements or material financial information coming to 

light may cause the Administering Authority to informally review the situation and 

subsequently formally request an interim valuation. 

• For an employer whose participation is due to cease within the next 3 years, the 

Administering Authority will monitor developments and may see fit to request an 

interim valuation at any time. 

Notwithstanding the above guidelines, the Administering Authority reserves the right 

to request an interim valuation of any employer at any time if with Regulation 64(4) 

applies. 

5.2 Guarantors 

Some employers may participate in the Fund by virtue of the existence of a 

Guarantor. The Administering Authority maintains a list of employers and their 

associated Guarantors. The Administering Authority, unless notified otherwise, sees 

the duty of a Guarantor to include the following: 

• If an exiting employer defaults on any of its financial obligations to the Fund, the 

Guarantor is expected to provide finance to the Fund such that the Fund 

receives the amount certified by the Fund Actuary as due, including any interest 

payable thereon. 

• If the Guarantor is an employer in the Fund and is judged to be of suitable 

covenant by the Administering Authority, the Guarantor may defray some of the 

financial liability by subsuming the residual liabilities into its own pool of Fund 

liabilities. In other words, it agrees to be a source of future funding in respect of 

those liabilities should future deficiencies emerge. 

During the period of participation of the employer a guarantor can at any time agree 

to the future subsumption of any residual liabilities of an admission body. The effect 

of that action could be to reduce the Funding and Solvency Target for the employer, 

which could probably lead to reduced contribution requirements. 

  

Page 123



 

98 

5.3 Bonds and other securitization 

Paragraph 6 of Part 3 of Schedule 2 of the LGPS 2013 Regulations creates a 

requirement for a new Admission Body to carry out to the satisfaction of the 

Administering Authority (and the Scheme Employer in the case of an Admission 

Body admitted under paragraph 1(d)(i)) an assessment taking account of actuarial 

advice of the level of risk on premature termination by reason of insolvency, winding 

up or liquidation. 

Where the level of risk identified by the assessment is such as to require it the 

admission body shall enter into an indemnity or bond with an appropriate party. 

Where it is not desirable for an admission body to enter into an indemnity or bond, 

the body is required to secure a guarantee in a form satisfactory to the 

Administering Authority from an organisation who either funds, owns or controls the 

functions of the admission body. 

The Administering Authority's approach in this area is as follows: 

• In the case of Admission Bodies admitted under paragraph 1(d) and other 

Admission Bodies with a Guarantor, and so long as the Administering Authority 

judges the relevant Scheme Employer or Guarantor to be of sufficiently sound 

covenant, any bond exists purely to protect the relevant Scheme Employer on 

default of the admission body. As such, it is entirely the responsibility of the 

relevant Scheme Employer or Guarantor to arrange any risk assessments and 

decide the level of required bond. The Administering Authority will be pleased to 

supply some standard calculations provided by the Fund Actuary to aid the 

relevant Scheme Employer, but this should not be construed as advice to the 

relevant Scheme Employer on this matter. 

• In the case of Admission Bodies admitted under paragraph 1(e), or under 

paragraph 1(d) where the Administering Authority does not judge the Relevant 

Scheme Employer to be of sufficiently strong covenant, and other Admission 

Bodies with no Guarantor or where the Administering Authority does not judge 

the Guarantor to be of sufficiently strong covenant, the Administering Authority 

must be involved in the assessment of the required level of bond to protect the 

Fund. The admission will only be able to proceed once the Administering 

Authority has agreed the level of bond cover. The Administering Authority will 

supply some standard calculations provided by the Fund Actuary to aid the 

relevant Scheme Employer form a view on what level of bond would be 

satisfactory. The Administering Authority will also on request supply this to the 

Admission Body or Guarantor. This should not be construed as advice to the 

Scheme Employer, Guarantor or Admission Body. 

• The Administering Authority notes that levels of required bond cover can 

fluctuate and will review, or recommends the Scheme Employer reviews, the 

required cover regularly, at least once a year. 

  

Page 124



ANNUAL REPORT 

99 

5.4 Subsumed Liabilities 

Where an admission body is ceasing participation in the Fund such that it will no 

longer have any contributing members, it is possible that another employer in the 

Fund (the 'accepting employer') has agreed to provide a source of future funding in 

respect of any emerging deficiencies in respect of those liabilities. 

In such circumstances the liabilities are known as subsumed liabilities (in that 

responsibility for them has been taken on by the accepting employer). For such 

liabilities the Administering Authority will assume that the investments held in 

respect of those liabilities will be the same as those held for the rest of the liabilities 

of the accepting employer. Generally this will mean assuming continued investment 

in more risky investments than Government bonds. 

5.5 Orphan Liabilities 

Where an admission body is ceasing participation in the Fund such that it will no 

longer have any contributing members, unless any residual liabilities are to become 

subsumed liabilities, the Administering Authority may act on the basis that it will 

have no further access for funding from that employer once any exit valuation, 

carried out in accordance with Regulation 64, has been completed and any sums 

due have been paid. Residual liabilities of employers from whom no further funding 

can be obtained are known as orphan liabilities. 

The Administering Authority will seek to minimise the risk to other employers in the 

Fund that any deficiency arising on the orphan liabilities creates a cost for those 

other employers to make good such deficiency. To give effect to this, the 

Administering Authority may seek funding from the outgoing employer sufficient to 

enable it to match the liabilities with low risk investments, generally Government 

fixed interest and index linked bonds. 

However, if these liabilities are deemed to be small compared to the liabilities of the 

whole Fund (and therefore the risk related to these liabilities is small) then the 

Administering Authority may decide to use the Funding Target used for Scheduled 

Bodies for practical reasons. 

Any excess or deficient returns on the notional or actual assets attributable to these 

liabilities relative to the Funding Target will be added to or deducted from the 

investment return to be attributed to the notional assets of all employers in the 

Fund. 

Liabilities in the Fund which are already orphaned will be assumed to be 100% 

funded on the appropriate funding target at each triennial valuation. This will be 

achieved by the Actuary notionally re-allocating assets within the Fund as required. 

5.6 Exit Valuations 

Where an employer exits the Fund, an exit valuation will be carried out in 

accordance with regulation 64. That valuation will take account of any activity as a 

consequence of cessation of participation regarding any existing contributing 

members (for example any bulk transfer payments due) and the status of any 

liabilities that will remain in the Fund. 

Page 125



 

100 

In particular, the exit valuation may distinguish between residual liabilities which will 

become orphan liabilities, and liabilities which will be subsumed (see above) by 

other employers. 

For subsumed liabilities the exit valuation will anticipate continued investment in 

assets similar to those held in respect of the subsuming employer's liabilities. 

For orphan liabilities the exit valuation could anticipate investment in low risk 

investments such as Government bonds or be calculated in the same way as 

subsumed liabilities, as considered appropriate. 

Regardless of whether the residual liabilities are orphan liabilities or subsumed 

liabilities, the departing employer will be expected to make good the funding 

position revealed in the exit valuation. In other words, the fact that liabilities may 

become subsumed liabilities does not remove the possibility of a exit payment being 

required. 

6. Key Risks & Controls 
6.1 Types of Risk 

The Administering Authority has an active risk management programme in place. 

The measures that the Administering Authority has in place to control key risks are 

summarised below under the following headings: 

• investment; 

• solvency; 

• liability; 

• regulatory; 

• employer. 

The Administering Authority will ensure that funding risks are included within their 

overarching risk management framework and strategy, linking to their risk register 

and risk management policy as appropriate and includes defining a role for the 

Local Pension Board within this framework. 

6.2 Investment Risks 

Risk Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the anticipated returns 

underpinning valuation of liabilities over the long-term 

Control Only anticipate long-term return on a relatively prudent basis to reduce risk 

of under-performing. Analyse progress at three yearly valuations for all 

employers. 

 The Administering Authority will request quarterly funding updates 

between the completion of the valuation report and the date of the next 

valuation to monitor the position. 

Risk Inappropriate long-term investment strategy 

Control Set Fund-specific benchmark in accordance with appropriate advice. 

  

Page 126



ANNUAL REPORT 

101 

Risk Active investment manager underperformance relative to benchmark 

Control Short term (quarterly) investment monitoring analyses market performance 

and active managers relative to their index benchmark. The Fund Actuary 

will be asked to evaluate the implications if there is significant 

underperformance. 

Risk Effect of possible increase in employer's contribution rate on service 

delivery and  admission/scheduled bodies 

Control Seek feedback from employers on scope to absorb short-term contribution 

rises. 

 Mitigate impact through deficit spreading and phasing in of contribution 

rises. 

 Consult employers on possibility of paying more (extra administration and 

Risk Control higher regular contributions) to enable employer-specific 

investment strategies to give greater certainty of cost. 

Risk Potential cashflow implications of increasing maturity of the Fund, for 

example as a result of reduced numbers of staff working in local 

government or through outsourcing 

Control Regularly review position including communication with employers about 

their plans. 

 Plan investments to ensure sufficient liquidity. 

6.3 Solvency Risks 

Risk Permitting surpluses or deficiencies to be eliminated over a recovery 

period rather than immediately introduces a risk that action to restore 

solvency is insufficient between successive measurements. 

Control It is policy to discuss the risks inherent in each situation with the Fund 

Actuary and to limit the permitted length of recovery period to no longer 

than 25 years in the vast majority of circumstances, and no longer than 40 

years under any circumstances. 

Risk Permitting contribution rate changes to be introduced by annual steps 

rather than immediately introduces a risk that action to restore solvency is 

insufficient between successive measurements. 

Control The risks inherent in each situation are discussed with the Fund Actuary 

and to limit the number of permitted steps to three annual steps or, at the 

Administering Authority's discretion, to six annual steps. 

  

Page 127



 

102 

6.4 Liability Risks 

Risk Pensioners living longer and changing retirement patterns. 

Control Set mortality assumptions with some allowance for future increases in life 

expectancy. The Fund Actuary investigates these matters at each 

valuation or if appropriate more frequently and will report on 

developments. 

 If significant demographic changes become apparent between valuations, 

the administering Authority will notify all participating employers on the 

anticipated costs that will emerge at the next valuation and will review the 

bonds that are in place for the Transferee Admitted Bodies. 

Risk Deteriorating patterns of ill health and other early retirements 

Control Employers are charged the extra capital cost of non ill health early 

retirements following each individual decision. 

 Ill health retirements will be monitored. 

Risk Demographic experience differing from the assumptions used by the 

actuary 

Control The Administering Authority will ensure that the Fund Actuary investigates 

these matters at each valuation, or more frequently if appropriate. 

Risk Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds, leading to rise in value 

placed on liabilities 

Control Allowing for a risk-based approach should limit the impact of short term 

changes in returns on Government bonds on the liabilities. 

 Some investment in bonds also helps to mitigate this risk. 

 Inter-valuation monitoring, as set out above, gives early warning of 

changing liability values. 

Risk Pay and price inflation significantly more than anticipated 

Control Employers pay for their own salary awards and are reminded of the 

geared effect on salary-linked pension liabilities of any bias in pensionable 

pay rises towards longer-serving employees. 

6.5 Regulatory Risk 

Risk Changes to regulations. 

Control The Administering Authority will keep abreast of all proposed changes and 

where possible express their opinion during consultation periods after 

careful consideration. 

 The Fund Actuary is asked to assess the impact on costs of any changes 

and where these are likely to be significant, the Administering Authority will 

notify Employers of the possible impact and the timing of any change. 

  

Page 128



ANNUAL REPORT 

103 

6.6 Employer Risk 

Risk Administering Authority being unaware of structural changes in an 

employer's membership (e.g. large fall in employee members or a large 

number of retirements). 

Control The Administering Authority monitors membership movements on an 

annual basis, via a report from the administrator to the Pension Fund 

Committee. 

 The Actuary may be instructed to consider revising the rates and 

Adjustments certificate to increase an employer's contributions under 

Regulation 64(4) or 64(7) of the LGPS 2013 Regulations between triennial 

valuations. 

Risk The risk of being unable to collect contributions from employers with no 

contributing members (e.g.risk associated with employers with a small 

number of declining contributing members). 

Control The Administering Authority monitors membership movements on an 

annual basis as set out above. 

 The Actuary may be instructed to consider revising the rates and 

Adjustments certificate to increase an employer's contributions under 

Regulation 64(4) of the LGPS 2013 Regulations between triennial 

valuations. 

Risk Administering Authority failing to commission the Fund Actuary to carry out 

an exit valuation for a departing employer and losing the opportunity to call 

in a debt. 

Control In addition to the Administering Authority monitoring membership 

movements on an annual basis, it requires employers to inform it of 

forthcoming changes 

Risk An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient funding or adequacy of a 

bond. 

Control The Administering Authority believes that it would normally be too late to 

address the position if it was left to the time of departure. The risk is 

mitigated by: 

 Seeking a funding guarantee from another scheme employer, or external 

body, wherever possible. 

 Requiring a bond or some other security to protect the scheme from the 

existing deficit and the extra cost of early retirements on redundancy if the 

employer failed. 

 Alerting the prospective employer to its obligations and encouraging it to 

take independent actuarial advice. 

 Vetting prospective employers before admission. 

  

Page 129



 

104 

Appendix 
Grouped employers 

Currently there is one group of employers in the Fund pooled together for funding and 

contribution purposes. All risks are shared within this group, they have a common primary 

(future service) contribution rate but they retain responsibility for the payment of the 

contributions towards the deficit relating to them. The following employers included in this 

group at the date of writing this Statement are as follows: 

• Welshpool Town Council 

• Llanidloes Burial Joint Committee 

• Town Council of Newtown & Llanllwchaiarn 

• Ystradgynlais Town Council 

• Ystradfellte Community Council 

• Llandrindod Wells Town Council 

• Brecon Town Council 

• Llanidloes Town Council 

• Machynlleth Town Council 

Risk sharing 

Powys County Council has agreed a risk sharing approach with a number of employers 

whereby the employer will pay their primary rate only plus any agreed additional 

contributions arising from actions taken by the employer. Such employers will be required 

to sign an agreement with Powys County Council which will set out the contributions to be 

paid. The employers who have signed such an agreement at the date of writing this 

Statement are as follows: 

• Camping & Caravanning Club 

• Elite Supported Employment Agency Limited 

• PAVO 

• Powys Dance 

• Solo Services Group Limited 

 

 

Page 130



ANNUAL REPORT 

105 

Appendix 7: Communications Policy 

1. Introduction 
1.1 Regulation 61 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 2013 (as amended) 

[SI 2013 No. 2356] requires an administering authority to prepare, publish and 

maintain a statement that sets out strategy for communication and promotion of the 

Local Government Pension Scheme. 

1.2 The Statement is required to include details of policy for communicating with 

Scheme members and their representatives; prospective Scheme members; and 

Scheme employers. 

1.3 In particular, the Statement must set out policy on the provision of information and 

publicity about the Scheme to Scheme members, their representatives and Scheme 

employers; the format, frequency and method of distributing such information or 

publicity; and the promotion of the Scheme to prospective members and their 

employers. 

1.4 The Statement must be reviewed and published following any material change 

relevant to the policy. 

1.5 An effective communications strategy is vital for any organisation that strives to 

provide a high quality and consistent service to its customers. The complexity of 

pensions in general and the LGPS in particular, places communications at the heart 

of a high quality service provision. 

1.6 There are six distinct groups with whom Powys Pension Fund needs to 

communicate: 

 Pension Fund Trustees and local Pension Board Members 

 Scheme Members 

 Prospective Scheme Members 

 Scheme Employers 

 Pension Fund Officers and Staff 

 Other Stakeholders 

1.7 Set out in this Statement are the mechanisms which are used to communicate with 

each of these groups, together with a strategy for widening and improving 

communications and to promote the Scheme amongst non-members. 

2. Principles Underpinning this Strategy 
2.1 The drivers for communicating that underpin this strategy are: 

a) to inform and educate stakeholders and interested parties about the Powys 
Pension Fund and the Local Government Pension Scheme in an open and 
transparent manner;  

b) to better facilitate accountability; 

c) to promote the engagement of scheme members and employers. 

 

Page 131



 

106 

2.2 Wherever possible the Pension Fund seeks to make its communications as open 

and as accessible as are needed by stakeholders. This includes:  

a) the provision of information through the medium of Welsh; 

b) the provision of information in other languages if required; 

c) where possible, providing communications in alternative forms for example in 
large print, via audio etc. 

d) the increasing use of social media. 

2.3 In the context of the LGPS, deciding on when to communicate is largely determined 

by the statutory requirements imposed upon the Pension Fund. The Pension Fund 

aims to provide communications to stakeholders within statutory timelines and, for 

non-statutory information, as and when required. 

3. Pension Fund Trustees and local Pension Board Members 
3.1 The Trustees of Powys Pension Fund (the members of the Pensions & Investment 

Committee - six Powys County Council Elected Members plus two non-voting 

members representing other participating Scheme employers and Scheme 

members) and local Pension Board Members (an independent Chair, two Scheme 

employer representatives and two Scheme member representatives) receive 

information, primarily in the form of written reports and email correspondence, that 

cover investment, actuarial and administration issues. Committee and Board 

members also attend conferences and seminars on the LGPS. 

3.2 Completion of appropriate training for Pension Fund Trustees and local Pension 

Board Members is a mandatory requirement. Ongoing knowledge development and 

training is to be provided via Pension Fund Officers and advisers. Full details are 

set out in the Knowledge & Skills Framework Policy appended to the Pension 

Fund’s Governance Policy & Compliance Statement.  

4. Scheme Members 
4.1 Newsletters – are sent out to all active and pensioner members covering LGPS and 

related issues, as and when required. 

4.2 Benefit Statements – sent to all active and deferred members (where a current 

home address is held) annually. Statements include State Scheme benefits and are 

produced in conjunction with the Department for Work and Pensions.  

4.3 Scheme Literature – A range of Scheme literature and information covering many 

aspects of the LGPS is produced by Powys Pension Fund and is supplied direct to 

employers and Scheme members, as required. 

4.4 Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) – Regular promotional mailshots are sent 

to active members in partnership with the Fund’s AVC providers.  

4.5 Pay Advices – Powys Pension Fund issues pay advices to all its Fund pensioners 

twice per year, or more often where pay amounts vary from month-to-month.     

4.6 Pensions Increases – all Fund pensioners are advised of their annual pension 

increase via a personalised letter sent in April each year. 

4.7 Correspondence – the Pension Fund utilises both surface mail and email to send 

and receive correspondence with Scheme members. 

Page 132



ANNUAL REPORT 

107 

4.8 Telephone – much of the Pension Fund’s communication with individual Scheme 

members is conducted by telephone.  

4.9 Pensions Clinics – The Pension Fund provides a periodic clinic service where 

Scheme members have the opportunity to discuss their individual pension issues on 

a face-to-face basis. In addition, clinics focussing on AVCs are also held for the 

benefit of active members, provided by the Fund’s AVC providers. 

4.10 Welsh Language – wherever possible the Pension Fund provides access to 

Scheme documents in the medium of Welsh. 

4.11 Website - a full range of Pension Fund and LGPS information is available via the 

Pension Fund’s dedicated bespoke website at www.powyspensionfund.org. 

4.12 My Powys Pension – an online system that is available to all active and deferred 

Scheme members. It enables members to interact with their pension records; log 

changes to basic data (e.g. changes to address etc.); and perform pension benefit 

forecasts.     

4.13 Powys Pension Fund has both facebook and twitter accounts through which it is 

able to communicate further with Scheme members who prefer to receive 

information via these media platforms. 

5. Prospective Scheme Members 
5.1 Scheme Guide – All prospective Scheme members are provided with Scheme 

information on being appointed to their employments. 

5.2 Website - a full range of Pension Fund and LGPS information is available via the 

Pension Fund’s dedicated bespoke website at www.powyspensionfund.org. 

5.3 The Pension Fund’s intention is to request formal notification of non-joiners from 

Scheme employers. The information will be used to market the Scheme with 

dedicated literature. (Targeted for implementation during 2017/18). 

5.4 Pensions Clinics – The Pension Fund provides a periodic clinic service where 

prospective Scheme members have the opportunity to discuss their individual 

pension issues on a face-to-face basis. 

6. Scheme Employers 
6.1 Employers’ Guide – An Employers’ Guide is issued to each employer to assist them 

in the administration associated with participation in the Scheme. 

6.2 Ill Health Retirements – The Pension Fund has made available to all participating 

employers access to the Pension Fund’s approved Occupational Health Physician 

for the purposes associated with ill health benefits.   

6.3 Employer Meetings and Reports – Periodic Employer meetings are held at least 

annually. Typically these are used to communicate a variety of Pension Fund 

matters of specific interest to employers, such as the results of triennial valuations. 

In addition, employers receive copies of the Pension Fund’s Annual Report & 

Accounts, Statement of Investment Principles, Funding Strategy Statement and 

Governance Policy & Compliance Statement.  

Page 133



 

108 

6.4 Technical Updates – These are sent to employers from time to time to advise them 

of significant changes to the Scheme and associated legislation. 

6.5 Website - a full range of Pension Fund and LGPS information is available via the 

Pension Fund’s dedicated bespoke website at www.powyspensionfund.org. 

6.6 It is envisaged that technical updates for employers will be regularised in the form of 

a quarterly briefing paper, to include, in addition to Scheme changes, matters of 

national debate and interest on the future development of pensions in general and 

the LGPS in particular. (Targeted for implementation during 2017/18). 

6.7 Powys Pension Fund has both facebook and twitter accounts through which it is 

able to communicate further with employers who prefer to receive information via 

these media platforms. 

7. Pension Fund Officers and Staff 
7.1 Team Meetings – Pensions Administration meets quarterly at which team members 

consider procedural issues; plan work and developments for the coming quarter and 

beyond; and, at which the team is kept abreast of Scheme developments and 

changes. 

7.2 Technical Information – Bulletins and Circulars issued by the Local Government 

Association together with guidance and consultation documents from the 

Department for Communities and Local Government are available to all Pension 

Fund Officers and Staff for information. In addition, periodic in-house procedural 

guidance, procedure notes and technical explanations are provided, as required. 

7.3 Intranet and Internet – All staff have been enabled to use the corporate  

7.4 E-mails – All staff have access to email facilities. 

7.5 Pension Fund Manager – The Pension Fund Manager maintains an open-door 

policy and attempts to make himself available to all staff at all times. 

8. Other Stakeholders   
8.1 All Wales Pension Officers’ Group – Pension Officers from the 8  administering 

authorities in Wales meet regularly in order to ensure uniform interpretation of the 

LGPS and other associated regulations. The group’s views are passed up to the 

national level via the Local Government Pensions Committee’s Technical Group 

Meetings (an arm of the Local Government Association) that are held quarterly. 

8.2 All Wales Communications Group – Pensions Officers from the 8 administering 

authorities in Wales meet periodically in order to devise, develop and promote the 

use of common Scheme literature. 

8.3 CLASS Group – As a user of the Altair Pensions Administration System, the 

Pension Fund is a member of the local authority CLASS Group and attends both 

regional user groups and national meetings.  

8.4 National Fraud Initiative – The Pension Fund has participated in the National Fraud 

Initiative since 1998 and continues to do so. This has helped to avoid the 

overpayment of pension benefits to both deceased and re-employed pensioners. 

Page 134



ANNUAL REPORT 

109 

8.5 Taxpayers and the General Public – all the principal Pension Fund documents 

including the Annual Report & Accounts, Actuarial Valuation Reports, Statement of 

Investment Principles, Funding Strategy Statement, Governance Policy & 

Compliance Statement and this Statement, are available to the public via the 

Pension Fund’s website at www.powyspensionfund.org or on request.  

9. Contacts 
9.1 Any questions, queries or observations on this Statement; or, on matters relating to 

the investment of the Powys Pension Fund; or, on the governance of the Pension 

Fund, should be addressed to: 

Mr C Hurst 
Pension Fund Manager 
Powys County Council 
County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 
Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Tel: 01597 827641 

Email: chris.hurst@powys.gov.uk 

9.2 Questions or queries concerning membership, benefits or information in respect of 

the Local Government Pension Scheme, should be directed to:  

Mrs M Price 
Pensions Support Manager 
Powys County Council 
County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 
Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Tel: 01597 827640 

Email: megan.price@powys.gov.uk  

9.3 All other enquiries should be addressed to:  

The Pensions Section 
Powys County Council 
County Hall 
Llandrindod Wells 
Powys 
LD1 5LG 

Email: pensions@powys.gov.uk  

Page 135

mailto:chris.hurst@powys.gov.uk
mailto:megan.price@powys.gov.uk
mailto:pensions@powys.gov.uk


 

110 

Glossary of Terms 
Accrual 

An accrual is a sum (provision) shown in the accounts to cover income or expenditure for 

the accounting period but which was not actually paid or received as at the date of the 

Balance Sheet. 

Actuary 

An actuary is a person who works out insurance and pension premiums, taking into 

account factors such as life expectancy. 

Actuarial Valuation 

This is when an actuary checks what the pension scheme assets are worth and compares 

them with the scheme’s liabilities. They then work out how much the contributions from 

employers and members must be so that there will be enough money in the scheme when 

people receive their pensions. 

Additional Voluntary Contributions 

An option to secure additional pension benefits by making regular payments in addition to 

the % of basic earnings payable. 

Admitted Bodies 

Voluntary and Charitable bodies that fulfil certain conditions can apply to allow their 

employees to become members of the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

Audit  

An audit is an independent examination of the Council’s activities. 

Balance Sheet  

This is a statement of our assets, liabilities and other balances at the date of the Balance 

Sheet. 

Contingent Liabilities  

Contingent liabilities exist where it is probable that a future event will result in a material 

cost to the Council and can be estimated with reasonable accuracy. 

Creditor 

A Creditor is someone we owed money to at the date of the Balance Sheet for work done, 

goods received or services rendered. 

Current Asset 

These are short-term assets that are available for use in the following accounting year. 

Current Liabilities 

These are short-term liabilities that are due for payment by the Council in the following 

accounting year. 

Current Service Costs (Pension) 

The increase in the liability of a defined benefit pensions scheme as a result of employee’s 

service in the current period. 

Debtor 

A debtor is an organisation/individual that owes the Council money at the Balance Sheet 

date. 

Page 136



ANNUAL REPORT 

111 

Equities - Pooled  

The Pension Fund invests in equities through unit Trusts. It has no direct investments in 

equities. 

Financial Reporting Standards (FRS’s) 

Financial regulations to be followed as set by the Accounting Standards Board. 

Financial Year  

This is the accounting period. For local authorities it starts on 01 April and ends on the 31 

March in the following year. 

Gilt Edged Stocks 

These are investments in government or local Authority stocks. They are regarded as risk-

free. 

Liability 

A liability is an amount payable at some time in the future. 

Past Service Costs (Pension) 

For a defined benefit pension scheme, this is the extra cost resulting from changes or 

improvements to the proportion of retirement benefit that relates to an employees past 

service. 

Post Balance Sheet Events  

Post Balance Sheet events are items that have arisen after the Balance Sheet date. The 

items did not occur at the time the Balance Sheet was prepared but have subsequently 

been discovered. To give a fair representation they may need to be disclosed. 

Securities 

These are investments such as stocks and bonds. 

 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



2019.  
 

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Pensions and Investment Committee 
4th October 2019 

 
REPORT BY: Head of Finance 
  
SUBJECT: Administration and LGPS Update 
  
 

REPORT FOR: Information 

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report has been produced to provide Committee with an update on 

LGPS and administration matters, together with any potential impacts 
of these on the Powys Pension Fund.  

 
1.2 This report will provide Committee with updates on: 

 

 Data Quality Testing 

 My Powys Pension Online Portal Registration Statistics 

 MHCLG Update 

 LGPC Update 

 Other Issues 
 
2 Data Quality Testing 
 
2.1 In 2015, the Pensions Regulator (TPR) assumed responsibility for 

Public Sector Pension Schemes. Prior to this, in June 2010, TPR 
issued guidance on the approach that they consider to be good 
practice for measuring the presence of member data. Specific targets 
were set for data TPR deemed as ‘common’ and ‘scheme specific’. 

 
2.2 The Fund produced a Data Quality testing and monitoring procedure 

document in May 2017, with a formal Data Improvement Plan 
published in October 2018. 

 
2.3 Based on the data quality testing requirements, the overall percentage 

of tests passed for the scheme-specific data is 95.8%, a slight increase 
of 0.1% from last year’s results. The percentage of member records 
without a single common data failure is 84.3%. This is the figure that 
TPR will be requesting on the scheme return. This represents an 
improvement of 8.4% over the 2018 score of 75.9%. 

 
2.4 In respect of the common data, 6 of the required data categories met 

the highest benchmark of greater than 98%, with 3 categories not 
recording a single failure. The categories that did not reach the highest 
benchmark concerned member NI numbers and Addresses which both 

Page 139

8



fell within the Green benchmark at 97.6% and 96.7% respectively. The 
percentage of member records without a single common data failure is 
93.3% and this is the figure that TPR will be requesting on the scheme 
return. This is similar to last year’s score of 93.4%. Whilst it is 
disappointing to see a decrease of 0.1% in the overall score, it is 
important to note that the 2019 tests were executed across an increase 
of 1,598 records from the number tested in 2018. 

 
3 My Powys Pension Online Portal Registration Statistics 
 
3.1 Powys Pension Fund launched an online member portal in 2016 and 

has been working hard since then to encourage registration of scheme 
members to the service, a 24/7 access for members to their pension 
records and scheme communications. As at the 31st of May 2019, there 
are over 60% of active members signed up for the service (47.4% of all 
scheme members across all membership statuses). New entrants to 
the scheme are issued with activation details at the point of entry.  

 
4 MHCLG Update 
 
4.1 MHCLG has issued revised late retirement guidance and factors, 

effective from 1 September 2019. The new methodology removes the 
‘cliff edge’ effect which reduced the value of LGPS benefits held by 
members who were over their Normal Pension Age (NPA) when the 
factors last changed in January 2017. 

 
5 LGPC Update 
 
5.1 The national LGPS Technical Group has made recommendations to 

the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to:  
  

 amend the forfeiture rules to include convictions which relate to 
an employment, and the conviction takes place after leaving that 
employment   

 remove the requirement to pay a refund of contributions within 
five years and  

 align the rules covering concurrent membership  
  

The SAB have agreed to proceed with these changes and are in the 
process of making recommendations to MHCLG. 

 
5.2 The LGPC have published a technical guide on survivor benefits in the 

LGPS, which reflects the changes introduced by the LGPS 
(Miscellaneous Amendment) Regulations 2018 with regards to survivor 
benefits for civil partners and the spouses of same-sex marriages.  
MHCLG plans to introduce statutory guidance for administering 
authorities, in respect of past trivial commutation and transfer payments 
that are affected by the change in survivor benefits for civil partners 
and same sex spouses. 

 
6 Other Issues 

Page 140



 
6.1 On 27 June 2019, the Supreme Court denied the Government’s 

request for an appeal in the McCloud and Sargeant age discrimination 
case (“McCloud”).  The Government then confirmed on 15 July 2019, 
that remedies relating to the McCloud judgment will need to be made in 
relation to all public service pension schemes and will, therefore, 
impact on the LGPS.  

 
It is as yet unclear how the LGPS will have to be amended to account 
for this and Funds will need to consider how the effects of McCloud will 
be taken into account for valuation purposes.   
 

6.2 On 10th June 2019, the Competition and Market’s Authority (CMA) 
published the Investment Consultancy and Fiduciary Management 
Market Investigation Order 2019.  One thing that the order obliges, is 
for pension schemes to set objectives for their Investment Consultancy 
providers. Aon will present a separate paper on this matter later in the 
agenda. 

 
7 Recommendation 
 
7.1 To note the contents of this report. 
 
 

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 

 To note the update and raise any 
points of discussion or concerns to 
ensure that the Fund continues to 
focus on high standards of 
administration. 

As per report 

Person(s) To Action 
Decision: 

Pension Fund Manager 

Date By When Decision To Be Actioned: Immediately 

Relevant Policy 
(ies): 

N/A 

Within Policy: N/A Within 
Budget: 

N/A 

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email: 

Chris Hurst 01597 827640 01597 826290 churst@powys.gov.uk 

 

Relevant Portfolio Member(s): Cllr Aled Davies 

Relevant Local Member(s): N/A 

 

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



2019.  
 

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Pensions and Investment Committee 
4th October 2019 

 
REPORT BY: Head of Finance 
  
SUBJECT: Governance Update 
  
 

REPORT FOR: Information 

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report has been produced to provide Committee with an update on 

the LGPS governance matters and the potential impact of these on the 
Powys Pension Fund.  

 
1.2 This report is provided in addition to the executive summary presented 

by the Powys Pension Board Chair and will provide updates on: 
 

 The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) latest update 

 The SAB Good Governance Project 

 The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) annual survey of public sector 
pension schemes 

 Updates on the Fund’s risk register 

 Updates on the Fund’s breaches register 
 
2 Fund Governance 
 
2.1 SAB Update  
 
2.2 The LGPS SAB Board met on 8 July 2019 and the agenda for the 

meeting can be found here. The summary note of the meeting, 
provided by the SAB, is enclosed for your information. 

 
2.3 The SAB Good Governance Project 
 
2.4 The SAB commissioned Hymans Robertson to facilitate a consultation 

on good governance structures for the LGPS. The purpose of the 
consultation was to consider how best to accommodate LGPS 
functions within the democratically accountable local authority 
framework, in a way that ensures that conflicts of interest are 
addressed and managed appropriately, in order that the LGPS remains 
appropriately resourced and able to deliver its statutory functions. 

 
2.5 As detailed in the SAB update, the results of the project have now been 

published and are available here. The next steps include the 
establishment of two working groups to: 

Page 143

9

http://www.lgpsboard.org/images/PDF/BoardJuly2019/Agenda_8th_July_2019.pdf
http://www.lgpsboard.org/images/PDF/GGreport.pdf


 define what is meant by good governance outcomes and provide the 
accompanying guidance, and 

 focus on options for the independent assessment of outcomes and the 
mechanisms to improve the delivery of those outcomes. 

 
 Both groups will comprise of a variety of stakeholders to ensure a wide 

range of views and options are considered. The aim is for an options 
report to be ready for consideration by SAB in November 2019. Any 
proposals agreed by SAB will be subject to a full stakeholder 
consultation before being put to MHCLG. Details of both working 
groups will be published on the SAB website in due course. 

 
2.6 The Pension Regulator’s (TPR) annual survey of public sector pension 

schemes 
 
2.7 In July, the Pension regulator (TPR) published its latest report on the 

annual governance and administration survey. It has identified that the 
main risks associated with public service pension schemes lies around 
governance, data (record keeping) and member communications. A 
useful commentary on the report is available here:  

 
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-
/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/public-service-research-
summary-2019.ashx 

 
2.8 Risk Register Updates 
 
2.9 No updates for consideration at this meeting. The latest published 

version is available here, for your information. 
 
2.10 Breaches Register Update 
 
2.11 No recordable or reportable breaches added since last meeting. The 

latest version of the breaches log is attached, for your information. 
 
3 Recommendation 
 
3.1 To note the contents of this report. 
 

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 

 To note the update and raise any 
points of discussion or concerns to 
ensure that the Fund continues to 
focus on high standards of 
governance. 

As per report 

Person(s) To Action 
Decision: 

Pension Fund Manager 

Date By When Decision To Be Actioned: Immediately 

Relevant Policy 
(ies): 

N/A 

Page 144

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/public-service-research-summary-2019.ashx
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/public-service-research-summary-2019.ashx
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/-/media/thepensionsregulator/files/import/pdf/public-service-research-summary-2019.ashx
https://www.powyspensionfund.org/media/4693/risk-register-revised-july-2019.pdf


Within Policy: N/A Within 
Budget: 

N/A 

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email: 

Chris Hurst 01597 827640 01597 826290 churst@powys.gov.uk 

 

Relevant Portfolio Member(s): Cllr Aled Davies 

Relevant Local Member(s): N/A 

 

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



Local Government Pension Scheme 

Scheme Advisory Board 

Scheme Advisory Board Secretariat  

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ T 07867192448  Robert.Holloway@local.gov.uk W www.lgpsboard.org 

This note summarises the meeting of the Scheme Advisory Board on the 8th July  

2019. Full details of the meeting and agenda papers can be found at 

www.lgpsboard.org. 

The Chair opened the meeting by thanking former Councillor, Denise Le Gal,  for all 

the help and support she has given during her membership of the Board.  

Under “Actions and Agreements” the Board was asked to seek further clarification 

from the Pensions Regulator about the scope of Codes of Practice and other 

guidance, apart from Code of Practice 14, that LGPS administering authorities need 

to have regard to. This follows a case involving one English shire county fund who 

has been fined for failing to alert all their scheme members to a late payment of 

contributions. The Secretariat will be meeting the Pension Regulator’s public service 

pension team on the 13th August and will raise this matter with them. 

Good Governance Project 

The project team at Hymans Robertson presented the final draft report to the Board. 

The Board agreed that the report should be published before the end of July to allow  

Board members a short period to submit any comments they may have. The Board 

also agreed that following publication of the report,  the Secretariat should 

commence work, in conjunction with scheme stakeholders, to outline the practical 

steps necessary to implement the main options set out in the report for consideration 

by the Board in November. Once approved, scheme stakeholders will be given the 

opportunity to comment on the Board’s recommendations before any formal 

approach is made to MHCLG Ministers for changes to the scheme’s regulations or 

guidance. 

SAB Levy Invoices 

The Board was advised that there were still four administering authorities who have 

yet to pay SAB levy invoices dating back to 2017/18. The Secretariat will continue to 

discuss payment with these authorities but for the future, the Board agreed that  

failure to pay the SAB levy within a reasonable timeframe could result in non-payees 

being identified in summary reports and with certain services and access to 

LGA/SAB events being withdrawn.   

MHCLG Consultations 

 A : 95k Cap 

Following consultation with Board members and those of the Cost Management, 

Benefit Design and Administration committee,  a response to HM Treasury’s 

consultation was submitted. The response included individual examples where the 

proposed 95K cap was impacting on the local government workforce unfairly and 

disproportionately with long serving members as well as the high paid being 

subjected to the proposed cap. A response from the LGA has also been submitted. 

 B : Fair Deal 

Page 147

http://www.lgpsboard.org/


Local Government Pension Scheme 

Scheme Advisory Board 

Scheme Advisory Board Secretariat  

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ T 07867192448  Robert.Holloway@local.gov.uk W www.lgpsboard.org 

The Board was advised that discussions are continuing with MHCLG,  in particular,  

on what the default position should be if negotiations between employer and 

contractor fail to reach agreement. The Board agreed that the “deemed employer” 

option should be the default position given that it would give employers,  contractors 

and scheme members complete clarity about the position should no agreement be 

reached on whether the “deemed employer” or “admitted body” should apply. The 

Board agreed the draft response. 

 C : Four Year Valuation period; exit payments/credits and HE/FE 

On the proposal to move local fund valuations in the scheme to a four yearly 

valuation cycle in line with valuations undertaken by unfunded public service pension 

schemes and all scheme valuations. The next round of scheme valuations will be 

undertaken in 2020 and 2024 which means that there would be a potential 5 years 

between the current 2019 LGPS local valuations and the first of the four year period 

valuations. The Board agreed that five years without local valuations would not be 

the best way forward and that despite the administrative complexities of the 

alternative of an interim full set of valuations after 3 years, that is, in 2022 followed 

by another set in 2024, this was marginally the better of the two options. The Board 

also agreed that the response should record some concern about allowing 

administering authorities too much flexibility in exercising the proposed facility to hold 

an interim valuation. The Board took the view that the regulations and guidance  

must be clear that the circumstances in which the interim valuation power is to be 

used must be fully set out in an authority’s Funding Strategy Statement. 

On exit payments, the Board was advised that the proposals included a new concept 

of “deferred employer” that would allow employers to continue to be recognised as 

such despite having no active members and having exited the scheme. The Board 

agreed the draft response on exit payments and noted that supplementary guidance 

would help to provide a robust framework to govern the exercise of the proposed 

power. 

On exit credits, the Board was advised that the draft response included 

representations to close an unintended loophole whereby administering authorities 

were liable to pay exit credits at the end of a contract even though steps had been 

taken by the employer to remove any risk from the contractor. The draft response 

agreed by the Board proposes that the amending regulations should include a 

provision requiring fund actuaries to take any side agreement into consideration 

when assessing exit credit payments. 

On the proposal in the consultation to change the status of HE/FE bodies from 

scheduled to designated bodies, although a view was expressed that the  proposed 

response was too negative regarding the potential impact on the scheme; the 

substantive view taken was that  that this part of the consultation should be deferred 

until the outcome of the Third Tier Employer’s project is concluded and that such  a 

delay was necessary to properly assess the impact of the proposed changes on 

scheme membership and cash flow positions. The Board agreed that the Board 

Page 148



Local Government Pension Scheme 

Scheme Advisory Board 

Scheme Advisory Board Secretariat  

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ T 07867192448  Robert.Holloway@local.gov.uk W www.lgpsboard.org 

Secretary should re-draft the relevant section of the consultation response to reflect 

the different views expressed by Board members. 

Copies of all the draft responses referred to above can be found at 

http://lgpsboard.org/index.php/about-the-board/prev-meetings 

Pensions Tax 

The Board was advised that HM Treasury is willing to hear representations from 

public service pension schemes concerned about the impact annual and lifetime 

allowances are having on the effectiveness of their workforces and service delivery. 

Particular reference was made to the situation in the health sector where it is claimed 

that waiting list targets are not being met because NHS staff are refusing to work 

overtime and additional shifts for fear of taking earnings and pension benefits over 

tax thresholds. It was suggested that some of these claims were being exaggerated. 

There was also a concern whether any remedy forthcoming from government may 

apply retrospectively to put right decisions taken in the past to avoid tax thresholds. 

The Board noted that the Secretariat will continue to attend the working group 

established by a number of public service pension schemes to lobby HM Treasury. 

McCloud 

The Board was advised that a meeting between MHCLG,  external auditors and 

GAD would take place shortly to discuss the implications of the Supreme Court’s 

decision to refuse the government’s application to appeal the McCloud judgement  

and, in particular, the impact this is having for signing off local authority accounts. 

Although there is now certainly that the McCloud judgement stands and that the case 

will now go back to the Employment Tribunal for remedy, there was clear support for 

the Board to issue a message to scheme stakeholders clarifying the uncertainties 

that remain. The Board agreed that the Secretariat should prepare a draft statement 

for consideration and approval of the Chair. 

Local Pension Board Survey 

The Board agreed that members should be given until the end of July to comment on  

the draft survey prepared by the Investment, Governance and Engagement 

committee. The Secretariat will then prepare the survey for publication in August with 

a deadline of completion by the end of November. This will allow provisional findings 

to be reported to the Board when it next meets on the 4th November. The Secretariat 

was also tasked to open discussions with stakeholders on the best way of 

distributing the survey to ensure a good response.    

Dates of next meetings 

These are scheduled for the 4th November and the 3rd February, 11th May, 3rd 

August and the 2nd November 2020/ 

 

Page 149

http://lgpsboard.org/index.php/about-the-board/prev-meetings


Local Government Pension Scheme 

Scheme Advisory Board 

Scheme Advisory Board Secretariat  

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ T 07867192448  Robert.Holloway@local.gov.uk W www.lgpsboard.org 

 

 
Bob Holloway 
Pensions Secretary 
9th July 2019 

Page 150



Powys Pension Fund Breaches 2018_19

Breach No YEAR Breach Type Nature of Breach Breach Description Action Material Significance (Y/N) P & I Committee Notified Pension Board Notified TPR Notified RAG Status

1 2018/19 Administration Late Notifcation of deferred Benefits

Disclosure Regulations state that any deferred leaver should be notified of their deferred benefit 
options within two months of the fund receiving complete leaver information from the employer. 
Due to the backlog of casework in the fund these deadlines have not been met for c200 deferred 
members. Cause: The backlog has occured through the introduction of the new LGPS and the 
increased complexity around administration (aggregations, final salary links etc). An increase in the 
numbers of deferred pensioners who have left employmment through reorganisations in recent 
months has also had an impact. Effect: although a breach, it is not considered material, as the 
information is not critical when making future decisions. Where a deferred member reaches 
retirement age their calculation will be completed at that point.This is a national issue for most 
funds across the LGPS.

New letter produced and issued to leavers upon 
notification of leaving, stating their entitlements upon 
leaving membership of the LGPS (i.e. under 2 years = 
refund, over 2 years = Deferred) N N Y N

2 2018/19 Administration
Automatic payment of refund after 5 years 
for post 2014 leavers

Members have been contacted requesting bank details in order to pay refunds, however, no reply 
has been received from the scheme members. 7 members to 31.08.19

The National Technical Group has recommended to the 
SAB that the regulations in respect of refunds is amended 
and reflects the position prior to April 2014. N Y Y N

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2019.  
 

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Pensions and Investment Committee 
4th October 2019 

 
REPORT BY: Head of Finance 
  
SUBJECT: Wales Pension Partnership Update 
  
 

REPORT FOR: Information  

 
 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 This report aims to provide Committee with an update on the work 

undertaken on behalf of the Wales Pension Partnership (WPP) with 
regard to pooling investments in Wales. 

 
1.2 The last Joint Governance Committee (JGC) meeting was held in 

Pontypool on the 20th of September 2019 and a link to the agenda 
available here: 

 
 http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CI

d=234&MId=2577&Ver=4 
 
1.3 The next JGC meeting is due to take place in Carmarthen on the 9th of 

December 2019. 
 
1.4 The Pension Fund Manager and Financial Reporting & Policy 

Accountant continue to assist the Host Authority (Carmarthenshire 
County Council) and the WPP adviser Hymans Robertson with their 
respective roles, as well as representing the interests of the Powys 
Pension Fund on the Officer Working Group (OWG). 

2 Summary of progress and ongoing work 

2.1 At the September JGC, Hymans Robertson in their role as advisers to 
the WPP, facilitated a workshop on “Beliefs and Policies” with the aim 
of clearly defining and documenting the objectives, priorities and 
decision making process of the WPP. Work is continuing on this. 

 
2.2 An investment manager engagement day took place on 19th 

September 2019 in Cardiff, where the Chair of the Committee and 
Pension Fund Manager attended to represent the Powys Pension 
Fund. This was seen as a positive step in strengthening the overall 
governance position of the WPP. 

Page 153

11

http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=234&MId=2577&Ver=4
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=234&MId=2577&Ver=4


2.3 A sub-group of the OWG has met for the first time to discuss the 
approach of pooling illiquid assets e.g. private equity and infrastructure. 
Further meetings will be required to reach a consensus. The group is 
due to meet again on the 25th of October. 

2.4 Responsible Investment Policy. A link to the WPP Responsible 
Investment Policy, which was approved at the September JGC, is here 
for your information: 

https://www.walespensionpartnership.org/publications/responsible-
investment-policy/ 

2.5 Updates to UK Government. Due to a new Secretary of State 
responsible for the LGPS Scheme and a new Local Government 
Minister, a request has been sent to all LGPS pools to provide an 
update on the assets transitioned into pooled vehicles and those still 
held locally. Powys Pension Fund has responded with the appropriate 
information. 

2.6 The official website for the WPP has now been launched and is 
available for viewing here: 

 https://www.walespensionpartnership.org/ 

 https://www.partneriaethpensiwncymru.org/ 
 
3 Recommendation 
 
3.1 To note the contents of this report. 
 
 

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 

 To note contents of the report and 
any accompanying papers and 
provide comment or feedback 
accordingly 
 

For information 

Person(s) To Action 
Decision: 

Pension Fund Manager 

Date By When Decision To Be Actioned:  

Relevant Policy 
(ies): 

N/A 

Within Policy: N/A Within 
Budget: 

N/A 

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email: 

Chris Hurst 01597 827640 01597 826290 churst@powys.gov.uk 

 

Relevant Portfolio Member(s): Councillor Aled Davies 

Relevant Local Member(s):  

 

Page 154

https://www.walespensionpartnership.org/publications/responsible-investment-policy/
https://www.walespensionpartnership.org/publications/responsible-investment-policy/
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.walespensionpartnership.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cchris.hurst%40powys.gov.uk%7C50a668e1849c49d2a09d08d74101adec%7Cc01d9ee10eb0475499ae03ae8a732b50%7C0%7C0%7C637049347777966424&sdata=w4heaXU7YC%2FD66iTeUxvxQGzgr%2FZQZUGGAauaqy1DJ4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.partneriaethpensiwncymru.org%2F&data=02%7C01%7Cchris.hurst%40powys.gov.uk%7C50a668e1849c49d2a09d08d74101adec%7Cc01d9ee10eb0475499ae03ae8a732b50%7C0%7C0%7C637049347777966424&sdata=CxIGPBkoUyoLm7gJtywB7Xy2DIC1b27CYytCFRwlTQ0%3D&reserved=0


Aon Hewitt 
Retirement and Investment   
 

 

Powys County Council Pension Fund 

Decision Review 

 

 

Meeting Dates: 25 June and 1 July 

▪ Received training on Infrastructure / Multi 
Asset Credit / Cyber Crime / Responsible 
Investment / Cost and Transparency / 
Active Equity 

▪ Reviewed the WPP RI policy 

▪ Considered WPP Fixed Income sub-fund 
proposal 

▪ Resolved to temporarily suspend the 
Medium Term Asset Allocation mandate 

2018 

▪ Approved changes to the Investment 
Strategy Statement  

▪ Agreement to commit $20m to 
Harbourvest in order to maintain strategic 
exposure to Private Equity 

▪ Approved investment into the WPP Global 
Growth Portfolio (Link) 

▪ Completed hedge fund portfolio 
restructure 

▪ Received training on equity risk 
management 

Meeting Dates 28 January and 8 March  

▪ Resolved to implement equity risk 
management strategy 

▪ Received training on Responsible 
Investment and ESG issues 

▪ Agreed the appointment of Northern 
Trust to manage the transition of 
Hosking global equity to WPP 

 

2018 

Q1 2019 

2017 

2017 

▪ Agreed to restructure the hedge fund 
portfolio. 

▪ Agreed to move the Qualified rated 
Schroders QEP Global Active Value 
 Fund (GBP Hedged) to BlackRock 
passively managed funds  
(GBP Hedged) 

▪ Received investment staretgy training. 

Q2 2019 

Page 155

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Prepared by Aon Hewitt
Retirement & Investment

2016 to 2018

Powys County Council Pension Fund – Forward Looking Business Plan

Forward looking business plan does not include some regular activities carried out by the Committee. For example:

▪ Performance monitoring (quarterly basis). This requirement will diminish with the creation of the Wales Pension Partnership.

▪ Discussions with the Pensions Board Chair

Investment Strategy Review 

and Implementation
Wales Pension Partnership 

(fund analysis and appraisal)

Risk Management 

(Equity Market Volatility)

Responsible Investment:

Agree Policy

Implementation

Monitoring

2019 / 2020 onwards

Actuarial Valuation

(projection of investment returns)

(initiate Investment Strategy Review)

Cyber Crime:

Incident response plan

Cost and Transparency:

Consider Clearglass and LGPS Cost 

Transparency Initiative templates

P
age 157

14



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 159

16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 171

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 199

17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 229

18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 235

19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 245

20
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 259

21
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Pensions Board minutes
	Draft Minutes , 11/09/2019 Powys Pensions Board

	5 New Admission Body -Shaw Healthcare (Group) Ltd
	6 Global Equity Transition
	7 Pension Fund Annual Report 2018/19
	Pension Fund Annual Report 2018-19 FINAL

	8 Administration and Local Government Pension Scheme [LGPS] Update
	9 Governance update
	Governance Update SAB July 2019
	Governance Update Breaches Register

	11 Wales Pension Partnership Update
	13 Decision Review
	14 Forward Looking Business plan
	16 Responsible Investment
	RI Analysis - RESTRICTED

	17 Equity Risk Management
	18 Competition & markets Authority Order
	19 Investment Strategy Review
	20 Medium Term Asset Allocation (MTAA) – Update to 30 June 2019
	21 Quarterly Monitoring report

